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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBBME

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASMBLEE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Total revenue 3,148,894 4,068,467
BUA
— Investment properties for rental income 1,154,572 857,427
KEMEZHERA
— Property development for sale 395,180 1,515,745
MEZEREE
— Hotel operations and related services 1,599,142 1,695,295
B JE 45 & I A A AR 75
Gross profit 2,302,452 2,844,405
EH
Fair value gain on investment properties 2,868,417 3,228,003
KEMEAABERR
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company
ZAN/NS 7 ¥ S DN/ K (Cpinkl
— Underlying' 617,737 914,836
RE
— Reported 3,371,517 3,483,150
R &
Basic earnings per share HK$0.927& T HK$0.95/% 7T
BREXRZEAN
Total dividends per share HK$0.1087& T HK$0.1037% 7T

PR BB 4B R

! Excluding the effect of any fair value changes and write-downs net of deferred taxation
Tt REMAAEEZS MAKEBELERE P8

Changes
25

- 22.6%

+ 34.7%

- 73.9%

-5.7%

-19.1%

-1.1%

- 32.5%

-3.2%

-3.2%

+ 4.9%

\ [
N
\\
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)_principally
engage in property investments, property development and
hospitality, owning properties with a total area of over 5 million
square feet in Greater China and overseas. The Group has a tri-
engine business model — owning many investment properties
in prime locations that generate stable and recurrent income;
operating many property development projects for earnings
visibility; and developing hospitality services with strong
recurrent cash flow.

MARKET REVIEW

Under the central government’'s One Belt and One Road
Initiative, mainland China companies continued to march into
Hong Kong's top-grade office space. During the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Year”), the office leasing market in the central
business districts remained active, driven by shortage of supply
and demand from mainland China corporations seeking to
expand their presence in Hong Kong. Strong leasing momentum
contributed modest growth in office rents. According to Jones
Lang LaSalle, the cost of renting Hong Kong's commercial
space was still the highest in the world in the fourth quarter of
2017.

With some international brands scaling back their footprint in the
high street, retail rents in Hong Kong remained under pressure in
the first half of the Year. However, attributable to uptick in visitor
arrivals and positive consumption sentiment, the retail market
has staged a strong recovery since the second half. As a result
of these visible improvements, rent levels in prime streets have
generally flattened out since early-2018.

Hong Kong home prices extended their record-breaking run
throughout the Year. According to data from the Ratings &
Valuation Department, residential property prices in Hong Kong
recorded an overall increase of 14.8% in 2017. The presale
of new residential projects have also been well received. The
solid end-user demand has been propelled by a combination
of suppressed interest rates, housing shortage and economic
stability. The property market was further accelerated by
higher-than-expected land prices and bullish stock market
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

During the Year, the Group’s total revenue was HK$3,148.9
million (2017: HK$4,068.5 million). Rental income from the
Group’s investment properties portfolio grew by 34.7% to
HK$1,154.6 million (2017: HK$857.4 million), representing 36.7%
(2017: 21.1%) of total revenue. The increase in rental income
was largely driven by an expanded portfolio of properties
such as Emperor Group Centre in Beijing. As for property
development for sale, the remaining units of Upton and The
Java were fully sold and generated a revenue of HK$395.2
million (2017: HK$1,515.7 million). Although the presale of
The Amused was launched, the sales proceeds had not been
recognised as revenue during the Year. Revenue from the
hospitality segment slightly declined to HK$1,599.1 million
(2017: HK$1,695.3 million), accounting for 50.8% (2017: 41.7%)
of the total revenue.

Gross profit was HK$2,302.5 million (2017: HK$2,844.4 million).
A revaluation gain on investment properties amounted to
HK$2,868.4 million (2017: HK$3,228.0 million). The profit for the
year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$3,371.5
million (2017: HK$3,483.2 million).

Basic earnings per share was HK$0.92 (2017: HK$0.95). The
board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.061
(2017: HK$0.058) per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.047 (2017: HK$0.045) per share, the total dividends for
the Year are HK$0.108 (2017: HK$0.103) per share.

Liquidity And Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net asset value and net
asset value per share amounted to HK$29,455.4 million (2017:
HK$25,546.5 million) and HK$8.01 (2017: HK$6.95) per share,
respectively.

The Group had cash, bank balances and bank deposits
amounting to HK$3,850.4 million as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$6,623.1 million). The total external borrowings (excluding
payables) amounted to approximately HK$26,779.0 million
(2017: HK$23,432.5 million) and the Group’s net gearing
ratio was 35.7% (2017: 30.2%) (measured by net debts as a
percentage to the total asset value of the Group).
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In addition to its share capital and reserves, the Group made
use of cash flow generated from operations, bank borrowings,
unsecured notes and unsecured loans from related companies
to finance its operations. The Group’'s bank borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Pounds Sterling (“GBP”), and their interest rates followed market
rates. The unsecured notes were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars at fixed rates ranging from 4% to 5%
per annum. The Group's bank balances and cash were also
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and Macau Patacas
(“MOP”") and GBP. The Group is exposed to certain foreign
exchange risk caused by fluctuation in RMB and GBP exchange
rates. The Group closely monitors its overall foreign exchange
exposure by adopting appropriate measures to mitigate
currency risks, such as cross-currency rate swap contracts for
unsecured notes.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Investment Properties for Rental Income

The Group’s investment property portfolio primarily focuses
on quality street-level retail spaces and commercial buildings
in prominent locations, not just in Greater China, but also in
the United Kingdom. In recent years, the Group has strived to
enhance the proportion of retail and commercial buildings, on
a whole block basis, among its existing property investment
portfolio — aiming to diversify its rental income streams and
ensure the Group is in a more resilient position to withstand
market volatility. As a result of the majority of its premises being
in prime locations, the overall occupancy rate of the Group’s
investment properties was over 96.0% as at 31 March 2018.

New additional complexes during the Year
—  Mainland China

Located in Chang’an Avenue East, Beijing, Emperor Group
Centre is a 28-storey (excluding three-storey basement
with parking facilities) Grade-A office tower and premier
shopping mall with premium cinema, encompassing a gross
floor area of approximately 1,062,000 square feet. Majority
of office and retail spaces are occupied by various tenants
including a financial institution, a retail and commercial
bank, luxury watch and jewellery retailers, a high fashion
designer brand, a fitness centre, and several fine-dining
and catering operators. During the Year, the Group hosted
a series of marketing and communication events with
prominent tenants, which gained offline and even online
exposure through collaboration with Key-Opinion-Leaders
and bloggers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

The inauguration of Emperor Group Centre, which boasts a
prominent location in China’s capital city, marks a significant
milestone for the Group in upscaling significant commercial
projects in mainland China.

As discussed in the 2014/2015 annual report, due to the
disputes with the vendor of 70% effective interest of the
property, the consideration of RMB160 million has been
withheld pending the determination and resolution of such
disputes. During the Year, such disputes were resolved and
the consideration was fully settled.

Macau

With a gross floor area of approximately 30,000 square feet,
Emperor Nam Van Centre is a multi-storey premium retail
complex with a blend of shopping and lifestyle offerings on
the Macau Peninsula. During the Year, some tenants such
as an international sports brand and a luxury watch and
jewellery retailer have moved in for their shop layout design
and interior refurbishment work.
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Ampersand Building, London
1w 2tAmpersand A E

London

During the Year, the Group completed the acquisition of
Ampersand Building, a composite building comprising
retail spaces, office premises and leasehold apartments,
at Nos. 111-125 Oxford Street, London. It is a freehold,
8-storey (including basement) composite building with a
total floor area of approximately 90,999 square feet. Located
in the prime retail and vibrant SOHO office area of London’s
West End, it is also in close proximity to the Tottenham Court
Road Crossrail development, thereby enjoying significant
pedestrian traffic and enhanced accessibility.

In line with the Group’s strategic focus, this acquisition
represented a rare opportunity to purchase a quality asset
that will be attractive to retail and office tenants over the
long term, on a whole block basis, on a prominent street in
the world-renowned cosmopolitan city.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the Group completed an acquisition of
the retail shops of Fairview Height, Mid-levels, Hong
Kong. Located in the traditional luxury residential area on
Hong Kong Island, this property is surrounded by upscale
residential properties in Mid-Levels, where the local retail
market is supported by a high income group.

w2

RARFEE - NEB TR U EEAmpersand A
E-——EBEETENH HAMEREE
NABHERAEKIE  MEMR R 2E
111-1255% « 52 W 5 B —1E8/E (EHEHbJE ) 5K
AERENERE KNE B2 H EE4990,999
FHR- MR RBARESTE KPR
SNE FTIEMER - 2 W E I ARI FERR E
IR EE IR EEIEE - AR 113
JAV=

ZUBNEAKRBERNREZL  ERIRE
HETBUTHEIEHBEBARPITZTER
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&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Portfolio of mature projects

Hong Kong — Retail Premises

The Group owns many premium investment properties,
with a strong focus on street level retail space in Hong
Kong's main shopping districts. Key investment properties
include the retail shops at Nos. 8, 20, 22-24 and 50-
56 Russell Street, No. 76 Percival Street and Nos. 474-
476, 478-484, 507, 523 Lockhart Road in Causeway Bay;
Nos. 4-8 Canton Road, Nos. 81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-
37 Haiphong Road; Nos. 25-29 and Nos. 43-49A Hankow
Road in Tsim Sha Tsui; The Pulse in Repulse Bay and
Fitfort Shopping Arcade in North Point.

Hong Kong — Office, Commercial & Industrial Complexes

In addition to the above-mentioned retail spaces, the
Group's rental income from complexes mainly includes
Emperor Group Centre and China Huarong Tower in Wan
Chai; Emperor Commercial Centre in Central; a complex
at Nos. 45-51 Kwok Shui Road in Kwai Chung; New
Media Tower in Kwun Tong; Level 3, New Town Mansion
Shopping Arcade and Ulferts Centre in Tuen Mun; and
commercial and car park complexes at Sui Wo Court in
Sha Tin.

HREEZHEE

EE-FTEYE
TEERARAEELREYHE TEAM
REBFTERBYHE 2 SEMHE TR
BB IRR EEXHS 20 22-24
R 50-565% - ¥ A B #7655 % B8 7 iE474-
476 -478-484 507 ~523% « L YVIR E R E
4-8% - TE(E81 - 83% 5By iE35-37%
JE[]i825-2955 N 43-49A %% 7 TERH
K& The Pulse 2 1t B T IE YRS -

BE ML BRERLEAE

B bt TEAIN AERERE A ZHE
WAL ERRBUNEF HELMA DN
FEEGAE PRESFREF D R
B %5 8545-5155 2 N1E - BE ST AR 5 (8
D~ WPV BEB R 5318 N B 1L el A0 DA K
DOBERBHBFERFESFEAE-

Emperor Commercial Centre

HEFEPLD
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Located at No. 4 Kin Fat Lane in Tuen Mun, Ulferts Centre
is currently a 14-storey industrial building for godown
purpose with a gross floor area of over 178,000 square
feet. An application was submitted and approved for the
proposed wholesale conversion into a commercial building
covering diversified purposes such as food and beverage,
retail spaces and offices. This revitalisation project is in
progress with target completion in 2020.

Mustard Seed, the Group’s first co-working space,
was introduced in Emperor Group Centre, Wanchai.
Encompassing a gross floor area of approximately
5,000 square feet, Mustard Seed is designated to offer
freelancers, innovators and entrepreneurs a convenient
and affordable working space with a host of complimentary
amenities. It serves as a platform for motivated
professionals, especially in the arts and design industries,
to network and collaborate with each other, creating a more
productive and connected community of entrepreneurs.

London

Apart from the Ampersand Building which is mentioned
as above, the Group owns a 7-storey (including basement)
retail and office complex at Nos. 181-183 on Oxford
Street. All of these premises are located at the prominent
shopping hub in London, which is a popular tourist spot for
international visitors.

Future projects

Hong Kong

The Group continually strives to upgrade the quality
and maximise the potential rental income of its premises
by undertaking various transformation and refurbishing
programmes. For the redevelopment of Nos. 75-85
Lockhart Road, two adjacent buildings were demolished.
The site will be redeveloped into a prime office building
with a gross floor area of 96,000 square feet. The project is
scheduled for completion during 2020. The redevelopment
is set to reinvigorate the site through creating a vibrant
building in the heart of Wanchai - one of the core
commercial districts on Hong Kong Island — and presents
significant value-creation opportunities to the Group.

(LA T P28 B35 BBl 1L B A 0 IR B
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- London

The site at Nos. 25-27 on Oxford Street will be redeveloped
into a composite retail/office building with a gross floor
area of approximately 20,000 square feet for long-term
investment purpose. Such redevelopment is expected to be
completed in 2019.

- Mainland China

In Yuyuan, Huangpu District, Shanghai, Emperor Star City
will be developed into a shopping arcade and hotel or
serviced apartment complex, at a prime site adjacent to
the Shanghai M10 subway route. Foundation and basement
excavation work for the development has been completed.
With an expected gross floor area of approximately
1,300,000 square feet, the complex will include a multi-
storey shopping arcade as its major component.

Property Development for Sale

The Group pursues a strategy of providing quality residential
properties including luxury composite buildings in popular
urban areas, and low-rise detached houses in unique spots,
with convenient access to transportation networks. A steady
development pipeline has been established, which will provide
medium-term contributions to the sale of residential units, for
earnings visibility.

Projects to be launched soon

The completed units of the luxurious low-rise development with
14 low-rise detached or semi-detached houses at Kwun Fat
Street, Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, will be launched to the market in the
second half of 2018. With a gross floor area of approximately
39,000 square feet, it is well served by a superb transportation
network comprising Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor as
well as the future Tuen Mun—-Chek Lap Kok Link and Hong Kong-—
Zhuhai-Macau Bridge.

Another site, at Nos. 8-10A Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, will be
redeveloped into a luxury residential tower with a gross floor
area of approximately 34,000 square feet. Adjacent to Soho area
and Lan Kwai Fong, it is in close proximity to Central-Mid-Levels
Escalator, with convenient access to Central commercial district
area. It is also located at a traditional luxury residential area on
Hong Kong lIsland, which is in line with the Group’s strategic
focus. Its presale is expected to be launched in the second half
of 2018, and the target for completion is late-2019.
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The presale of The Amused, an urban redevelopment project
to create a 26-storey composite residential/retail tower offering
136 units in Shum Shui Po, Kowloon, with a gross floor area
of approximately 54,000 square feet, was launched during
the Year. The sales contracts of all the units were committed
as of 31 March 2018. Such redevelopment is expected to be
completed in late-2018. The contracted sales proceeds will be
fully recognised as revenue in the financial year 2018/19.

Other future projects

Another prime residential site with a sea view, at Tuen Mun
Town Lot No. 490, Tai Lam, Tuen Mun, with a gross floor area
of approximately 29,000 square feet, will be developed into a
luxurious low-rise development, comprising detached houses
and apartments. It is expected to be completed in mid-2019.
This project, as well as the residential project at Siu Lam, are
also close to Harrow International School Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong branch of the prestigious, UK-based Harrow School.

In collaboration with two partners, a signature luxury residential
project at Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill, Hong
Kong, with a gross floor area of approximately 88,000 square
feet, will be developed into 15 low-density luxury houses with
comprehensive auxiliary facilities. This project is expected to be
completed in 2019. Leveraging the unique location, this project
will enable the Group to optimise the land bank portfolio, with
better capital appreciation in future.
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Hotel Operations and Related Services

Dedicated to the Group’'s ongoing efforts on developing
hospitality services, Emperor Hotels Group has been
established to cover several hotels and serviced apartments in
Hong Kong and Macau. In Hong Kong, it covers The Emperor
Hotel, Inn Hotel Hong Kong, MORI MORI Serviced Apartments
and The Unit Serviced Apartments. In Macau, it covers Grand
Emperor Hotel and Inn Hotel Macau, where income from
hospitality and gaming has been consolidated with the Group.

Newly launched hotel and serviced apartments during the
Year

The Emperor Hotel, a 29-storey hotel in Wan Chai, was
commenced during the Year. With a gross floor area of
approximately 115,000 square feet, it offers 300 guest rooms
together with leisure, dining and parking facilities. It is a
signature hotel project under Emperor Hotels Group, which can
further enhance brand recognition in the hospitality segment.

The Unit Serviced Apartments, a 21-storey, 68-unit block in
Happy Valley, became operational during the Year. The area
is vibrant, conveniently located near Hong Kong's commercial
districts, and affords easy access to Hong Kong Jockey Club
and Hong Kong Stadium for international sports events, and
Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital for medical check-ups,
helping to ensure solid short-term leasing demand.

The Emperor Hotel
HEEFERE
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Existing portfolio

In Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon, Inn Hotel Hong Kong is a 30-storey
hotel offering 200 guest rooms, with a gross floor area of
approximately 48,000 square feet. With easy access to
established shopping areas and Ladies’ Market in Mong Kok,
as well as Jade Market in Yau Ma Tei, it is conveniently located
in a major entertainment, shopping and dining district, ensuring
guests will truly experience Hong Kong as a vibrant and
fascinating city.

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wanchai and Causeway Bay,
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments provides 18 stylish serviced
apartments for expats, MICE visitors, business travellers and
overseas professionals, on short- and long-term leases. With
state-of-the art facilities and professional customer services,
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments redefines the contemporary
way of life.

Grand Emperor Hotel is another of the Group’'s flagship
projects, located on the Macau Peninsula. With a gross floor
area of approximately 655,000 square feet, it is a 26-storey hotel
with 307 exquisite guest rooms, fine dining restaurants and bars,
as well as gaming facilities. It has won an array of prestigious
industry awards.

Inn Hotel Macau is a 17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 209,000 square feet, and 287 guest rooms. /Inn
Hotel Macau creates a comfortable experience, catering to
the lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers. Through
extending coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, it enables
the Group to fully capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality
market.

OUTLOOK

The Group adopts a pro-active approach to establishing an
investment property portfolio that is resilient to unanticipated
crises, by optimising the balance between retail and non-retail
premises. Underpinned by positive consumption sentiment and
gradual recoveries in Hong Kong's tourism and retail industries,
leasing demand for retail premises is set to improve. Meanwhile,
there is still robust demand from Chinese corporations for office
premises in central business districts, as they are keen to
expand their presence in Hong Kong. The Group will continue
to source quality and upscale investment properties with good
potential — not just in Hong Kong, but also in other areas of
Greater China and in major cities worldwide, to enhance its
investment property portfolio and lay a solid foundation for
expanding recurrent rental income in the long-run. The Group
expects that the contribution from latest additions including
Emperor Group Centre in Beijing and Emperor Nam Van
Centre in Macau, as well as future redevelopment project at
Nos. 75-85 Lockhart Road, \WWanchai, will generate significant
rental income in the next financial years.
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The primary residential market in Hong Kong is being supported
by strong end-user demand, as evidenced by overwhelming
responses to the new launches by developers. It is anticipated
that homebuyer confidence will be sustained on the back of
a healthy labour market, rising incomes and a relatively low
interest rate environment. Following the official launch and
handover of the residential project in Siu Lam and The Amused,
their aggregate sales proceeds are expected to be reflected in
the earnings of financial year 2018/19. Being an experienced
property developer in Hong Kong, the Group will strive to deploy
capital and strategic resources to capitalise value creation
opportunities through residential redevelopment projects. The
Group will closely monitor market developments and changes
in governmental policies and, when necessary, will respond by
adjusting its business strategies to deliver a solid operational
performance.

A combination of Chinese consumers’ rising confidence, their
growing wealth and strengthening labour markets, has resulted
in improving inbound tourism to Hong Kong. The Group is
optimistic towards the growth prospects of the tourism and
hospitality industry in Hong Kong. The undertaking of new
hotel and serviced apartment projects is a solid testament to
the Group’s commitment to maintaining its position in the local
hospitality sector.

Despite the global uncertainties, the Group will continue
prudently managing its core businesses, to achieve stable
growth and sustain profitability. With its management execution
strength and market insight, the Group will strive to further
enhance its competitive position, and aim to become a key
property player in the Greater China region.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total cost incurred for staff, including Directors’ emoluments,
was HK$709.6 million during the Year (2017: HK$650.1 million).
The number of staff was 1,748 as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
1,750). Each employee’s remuneration was determined in
accordance with the individual’s responsibility, competence
and skills, experience and performance, as well as market
pay levels. Staff benefits include medical and life insurance,
retirement benefits and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Options” on pages 177 and 178.

ASSETS PLEDGED

As at 31 March 2018, assets with carrying value of HK$47,863.6
million (2017: HK$41,129.6 million) were pledged as security for
banking facilities.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 62, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in June 1999. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E
Hotel”), a subsidiary of the Company. She is the mother of Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, the Executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Luk worked in the banking industry for almost
10 years. She graduated from The University of Toronto with a
Bachelor's Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director and Managing Directors

WONG CHI FAIl, aged 62, the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. He is also a Chairman of the Executive Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of four listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited
(Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J"), Emperor Culture Group
Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture Group”) and Ulferts
International Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts International”),
all being associated corporations of the Company. Having over
30 years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong
has diversified experience in different businesses ranging
from property investment and development to manufacturing,
hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, cinema
development and operation, wholesaling and retailing of
furniture, financial and securities services, artiste management,
entertainment production and investment as well as media and
publication. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 55, the Managing Director
of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company in 1990. She has
been responsible for the Group's strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing different
functions within the Group. Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is also a director
of Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture Group
and Ulferts International. Having over 29 years of corporate
management experience, she possesses diversified experience
in different businesses ranging from property investment and
development to hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, cinema development and operation, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management, entertainment production and investment as well
as media and publication. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong
Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master's Degree
in Business Administration.
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Executive Director

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 62, joined the Company in 2005
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
February 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is currently responsible for overseeing the Group's property
investment, development and management businesses. During
the period from 1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung was an executive
director of Henderson Investment Limited (Stock Code: 97). He
has over 40 years of experience in professional general practice
surveying as well as property development and marketing in
Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Canada. He graduated
from University of London with a Bachelor's Degree (Hons) in
Arts. He is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

YEUNG CHING LOONG, ALEXANDER, aged 32, joined the
Group in 2009 as Corporate Executive and was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company in May 2018. He is a member
of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yeung has
been involving in the management of the overall business of the
Group. Since his employment with the Company for almost 10
years, Mr. Yeung has participated in various projects including
but not limited to beach-front lifestyle shopping complex,
mega commercial complex in China’s capital city, several
luxury residential developments, as well as the development of
Emperor Hotels Group. He has also undertaken responsibility in
evaluating new business opportunities and strategic planning
of the Group. He has developed all-round expertise in property-
related business and even initiated a number of innovative ideas
such as the establishment of a stylish co-working space in Hong
Kong. Apart from the above property-related experience, Mr.
Yeung has been involving in the management of other business
segments under the Emperor Group, namely entertainment
production and investment, cinema development and operation,
retailing of watch & jewellery, financial and securities services,
artiste management as well as media and publication. Mr. Yeung
is also an executive director of Emperor Culture Group, an
associated company of the Company. He is the son of Ms. Luk
Siu Man, Semon, being the Chairperson and a Non-executive
Director of the Company.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHENG KA YU, aged 45, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2012. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. She has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1998 and is now a Partner of P.C. Woo & Co., Solicitors.
Ms. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws in 1995.

WONG TAK MING, GARY, aged 42, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well
as a member of the Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. He now runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr.
Wong was previously an independent non-executive director of
Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79), a listed
company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until 26 May
2017. Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant (practising),
a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

CHAN HON PIU, aged 58, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as
a solicitor in Hong Kong since 1991 and is now a partner of a
law firm in Hong Kong. He was previously an independent non-
executive director of Emperor W&J until 25 May 2016. Mr. Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences. He also obtained the Certificate of
Education and a Master’s Degree in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 79 and 80 of this annual report. The dividend paid during
the Year and proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.047 per share for the Year
(2016/2017: HK$0.045 per share), amounting to approximately
HK$172.8 million (2016/2017: HK$165.5 million), was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.061 per share for the Year (2017: HK$0.058 per share),
amounting to approximately HK$224.3 million (2017: HK$213.3
million) to those shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 17 August 2018 (Friday) subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 9 August 2018 (Thursday) (2018 AGM").

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’'s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
5 to 16 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 46 to 70 of this annual report
and notes 42 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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Saved as disclosed in note 52 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no important event affecting the Company
that had occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy
and performance, key relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 210 of the
annual report.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at a
cost of approximately HK$4,352,291,000 and incurred costs of
approximately HK$198,151,000 on investment properties under
development.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$2,868,417,000 has been
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March
2018 is set out on pages 211 to 220 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of approximately HK$143,231,000 and
incurred costs of approximately HK$140,155,000 on hotel
properties under construction.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on pages 83 and 84 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
aggregate of (a) the difference between the consolidated net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued pursuant to the group re-
organisation effective in December 1991; (b) the surplus arising
on reduction of share capital effective in March 2003; and (c)
the subsequent dividends paid and bonus issues by way of
capitalisation of contributed surplus.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2018 represented the aggregate
of contributed surplus and accumulated profits amounting to
HK$4,307,498,000 (2017: HK$4,694,286,000).

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted in 2013 as set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander (appointed on 2 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Cheng Ka Yu
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary
Mr. Chan Hon Piu

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 17 to 19 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”), Mr. Wong
Chi Fai, Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary shall retire by rotation at the
2018 AGM. Also, Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander who was
appointed as additional Director by the Board on 2 May 2018,
shall retire at the 2018 AGM pursuant to Bye-laws 86(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws. Being eligible, all of the aforesaid retiring
Directors shall offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, there was in
force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided
for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice). Remuneration should be paid
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual's responsibilities, competence and skills,
experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Remuneration packages includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, housing allowances, contribution to
pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to the financial
performance of the Group and individual performance, ad hoc
rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

EERTETHRAERRO HBROKREEIZREZRAXR

At 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company
(“EIHL Securities Code”) were as follows:

R2018F3A31H  EENARFERTHRABRAR A LEMBEEE (F& RESLRAGED ([FEHFMIB GG ) EXV
#8) 2 Bty ~ MR R EHE B TP R AR RIRAR 8 5 M B B (5P| B 35215k 17 < B re M Pracsk < e MoK B - SRIBA R
AR ERETRE SR HRETR ([RERKRZHFTA) BERTTHAG AR T MBIz Em FORBIAT

(a) Long position interests in the Company
REQARZHFRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
ARG EREE1ETZEBER ([KF])

Number of
issued Shares held Approximate %
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests e T holding
EEnR B/ REEME ROEE HBOBEREIL
Ms. Semon Luk Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
B+ B 45 7 2 (Note)
(H1aE)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%

(“Ms. Vanessa Fan") E=EAA
egEr T ([Bxt])

Note:
Bit -

These Shares were held by Emperor International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited ("AY Holdings”). AY Holdings is held by STC International Limited (“STC
International”) in trust of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung as founder of the AY Trust, Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interests in the same Shares.

ZERMAKREEE (BB IZERERAR (RELEBFZERDBEE ARGXKEXERERAF ([BXREXERIZEE
MiEB AT - 185 R E 2R HSTC International Limited ([STC International | )#74 » M STC International 215 %A+ (M5 ])
RS 2 2 #E{Z7 The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust ([AY Trust]) 2 Z5EA - ERBELZ T ABIEL (BAY TrustZ 12 A) 2 BB -
BERREEZFRMEIE R -
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(b) Long position interests in ordinary shares of associated corporations

REBEIEEER 2 FRER

Number of

Name of issued ordinary  Approximate %

associated Capacity/ share(s) held holding
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests e &7 BARER
BExps MECEE BB 53/ REEME EBRREAE Bt
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse 851,352,845 65.36%
BEzz+ HEREAEE [ e

Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 3,630,950,000 52.76%

HEBERKE FLiB

Ulferts International Interest of spouse 600,000,000 75.00%

BR 1 B PR FLB
Note:
Mt -

Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and Ulferts International are companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These
respective shares were ultimately owned by the AY Trust whose founder is Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr.

Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same shares.

RERGEEE R2EFRENBCEBEOREONERM LT Z 25 - ZB BN TIBAY Trusti &R - HE L RAY Trustz 8

TA-ERELLIRGELZRE BIRRRER LSRR -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

B EXPATEEEI RN2018F3A3IE HMBEFTHARFZEFETHRAERARASNHEMERZEZE (TERZ
FNEIERBIEXVED) 2 EMD - HERO N ERETREEERAERIOAR -

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 15 August
2013 (“Share Option Scheme”). Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares
HALTREOREBERD 2EZER XA

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the Company, the persons or
corporations (other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to
have an interest and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
MR2018F3A3E  MEMEBEBFEHARAFEZTHRAEMA BREFHARAFETHRABN THALIOEER
BROSIEERD P EEHIWERANBEERBLENZRELS LA ERIIEIB6HATFEZELM ([EmERC
M HEBERTHEARARB 2R IREWT

Long position in the Shares

RERBZHE
Number of
issued
Shares held Approximate %
Name Capacity/Nature of interests e T holding
L2 :V8 .3 B, HEmtE RGBE HBOERESWL
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,747,610,489 74.71%
B KEXEER RZEGEBE R 2
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%
AY TrustZ Z5EA
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of the AY Trust 2,747,610,489 74.71%
BELT AY TrustZ BI3Z A

Note:  These Shares were the same shares held by Ms. Semon Luk as those set out under Section (a) of “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Wi WEBRNHEXEERTIBITHRASNRN HERD RERE 2R MR 2F (B MEELTRHE 2 BRI -

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March 2018, no short positions were recorded in
the DI Register of the Company.
T LR BT R - R2018F3A31H  RARG 2SS MITEAR LI

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors or chief executives of the Company were not
aware of any other person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who
had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the DI Register or as otherwise notified to the Company.

Br EXFTIREEE SN 20183 A31H  BEEXARAFETHAEMTAREMEMALIEE (EFERARA
FETBABRIN REMBROKAEERODPEAXIER R EERE AL ARG ECLMAASITHELRARAZ
EIERSOAE °
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

EERBREEB 2ER

As at 31 March 2018, the interests of Directors or their respective associates in the businesses which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) were as follows

RR2018F3A31H - RIFHRAMES E DA/ ([ EMARRA) RIZAFRBESNRS B 2B RARBEA A B AR
3 ] & Eﬁiﬂi‘%lﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬂﬁﬁ RECEBTREBE 2 ERNT

Name Name of Company Nature of interests Compehng business

" & R ERME BREEK

Ms. Semon Luk and her Certain subsidiaries of Substantial Property development/
associate AY Holdings as owned shareholder investment

PEA+ REBEA by the AY Trust FTERR MEBR/KRE

AY TrustFT#E B 2 15K E
TR ETHERA

Ms. Vanessa Fan Bacchus International Director and Property investment
Pelequn Limited and its shareholder YEIRE
subsidiary EERRE

Bacchus International

Limited & E K1 8B A 7]
Mr. Wong Chi Fai and his Wintex Services Limited Substantial Property investment

associate BERBHR QA shareholder and MERE
BEEBEEREBREA director
FERRLRES

No non-competition undertaking was given by the above Directors. The properties held by the Group are
mainly for commercial purpose while those held by the above Directors and/or their associate(s) are mainly for
residential purpose.

f%ﬁ%%i@ﬁ{/ﬁﬁ THREARFE - AEERAZYETZERERE MLAEER AHEHBBEASEEREEE
TER&E-

Confirmation of Independence of Independent BYFHITESBE LM ZER
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual ZM}ETEH&@Jtfiﬁiiﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬁ
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the  RIZE3 13153 2 FEIB I R E - AR
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are A FiEBYIERTESHAB AL
independent.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s BE - HERBEEAQAT EHESH
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries EA$$FW RRE R EAERME R RS

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed [BHESEL{EAARE EHESe
securities.
Pre-Emptive Rights ELXBERE

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the &R Tzai‘iiﬁﬂE\JiEZ%L,£1§|J$EEE§H\F%EA$Q\
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would FIZBIRHLAIMIBEREZEHRG 2 BLEE
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to E.E%Emo

existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements,Contracts of Significance and
Connected Transactions

EENEARS ZHAECHNZHBERBERS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with connected persons (as defined in the Listing

Rules) of the Company:

RAFER AEBERARABEAL (EELR TR ETTIRS:

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received

A VERE-CSUREBKERNEE BREE

Name of counterparty
HEEB

Date of

agreement

% A 4
(DIM/Y)

(R/R/%)

Companies under Emperor W&J

REERKRART AT

(1a) Beauty Royal Limited
(“Beauty Royal”) (note 1)
BEERAR([BE])
(Ht1)

(1b) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BB (Hit1)

(2) Beauty Royal (note 1)

EH (Wi1)

(8) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE(Hi1)

14/11/2014

16/11/2017

31/03/2016

29/06/2017

Leased premises Terms
Py HE
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)
Shops G01-G05, G/F, Emperor Group 17/11/2014-16/11/2017

Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong (“EGC")
BREFHEFBBRREEEF D
([REEEHL ) T GO1-GOSH: M

same as (1a) 17/11/2017-16/11/2020
B(1a)i R

The whole of 25/F & Car Parking Space 01/04/2016-31/03/2019
No. 27, B2/F, EGC

REKETOBEEREE —EF275H

SHENL

Unit 1001, 10/F, EGC 01/07/2017-30/06/2020
KEKETLI0B1001E

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

4,703

2,591

3,692

752
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A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A YERE-WERKLEEPES BEE £

Date of Amount for
Name of counterparty agreement Leased premises Terms the Year
HEE® e =R Frii A% HE REEZEE

(DIMY) (DIM/Y) (HK$000)

(B/R/%) (B/R/%) (F&1)

(4a) Beauty Royal (note 1) 12/09/2014 Shops 1 & 2, G/F, together with a right to ~ 12/09/2014-11/09/2017 9,620

BB (M) (supplemental use (i) External Wall Unit 1 on 1/F; (rental revised with effect

agreements (i) External Wall Unit 2 on 6/F-29/F and from 1 October 2015 & 1

dated Roof; (iii) a LED Display on the External June 2016)

31/08/2015 and  Wall on 5/F; (iv) 2 Signboards on External (&£ & 82015410

27/05/2016) Wall on 1/F-3/F; (v) 2 Signboards on A1B X2016F6 A1H #E

(Wt EMA  External Wall on 5/F; and (vi) Signage £
20158 A31H & Space A on 1/F, Emperor Watch and
2016%5H27H)  Jewellery Centre, 8 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
ERMBERZUBTHEERKEP LU
TEIRE2FEH BRI IMEE SR
0 (622918 R K & SME B & RI2% : (iii)5
BINERRETR: (v123B2ANERES
e (voZ2IME R E R R(vi)1BIMEE

ENAZFRRE
(4b) Beauty Royal (note 1) 30/06/2017 same as (4a) 12/09/2017-11/09/2020 12,603
BR(Wit1) £ (4a) 1B R
(5a) Beauty Royal (note 1) 28/05/2014 G/F (Shop A including the yard), and 01/07/2014-30/06/2017 3,305
BB (HiE1) (supplemental Office A on 1/F, Tak Fat Building, 50-52 (rental revised with effect
agreements Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong  from 1 October 2015 & 1
dated BB INELEZE50-52REEREHT (A June 2016)
31/08/2015 and @ ER) RIEBAZE (I1EET1H 4 82015F10
27/05/2016) A1BR2016F6 410 2
(BRBZAHAR E3)
20158318 I
2016F5A27H)
(5b) Beauty Royal (note 1) 30/06/2017 same as (5a) 01/07/2017-30/06/2020 9,900
BE (K1) H(5a) R

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k



Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

WERE-WRKEEPEE BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEE8

Beauty Royal (note 1)
BB (Hit1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
B (1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (K1)

Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE(Hrit1)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

22/10/2014
(supplemental
agreements
dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(BrRBERER
2015F8A31H K
2016%F5R278)

30/06/2017

22/10/2014
(supplemental
agreements
dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(HRBZEHAR
201568H31H I
201655A27H)

30/06/2017

23/12/2014
(supplemental
agreements
dated
31/08/2015 and
27/05/2016)
(BRBEEHR
2015F8A31H &
2016582780

Leased premises
PRy

The whole of 54-56 Russell Street together
with the right to use a LED display on
external wall on 1/F-5/F and 9 advertising
signboards, Nos. 54-56 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BAMBERZEARS65ER1-5EIME
LEDR T B RO B 5 18 < & 1

same as (6a)
£2(6a) 18 A

G/F (Shop B including the yard), Office B
and the Balcony adjacent thereto on 1/F
and Office B and the Balcony adjacent
thereto on 2/F, Tak Fat Building, Nos. 50-
52 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong

Kong

BREERZH0-525% R AEMT (B
HERR) REBE (EHEA) UR2EBE

(2E&)

same as (7a)
£(7a)18R

G/F and 1/F, Tenements A & B on 3/F,
Portion A of Tenement A on 4/F and roof,
4-8 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
together with a right to use four outdoor
advertising signs on the external walls to

the building

BENERREL-8T T X118 3BAKB
B RABABI 2 AR RXBERETI

T4ERINES 2 (LA

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

23/10/2014-22/10/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 & 1
June 2016)
(EE:THE£2B2015F10
A1B X2016F6 A1H #E
£

23/10/2017-22/10/2020

23/10/2014-22/10/2017
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 and
1 June 2016)
(BEFTHEE B2015F10
A1BK2016F6A1H
)

23/10/2017-22/10/2020

04/01/2015-03/01/2018
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015 & 1
June 2016)

(&1&31H 2 82015510
A1B %20165F6 A1 #E
£

(early terminated on
15/05/2017)
(201755158 RATL
1E)

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

20,465

15,342

7,639

5,819

7,768

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRA

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEBEE-WEBRKERNES RER-Z

Name of counterparty

HLEM

(9) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE(Hit1)

(10a) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BB (Hit1)

(10b) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BB (M)

(11) Beauty Royal (note 1)
BE (1)

(12a) EWJ Watch and Jewellery

(Macau) Limited

("EWJ Macau”) (note 1)
HEBEARE ORM)ER

2] (TEWSEFT])
(Bit1)

(12b) EWJ Macau
EWJIRFS

Date of
agreement

% A 4
(DIM/Y)
(BR/R/%)

27/07/2017

28/12/2016

27/02/2018

30/03/2017

30/06/2014

29/06/2017

Leased premises
PR

G/F, 1/F, 2/F,3/F.4/F and roof together with
a right of use a wall-mount advertising
signage on the external wall of 4-8 Canton

Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BEENEERBLSH 2T 118 283
B UERKE BRBBESHZFERE

Projected signage of 4-8 Canton Road,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENERRE4 SR BT RER

same as (10a)
£2(10a)18 A

Shops A, D2 & E2 on G/F and the
projected signage on external wall,
Harilela Mansion, 81 Nathan Road, Hong

Kong

BEBABSIKEF AR TA  D2RE25:

L MG R R e

EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D.,
Henrique NoS 67-69, Res-Do-Chao B &
EM Macau, Rua Do Dr., Pedro Jose Lobo
No5, Res-Do-Chao C2, Macau

R EFASIR67Z0695H TBE K # 1R
Bt ToR L B REC2E

same as (12a)

£2(12a)18 [

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

Terms

B

(DIMFY)
(B/R/%)

01/08/2017-31/07/2020

January, February

and May 2017 (early
terminated -no licensing
for May 2017)

2017F1R - 2ARS5A (1F
AR IE— 201765 AT ER
ik )

March, May, August,
October, November and
December 2018
20183754 8H 10
A 11A K128

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

01/07/2014-30/06/2017

01/07/2017-30/06/2020
(will early terminate on or
before 31/08/2018)

(5 2018%8A31B
AR AT L)

Amount for
the Year

KEECEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

29,080

N/A
TER

132

10,505

1,417

3,554



A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A YERE-WEKEEPES BEE £

Name of counterparty

HLER

(13a) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJEP (#it1)

(13b) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJRFT (H71)

(14) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJEP (#:E1)

(15) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJSEP (#iE1)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

30/06/2014

29/06/2017

31/03/2015
(supplemental
agreement dated
31/03/2016)
(BRBEEHR
2016%3A318)

31/03/2016

Leased premises
PRy

EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D.,
Henrique No 65-A, lo Andar B, Macau
BPIRE T ASHE5-ATIEBE

same as (13a)

£2(13a)iE A

Shop Nos. 1-4, G/F, EM Macau, Travessa
Central Da Praia Grande NoS 11-41, Hotel
Animacao Imperial (also known as Shop
Nos. 1-4 on G/F., Grand Emperor Hotel,
251-292D Avenida Comercial De Macau,
Macau)
RPEEREN-MRREREEEH T4
S (AP EAFIK251-2025 DA 2
IREEE IS T 1245 8)

Shop No. 2A & 2B, G/F., EM Macau,
Travessa Central Da Praia Grande Nos.
11-41, Hotel Animacao Imperial (also
known as Shop No. 2A & 2B on GJF,,
Grand Emperor Hotel, 251-292D Avenida
Commercial De Macau, Macau)
RPIEER B4R RS IREEEH T2A
R2Bo 8 (TRENRPIE % K S #251-292%
DH S IREIR 5 T2AR2BS &)

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

01/07/2014-30/06/2017

01/07/2017-30/06/2020
(will early terminate on or
before 31/08/2018)
(#131/8/20185; 7 A 32
AT L)

01/04/2015-31/03/2019
(rental revised with effect
from 1 April 2016)
(a2 B2016%F4R
1REER)

01/04/2016-31/03/2019

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

26

75

3,229

913

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 43



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRA

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A VERE-WEKEHEPES BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEEB

(16) EWJ Macau (note 1)
EWJEP (fit1)

(17) Emperor Watch & Jewellery
(Beijing) Limited”
(“Emperor W&J Beijing”)
(note 1)

REFFRE (LX) ER
RAE([HEBRHKRE (&
)1 (Hit1)

(18) Emperor W&J Beijing
(note 1)

HEEHKE (L)
(Writ1)

(19) Emperor W&J Beijing
(note 1)

REERKE (LR)
(Hrit1)

(20) Beijing Fujia Jiamei Watch
Trading Company
Limited* (note 1)

ITREREXERESHAR
R (Hfit1)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

15/11/2017

31/10/2017

31/10/2017

31/10/2017

31/10/2017

Leased premises
Frii iRy

Shop 2 on Ground Floor, Emperor Nam
Van Centre, No. 71-75 Avenida Do Infante,
D. Henrique and No. 514-540 Avenida da
Praia Grande, Macau
BPBREFABRI-T5HRRBEASR
514-540%; 3 £ i 2 F 03t [ 25% 6

Unit 02, 28th Floor, Emperor Group
Centre, D12 Jianwai Dajie, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing EGC")
hERTHAGERIRE T 128 RERE
hb2802E ([ERREKEF L))

Unit 101, Beijing EGC
TFREEEERLE

A car parking space on P1/F, Beijing EGC
ERREKEFOPIEEN

Unit 03, 28th Floor,Beijing EGC
EREZEEF 028203E

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

Terms

HE

(DIMFY)
(B/R/%)

15/11/2017-14/11/2020

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

01/02/2018-31/10/2022

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

Amount for
the Year

rEEZEH
(HK$000)
(FET)

4,032

1,978

807

N/A
ik

220



(21)

Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

WERE-WRKEEPEE BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEE8

Company under Emperor Capital Group

REFZEMET AT

Profit Broad Development
Limited (“Profit Broad”)
(note 2)

RAERARRA([2H])
(Kfit2)

Profit Broad (note 2)
2% (Hritz)

Profit Broad (note 2)
Ba(H72)

Profit Broad (note 2)
2% (Hit2)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

31/03/2016

31/03/2016

01/04/2017

31/10/2017

Leased premises
PRy

Units 603 & 604, 6/F, EGC
HEEEFN6EE03N604F

Unit 606, 6/F, EGC
H2EEF6IE606E

24/F, EGC
REEEFTL24E

Unit 1605,16/F, EGC
HEERDL16/21605F

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

01/11/2017-31/10/2018

Amount for
the Year

rEEZEH
(HK$000)
(FET)

1,146

562

3,854

183

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 43



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRA

Town Mansion, No.2 Tuen Lee Street, Tuen
Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEREMREPTEAER AR

212 (£3E)301 k302%: 4 (B me) &
305B % 305CH 4

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued
A MEHE-WRLEHELES BEE &2
Date of
Name of counterparty agreement Leased premises Terms
HEEB ELEE Fr A A5 HH
(DIMFY) (DIMFY)
(B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Companies under Emperor Culture Group
RENEXEBET AR
(25) Major Marketing 05/05/2017 Partial floor of each of B1, B2M, B2, 05/05/2017-04/05/2027
Communications Limited Beijing EGC
(note 3) EREZEEFRLEBI -B2M B2
AR TEERERAA EEZ#D
(H1it3)
(26) Emperor Cinemas (Beijing)  31/10/2017 Unit 03, 27th Floor, Beijing EGC 01/11/2017-31/10/2022
Limited” (“Emperor TREZEERL27E0IE
Cinemas Beijing”)
(note 3)
REEYH (ER)BRAA
([REFYHIR])
(H1i3)
(27) Emperor Cinemas Beijing  28/02/2018 Unit 08, 27th Floor, Beijing EGC 01/03/2018-28/02/2021
(note 3) LREESERL2TE0SE
HEEFHLR (Hi3)
(28) Perfect Perform Limited 24/08/2017 Shop Nos. 301 & 302 (known as The 01/09/2017-31/08/2023
(note 3) Cinema Space) and Shop Nos. 305B &
BEERAR (23 305C, Second Floor (Level 3) of New

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

4,213

233

38

3,850



Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

WERE-WRKEEPEE BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEE8

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

Companies under Ulferts International

B{ERET AT

Wealthy House Limited
(“Wealthy House")
(note 4)

EEERAA([EE])
(Hfit4)

Wealthy House (note 4)
B (Hit4)

Ulferts of Sweden (Far
East) Limited (note 4)
AR (ER)BRAFE

(Kiita)

31/03/2015

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

Leased premises
PRy

Shops 7-11 on G/F, 1/F & 2/F (including
the entrance hall on G/F to 1/F and 2/F),
Wei King Building, 275 Chatham Road
North, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENBABARREL2755 R =
WT7TENRE 1E2ERERE
(RN TEIRREZAOKRE)

M/F, 1-9/F and parking spaces (excluding
Nos. 9 and 10) on G/F, The Ulferts Centre,
4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BEMALPIRE 24T E AP O
HEZE 1292 EMH T REQ

(T B1EIR R10%AEL)

Units 1206-1207, 12/F, EGC
HEEFRN12/81206-1207F

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 43

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

01/04/2015-31/03/2018
(early terminated on
31/07/2017)
(31/07/201732 AT 41t )

01/04/2015-31/03/2018

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

Amount for
the Year

rEEZEH
(HK$000)
(FET)

1,176

9,685

1,165

(D~



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRA

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEHEE-WERKERNES RER-Z

Date of
Name of counterparty agreement
HEEB ELEE:

(DIMFY)

(B/R/%)

Other companies under the AY Trust
AY TrustiE T &1 2 5

(32) Emperor Entertainment 31/03/2016
(Hong Kong)
Limited (“Emperor
Entertainment”) (note 5)
RERX(FE)BRAA
([RERE]) (Hits)

(33) Emperor Entertainment 29/09/2017
(note 5)
RERE (Hfz5)

(34) Emperor Entertainment 29/09/2017
(note 5)
HERE (H:5)

(85) Emperor Motion Picture 28/05/2015
(Hong Kong) Limited
(note 5)
REEY (FR)ERAA
(Htit5)

(36) Emperor Entertainment 31/10/2017
(Beijing) Limited”
(“Emperor Entertainment
(Beijing)") (note 5)
RERZ (IR)BRAAF
([RERE (X))
(H:#5)

Leased premises
Frii A%

27/F, EGC
HEEERL7E

A portion of 2/F, EGC
HEEERLEZ—HS

Unit 1506, 15/F, EGC
KEEEFRN15E1506F

20/F, EGC
REXET 0208

Unit 06, 27th Floor, Beijing EGC
TREZEEHRL27E06E

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

01/04/2016-31/03/2019

01/10/2017-30/11/2017

01/10/2017-31/12/2017

01/06/2015-31/05/2018

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

3,916

379

186

3,692

1,394



(38)

(41)

Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

WERE-WRKEEPEE BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEE8

Emperor Entertainment
(Beijing) (note 5)
RERE(R) (Wits)

Emperor Film Distribution
(Beijing) Company
Limited” (“Emperor Film
Distribution Beijing”)
(note 5)

HEBFET(ER)
BROA ([REBFET
(35 1) (Hits)

Emperor Film Distribution
Beijing (note 5)
HEEFET(LR)

(B1:25)

Emperor Film and
Entertainment (Beijing)
Limited* (note 5)

RE (LR)FHENER
BRAA (H:5)

Emperor Agency Limited
(“Emperor Agency”)
(note 5)

EEREBERAA
(TRERE]) (Hit5)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

31/10/2017

31/10/2017

28/02/2018

31/10/2017

30/03/2017

Leased premises
PRy

A car park space, P1/F, Beijing EGC
TRREKEFOPIBEN

Unit 05B, 27th Floor, Beijing EGC
LREZRERL27TE0BE

Unit 07,27th Floor, Beijing EGC
ERREEETL27E0TE

Unit 05A, 27th Floor, Beijing EGC
LREERERL2TE0AE

Unit 601, 6/F, EGC
HEEEFRN6ECE

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 43

Terms

HE

(DIM/Y)
(B/R/%)

01/02/2018-31/10/2022

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

01/03/2018-28/02/2021

01/11/2017-31/10/2022

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

Amount for
the Year

KEECZEE
(HK$000)
(FET)

N/A
TER

722

21

60

841



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRA

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A YERE-WERKLEEPES BEE £

Name of counterparty
HEEB

(42) Emperor Agency (note 5)
RERE (H:25)

(43) Emperor Agency (note 5)
RERE (H:t5)

(44) Emperor Agency (note 5)
HERRE (Mit5)

(45) Emperor Agency (note 5)
HERE (Wits)

(46) New Media Group
Publishing Limited
(“New Media")
(note 5)
MERLRERAF
([FE&]) ()

(47) New Media (note 5)
HER (Hs)

(48) New Media (note 5)
MEE (M)

Date of
agreement

E LR
(DY)
(B/R/%)

31/03/2016

30/03/2017

31/03/2016

31/05/2016

10/04/2017

20/04/2017 (as
supplemented on
17/11/2017)
(B17/11/2017
#7)

06/04/2017

Leased premises
Frii A%

Unit 801, 8/F, EGC
HEEEFANSIETE

Unit 1701-1707, 17/F, EGC
HEEEBLTEI701-1707TE

23/F and Unit A, 28/F, EGC
HEEERN3ERBIEAS

Shops 2-6 on G/F, 1F and canopy
adjacent thereto, 2/F, reserved flat roof
portion, first and second advertising
walls, together with the right to use the
LED display on the external walls from 1/
F-3/F, East Ocean Court, 525 Shanghai
Street, Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRNERA LB RE B
265 ER B RAM EE 2B
REZ Ty E-—RE_AESHE
ERRERIMENREBRFEAE

whole of 1/F, 2/F, 6/F, 7/F, 8/F and 9/F,
New Media Tower, No. 82 Hung To Road,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (‘NMT")

EBNEEEERERHERERT L
118 2 612 7TIE - 8EROB LB
([FEEEE+AL])

Car park Nos.1-9, G/F, NMT
MEEEER L TIREREEA

Storeroom No. 1, G/F, NMT
FEREERLM T AREDE

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

Terms

HE

(DIMFY)
(B/R/%)

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

01/04/2016-31/03/2018

01/06/2016-31/05/2019

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

01/04/2017-31/03/2020

Amount for
the Year

FEEZEH
(HK$000)
(FET)
920

3,807

5812

3,360

4,339

136

64



A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license fee received — continued

A MEHEE-RERKERNES RER —Z

Name of counterparty
HE48

(49) New Media (note 5)
MEE (frizs)

(50) New Media (note 5)
MEE (i)

(51) New Media (note 5)
MEE (i)

(52) New Media (note 5)
HEE (Hs)

(53) New Media (note 5)
HER (Hzts)

# English name is directly translated from Chinese and for illustrative

purpose only

Notes:

As at the respective date of the relevant agreement: —

Date of
agreement

ELEE
(DIMIY)

(B/R/%)

10/04/2017

06/04/2017

06/04/2017

10/04/2017

06/04/2017

Leased premises
PRy E

Redemption Centre with a Storeroom,
G/F, NMT \
MEREET LT 2RmIBEEROR

#EW=E

Area of computer room air conditioning,

RIF, NMT

%ﬁ{f—ﬁ%%qﬂlb%éggﬁﬁﬁg%?}
il

Signage No.1, G/F, NMT
HEREER LT 21 E LR

Signage No.2, R/F, NMT
FEREBERLREEE2RELE

Area of Emergency Generator, R/F, NMT
MEREETLRAREZRSEERE

#

Amount for
Terms the Year
A XEEZEE
(DIMFY) (HK$000)
(B/R/E) (FEr)
01/04/2017-31/03/2020 47
01/04/2017-31/03/2020 24
01/04/2017-31/03/2020 9
01/04/2017-31/03/2020 5
01/04/2017-31/03/2020 5

HBXEBRBAFXEZEBERERZFZ
¥l

Wt -

(1) These companies were indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of (1)
Emperor W&J which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(2) This company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor Capital (2)
Group which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(3) These companies were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Emperor (3)
Culture Group which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(4) These companies were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Ulferts (4)
International which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

(5)  AY Holdings was indirectly wholly-owned by the AY Trust. (%)

Ms. Semon Luk, a Director of the Company, has deemed
interests in the above transactions, by virtue of being an

associate of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

RS8R H:

aZ% RESEEKRE CHE2ENE
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B. REEBEELZEMEN

B. Accommodation Contract with Group Consultant

Date: HAE:
30 March 2017 201793 H430H
Parties: AT

(1) Emperor Investment (Management) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

(2) Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Nature:

the Group would continue to provide Dr. Albert Yeung and
his associates (including Ms. Semon Luk, Chairperson of
the Company, being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung who
has not been receiving any emolument from the Group for
his consultancy services rendered since 1 April 2002), a
quarter located at No.2 Belleview Drive, Hong Kong for
accommodation (including related expenses in relation
to the usage of the property) as his emolument for his
consultancy services to the Group. The consultancy
services provided by Dr. Albert Yeung benefit the Group
in overall strategic planning and business development of
the Company as well as in business liaisons. Being one of
the senior executives of the Group, Dr. Albert Yeung is also
entitled to enjoy the fringe benefits offered by the Group,
including the non-exclusive use of motor vehicles, yachts,
club debentures and membership owned by the Group.

Term:
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020

Amount for the Year:

The market rental value as calculated by an independent
firm of professional valuers and related expense of
the quarter up to 31 March 2018 was approximately
HK$10,883,000.
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C. Service agreement in relation to the operation of the

Grand Emperor Hotel

Date:
19 February 2010

Parties:

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou"), a company incorporated
in Macau, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor E Hotel which is an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; and

(2) Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., (“SIM"), a
company incorporated in Macau, which is principally
engaged in gaming business in Macau and is one
of the six concessionaires/sub-concessionaries
licensed to carry on casino operations in Macau. SJM
has 19.99% equity interest in Luck United Holdings
Limited (“Luck United”), an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel, and is a connected
person within the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue
of being a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Nature:

The provision of services comprising management services
and promotion services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to
the operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel whereas Tin
Hou together with the nominated junket promoter (a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned by Emperor E
Hotel) shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and gross
loss in respect of the monthly operating performance of the
gaming area of the GEH and bear all necessary operational
expenses in relation to the operation of the gaming area.

Term:

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence of
certain events, including the expiration of SUM's gambling
license under the Gaming Concession Contract on 31
March 2020 or any earlier termination thereof or winding up
or cessation of business of either party.

Amount for the Year:
During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the
agreement amount to HK$1,086,857,000.
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Rental income from related companies” in the amount
of HK$216,011,000 for the Year as shown in note 49(a) and
the transactions as shown in note 49(c) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in note 49 are connected transactions
exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’'s Letter”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs”) as
set out on pages 29 to 43 of this annual report in accordance
with Main Board rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed
the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of its business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(8) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.
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Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$3,794,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group's five largest customers represented 57% of the
Group’s total revenue. The largest customer accounted for 40%
to the Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 20% of the Group’s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 8% to the
Group’s total purchases and services received.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a Shareholder which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had a beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the
above major customers or suppliers of the Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 46 to 70 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong
20 June 2018
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company within a sensible
framework. The Company has fully complied with all the
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

The Board
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised seven Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Board, three Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board. The biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report under
the“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
1999 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board
works effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds
meetings with the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa have
been appointed as Managing Directors of the Company, and are
responsible for the Group's strategic planning, business growth
and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with
written notice being served by either party. The terms of the
INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
provision under the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and
promotion of the success of the Group by directing and
supervising its affairs in the best interests of the Company and
by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial
and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all power and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set out in
a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

e Publication of final and interim results of the Company
e Dividend distribution or other distribution

e Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

e Major changes to group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements

e Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/continuing

connected transactions

e Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

e Notifiable transaction requiring Shareholders’ approval

e Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

° Financial assistance to Directors
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Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

EECRHE ZERERXRE
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Name of Directors EEHE Topics on training covered (Notes)
PR E 2 55| 58 (fta)
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon /&4t (a), (b) & (c)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai HLESLE (a), (b) & (c)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa EHEL L (a), (b) & (c)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung o 4 58 5 A (a), (b), (c) & (d)
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu =Rt (a), (b) & (c)
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary EEFEE (a), (b) & (c)
Mr. Chan Hon Piu PR IE AR S (a) & (b)
Notes HJit: (a) corporate governance 1¥EA
(b) regulatory RE
(c) finance 1%
(d) industry— specific 11548
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Relationship between the Board Members ExeElEZEE

As at 31 March 2018, none of the members of the Board has #Z201843H31H &K 8 ~ M ETM
any relationship (including financial, business, family or other /& (BT £55 KBS EMEA 0

materials/relevant relations) among each other. BR)

Directors’ Insurance ES2RE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in  AARIEHES A LS EE AR FRELE
respect of legal action against the Directors. BZRERZH -

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment ESZHEBRREERRA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is AFEEEFHFESH2IBREHIWOT:
set out below:

Non-executive Director & Chairperson

FHTEZRERE

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon 13/13 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1
Bheit i ~EA TiER TER T~EA

Executive Directors

HiTES

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) 13/13 N/A 11 N/A N/A 20/20 11
BEBELE (W) TEA TER TERA

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 13/13 N/A N/A 11 11 20/20 11
BRERT (Hi2) TER TEA

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung 13/13 N/A N/A N/A N/A 20/20 1
eSSt TEA ~EA TiE TER

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Note 3) 13/13 33 11 11 N/A N/A 11
BElat (Hi#3) TER T~ERA

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Note 4) 13/13 33 N/A 1 11 N/A 11
BEBREE (MiF4) @A ~EA

Mr. Chan Hon Piu (note 5) 13/13 33 il N/A 11 N/A 11
BERLE (H7F5) TER THEA

Total number of meetings held 13 3 1 1 1 20 1
BIIGHEAE
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Notes:

Chairman of Executive Committee

Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee
Chairperson of Nomination Committee

Chairman of Audit Committee

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

SR A

Upon reviewing (1) the annual confirmation on time commitment
given by each Director; (2) the directorships and major
commitments of each Director; and (3) the attendance rate of
each Director on full Board and the respective Board committee
meetings, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent
sufficient time in performing their responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. Board papers together with all appropriate, accurate,
clear complete and reliable information are generally sent to
all Directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decision.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the
secretary of the meetings, were circulated to the Directors
for their comment and record respectively. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:

1. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Cheng Ka Yu and Mr. Chan Hon Piu.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (1) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor; (2) reviewing and monitoring
the external auditor’s independent and objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process; (3) approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;
and (4) reviewing financial information and overseeing the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures. The Audit Committee held three
meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 (“Previous Year”) and the interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2017;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance-
in-charge the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;
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PN JIN
TEERHE
ii. annual review of the non-exempted continuing i. HAKERE-—FEIFREISED
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous ERHETFEER:
Year;
iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 31 iv. FHEZE2018F3A3A LI BFE
March 2018, reviewed the independence of the external ZBZETE ET SN AN 2 B
auditor and approved the engagement of external 4 R HE R BE INIRAZ BRD ¢ J
auditor; and
v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of v. RARAZ2017FRRBFRE
external auditor at the 2017 annual general meeting of ([2017RFBFERE |) EEHEE
the Company (‘2017 AGM”). INEZEEI M ES S REEEER -
2. Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005) 2. FMESE (R2005F7H19A K1)
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, FMEE R =K BHEMK EH5IAE
namely Mr. Chan Hon Piu (Chairman of the Committee) and VIINTEERESERE(ZESLE)
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, HESHMAL UAREFAKEFEEL
being the Managing Director. Ho
The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration FNE B e 2 B8 E R & E ] R B
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock R RA R ER - FMEEE 2 E
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee EHRERNRARAIZEERERER
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to [& 2 SR R QIFITES 2%
the Board on (1) Company’s policy and structure for B RQEARMITEERARERE 2R
the remuneration of Directors and senior management; EHMEBMNESSREEBER -KF
(2) the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; and EREZZHINFBEHNGEE M EEmERM
(3) the specific remuneration packages for individual F10 - FMEEGNAFERITT -G
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of the o

remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration RARFERN FHNEESFEITZ TIESE

Committee during the Year is set out as follows: ZHEFAT
reviewed the Director’ fee and made recommendation . BAEBES YRAEESRHHES
to the Board; Eok

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package i. WEBITESEREREEE R
of the Executive Directors and senior management BNt il Wi aE o AaR
and recommended the Board to approve their specific E2EERFB R

packages; and

ii. reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Remuneration i. BEFHNEZEoBEGEYREST
Committee and made recommendation to the Board. TR EE -
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and an
Executive Director (Ms. Vanessa Fan up to 1 May 2018/Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander from 2 May 2018).

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (1) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (2) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy; (3) determining the policy for the
nomination of Directors and identifying suitable candidates
for directorship; (4) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or re-
designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; (5) assessing the independence of INEDs; and
(6) reviewing the time commitment of each Director. The
Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
their time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors; and

iv. recommended the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the 2017 AGM.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the business nature of the
Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
qualification and experience, skill, knowledge and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will also assess
the merits and contribution of any Director proposed for
re-election or any candidate nominated to be appointed
as Director and against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of
five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
(Chairperson of the Committee), being the Managing
Director, Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary and Mr. Chan Hon Piu,
both being INEDs, a representative of company secretarial
function and a representative of finance and accounts
function. The specific written terms of reference of the
Corporate Governance Committee is available on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the Corporate
Governance Committee are (1) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company and
making recommendations to the Board; (2) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (3)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’'s securities; (4) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (5)
reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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5. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive Directors
namely Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee),
Ms. Vanessa Fan, Mr. Cheung Ping Keung and Mr. Yeung
Ching Loong, Alexander (being appointed on 2 May 2018).
The primary duties of the Executive Committee are (1)
formulating business policies and making decision on
matters relating to the management and operations of the
Group; (2) having all power and authorities of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the full Board
as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for
and delegated by the Board” adopted by the Board from
time to time.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, reports to the Chairperson on governance matters
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs. The
Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with all the
required qualifications, experience and training requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings in the
Model Code and EIHL Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information
to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis.
The auditor of the Company has made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements so as to give
the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems.

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and (ii)
risk management functions in its principal subsidiaries for the
Year as follows:—

A. Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to
ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems (“Systems”). The Systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The key objectives of the Systems include:
e Safeguarding assets

e Ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports

e Promoting adherence to policies,
regulations and laws

procedures,

e Promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations
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Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows:

The Board

responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness

oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the
assistance of Audit Committee

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that
the Company is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the management
annually to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function

consider major findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems properly
and ensure the Systems are executed effectively

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
day-to-day operations

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the Systems
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B. Governance Control — continued
Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems in respect
of operational, financial and compliance aspects and
will alert the management on the audit review findings
or irregularities, and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal
control of the Group. The result of internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

C. Risk Management
(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. It
endeavours to evaluate and compare the level of risk
against the predetermined acceptable level of risk.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:—

e Risk elimination — management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect
eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation — management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring - It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not. Accidents
and other situations involving loss or near-loss will
be investigated and properly documented as part
of the effort to manage risks.

e Risk retention - management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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C. Risk Management — continued
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

Investment strategy:

Acquisition of land, investment and development
properties carry inherent risks related to meeting
budgets, incurring debts, missing targets and
managing contractor relationships.

Investment decisions are subject to a robust
risk and return evaluation by executives and
supervision by the Finance and Investment
Committee;

Potential projects are subject to an extensive
due diligence review by in-house specialists and
external advisers. Offers are only made for projects
with reasonable return or of strategic value;

Ensure experienced managers are in place to
manage projects; and

Completed projects are subject to continual
monitoring and internal audit, with regular
performance reports to the Management.

Rental income sustainability:

Loss of major tenants due to changes in tenants’
own strategy or competition among landlords would
adversely impact the revenue of the Group.

Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;

Maintain high property marketability by timely
renovation:;

Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our
existing or new properties from time to time.
Custom-made arrangements are offered where
appropriate to cater to their specific needs;

Propose short term lease restructure for quality
tenants in order to help sustain their businesses;
and

Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the
undesirable tenants.
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C. Risk Management — continued

2)

Significant Risks and Strategies — continued
Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of the Group’s revenues is derived
from Hong Kong. Unfavourable events in the city could
disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues and
impact the valuation of our assets.

e The Group has a diversified portfolio of investment
properties across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
cities and London, the United Kingdom. The Group
will keep sourcing quality investment properties
around the world; and

e The Group has expanded its investment property
portfolio to offices in recent years. This enables the
Group to mitigate the undesirable impact on retail
sector.

Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land policies
in different markets. Acquisition of land in Hong Kong,
the PRC and other overseas markets may be subject
to various regulatory requirements and restrictions
and competition from other developers. Future growth
prospects of property development business are
therefore affected by the availability and price levels of
prime sites in Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas
markets. Failure to manage cost of construction,
labour and materials could adversely affect the
competitiveness of property development business.

e Participate actively in the land auctions;

e Engage in more joint-venture projects with partners
in private and public sectors;

e Maintain a long-term strategic plan on property
redevelopment projects;

e Implement well established policies in our
tendering system;

e Monitor project costs closely with strict adherence
to budget;

e Extract advantages from economies of scale based
on our portfolio size, if possible; and

e Monitor closely the labour cost and materials
stock/price trends in the industry before awarding
building contracts.
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C. Risk Management — continued
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies — continued

Keen Competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry
in Macau due to opening of more luxury hotels and
casinos, upgrade of existing hotels by competitors as
well as increasing in number of VIP rooms, gaming
tables and slot machines from existing casinos and
among other Asian countries (e.g. Malaysia, Singapore,
Vietnam and Cambodia). No assurance that the growth
of Macau’s tourism industry would increase in line
with or outpace the supply of hotel accommodation,
casino gaming tables and slot machines and this could
adversely affect the Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand our footprint in sourcing hotel
and gaming patrons;

e Devote to provide the best personalised service
to the guests in order to give them a memorable
experience; thereby differentiating GEH from other
hotels and enabling them to make GEH be their
first choice when they come back to Macau;

e (Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor market;

e Launch promotions featuring GEH’s excellent
location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots; and

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to time in
order to encourage existing gaming patrons to
come back to GEH and attract new customers from
around the world.
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C. Risk Management — continued

2)

Significant Risks and Strategies — continued
Anti-Money Laundering ("AML"):

No assurance that our existing AML policies are in
compliance with applicable AML laws and that the
policies in place could sufficiently prevent or detect the
occurrence of money laundering activities at casinos.

e Review the existing compliance policies regularly;

e Comply with the reporting and compliance
procedures as request by Gaming Inspection
and Coordination Bureau or the AML compliance
department of SJM;

e  Stay alert of the industrial practices; and
e  Give regular training to the staff.

Concession Contract:

Reliance on SJM Concession Contract which will expire
on 31 March 2020 and the existing services agreement
with SJM to run the Group’s gaming business.
Termination of the SJM’s Concession Contract or the
service agreement with SUM for whatever reasons or
the renewal thereof is not granted to or made by SIJM
or unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming business
of the Group.

e Stay alert to the policy and government practice
and the industrial practices or make changes to the
existing business plans or strategies, as and when
appropriate; and

e Keep close communications with SJM in this
respect.
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D.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledged that the management had
progressively implementing an adequate internal control
system to ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas as follows:

(1) Operational

Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons with the
same also act as a detecting device for spotting
unusual activities.

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the Systems and
evaluating findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Group’s internal control system,
providing recommendations for improvement and
assessing the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the business
activities allows close tracking of various inputs
and outputs of the Company’s business such as
raw materials, human resources, products and
customer relationships. It also tracks audit trails in
the authorization system, in which permissions and
responsibility of authorization are clearly identified
and adequate records can be maintained in the
Systems.
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D. Internal Controls — continued
(1) Operational — continued

V.

Vi,

Vil.

Viii.

Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each segment in the upstream,
midstream and downstream are conducted on a
regular basis such that the performance of each
point of sales and each product category can be
easily accessible.

Safeguard of assets: Surprise physical count of
cash, chips and client deposits held in casino and
coupons for casino are performed by Internal Audit
Department to safeguard the assets;

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming business
segments to ensure the service quality; and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets to
welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement;

Control on leasing of properties: Policies and
checklists on control of rental revenue, lease terms
& conditions, appointment of agency, asset security
and performance review are in place for leasing of
Group’s premises;

Control on acquisition of properties: Internal
procedures on the acquisition of properties are in
place;
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D.

Internal Controls — continued
(2) Financial

(3

Proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

Regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s financial performance;

Monthly updates on internal financial information
are provided to all Directors, which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient details; and

Annual audits by external auditors are carried
out to ensure that the financial statement are in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group's accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

Compliance

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of
Inside Information to ensure, with the assistance
of an internal work team (if required), that any
material information which comes to the knowledge
of any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board. The
Board shall make timely decisions on disclosure,
if necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information/price
sensitive information until proper dissemination of
the inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated by
the Board;
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D. Internal Controls — continued
(3) Compliance — continued

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. Such arrangement
will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair
and independent investigation of the matters.

E. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation from
the management on the effectiveness of the Systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed
the Systems and were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Systems.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (a) the holding of
annual general meetings and special general meetings, if any,
which may be convened for specific purposes which provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Board; (b) the publication of announcements, annual reports,
interim reports and/or circulars as required under the Listing
Rules and press releases providing updated information of the
Group; (c) the availability of latest information of the Group in
the Company’s website at www.Emperorint.com; (d) the holding
of press conference(s) from time to time; and (e) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate
investor roadshows and sector conferences.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
such substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the
2017 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings will be sent to the Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2017 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Board Committee and the external auditor were available at
the 2017 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting poll voting
during such meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 9
August 2018 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (a) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of
the requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall
be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by Directors.
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Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for
attention of the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if,
after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the principal office of the Company, an annual
general meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the
copy has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Making Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on the
“‘Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual
Report.
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Constitutional Documents

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu is independent and has
recommended the Board to reappoint it as the Company’s
auditor at the 2018 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:

HEEREH
WAER AAF 2 AHERX L B TE
KEB-

BEET 2B R

BZZ BeRRERIEER CERIRH KER
RN 2 T - AR & TS IR BT B
ReEBMEMARE -ZEZEQ@ZKERR,
ARBZZHENRE e MERS SENTES
VAL WREREFEN2018RREBEFAE L
BIEHEAARRZZEEN -RAFER BE)e
FER DT SETANTE AR B R ERT &
ETERBRY MASEHEN BN TFEZ
B ®5n T -

Audit services ZE R 8,155
Non-audit services ZH R 460
— Corporate exercise in accordance with Hong —REETERRBEEASTMAREM

Kong Standard on Investment Circular BB E B R R E L AR F4005%

Reporting Engagements 400 “Comfort Letters (SR EEBRESS S| RHRS -

and Due Diligence Meetings” issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
— Acting as Reporting Accountant for —MERRNEEEETRRGAD 780

circular issued in connection with
proposed acquisition
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB HRE

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 79 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BY B R E

Key Audit Matters

FRETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RARETEEEBBERFNTEHE R AY
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the AHGAEMBHRENENIRAEEENEE 2
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These “EERERMFIBAEEGEATKBRELEA
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ERBETEREN TS ELEEEMH
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our EEMNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

HREZER

Valuation of investment properties

REVEZIGE

We have identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
significant assumptions and judgments involved in
determining the fair value as set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BPSREMEZHESNAS —HRAREZEE R
AERZEREGEEMBRREBEMEBELR BN
REMBMRMEANE EEAREBEIRERNRR
Ko I -

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's investment properties
amounted to HK$49,154,763,000, representing
77% of the Group’s total assets, with its change in
fair value included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. During the year, an increase in
fair value of investment properties amounted to
HK$2,868,417,000.
WIS M BEREMT4FTRE EEEIRED
% /349,154,763,0008 L 16 BEEEBEEZT77%"
HRAABEEZFTAGEBRRAN -REAFE KED
XN A (EEHNN2,868,417,0007 7T ©

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BN EEEARERSER

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

BRI EMEGAEREEZEFERE:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;

o FHEMBERZTE® BEHREERMKL:

e Understanding the Valuers’ valuation basis and
methodologies, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted and key
inputs used in the valuations; and

o THREEMZEERERT A MEMSIRE A
BERFARAZERBREAERZ T EBARE: &
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters — continued

BREZSEE &

Valuation of investment properties — continued
REYXEZIGE—#&

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's investment properties
are carried at fair value based on the valuations
performed by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
The valuations are dependent on key inputs,
together with significant assumptions, that involve
judgments, including capitalisation rates and
comparable market transactions with adjustments
to reflect different locations or conditions for
completed investment properties, and comparable
market rents and transactions, occupancy rate,
discount rate, developer’'s profit and cost to
be incurred to complete the development for
investment properties under development. Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WMiFa W BHRRMTATRE BEEEIREVED
ERBUEEREEXMEMEMT ([HEM])NEE
BAREBEIR - ERMEETREEZ[ABREUR
BARBET AP S RALG BREMEERATLEER
MHER 5 (EELABURMERIKREMEZ T
EFIMRR) UEAEETSHEERRS HHEE
MEER EREHENETNERTREDEGE LD
BERAA - BEGETAAZEERMNEEEEHAH
B ERN A B mAR M 145 ER -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters — continued
BEMOmEREARELSE &

e Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuations by (i) checking the details
of rentals, on a sample basis, to the respective
underlying existing tenancy agreements; (ii)
comparing to relevant market information on
prices, rentals achieved and capitalisation
rates adopted in other similar properties in the
neighbourhood; (iii) benchmarking the discount
rates against historical data, market trend and
applicable market yields; (iv) comparing the
budget costs approved by management to actual
development costs incurred to evaluate the cost
to be incurred to complete the development for
investment properties under development.

e FBR(MEREZAEREHEHERZIHEFG:
(i ERER T R B AU E PRGN ER HEe Rk
RN E R R ZEATISERHETTELE: (i) 8
MR FE LR - M5B ME R ™S WS FET
HEESN: (VLB ER B ENTEEKAE BT
MERERTPREVEBELENERKRAMEESL
MERERNAN  UAFEEETAER 2 T EZHAR
BeamEt-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BY B R E

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matters — continued

BRERSBE &

Valuation of properties under development for sale

HIEHEZERFPYEZILE

We identified the valuation of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant
judgments associated with the assessment of
whether the properties under development for sale
were stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value (“NRV”). As disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, as at 31 March
2018, the Group’s properties under development
for sale amounted to HK$3,443,731,000. During the
year, a reversal of write-downs of properties under
development for sale amounting to HK$45,722,000
is recognised.

B HIERE 2 BERPMEZGEDRI RBREZS
B AR EREREGERVBRRERNEEEN
ARGHERIERE 2 ERTYER T IREK AR A &
BRE ([AI2RFE]) MEPREEIRY REAH
[ o B ANER A WIS SRR N sE24 P71 B8 - 7020184F3 A 31
B BEXRERELEZERESDYWERS,443,731,000
BIL-RAFE CEIFIELEZERPYE ZHOR
1 [8145,722,0007 7T ©

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s properties under
development for sale are stated at lower of cost
and NRV. The determination of the NRV involves
estimates based on prevailing market environment
and the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses) and also taking into consideration the
estimated costs to completion of the properties
under development for sale.
WMANGRE B MERMT4AEE SEER/IELEZ
ERPYERKAATBEFEREPREEER-
EEABIHES MREBERITTSRE LA HE (B
fET S ER L ET3HE M AR ) fER (5 TR E B e
FELEZERPYEZMAEA-

FAREREE &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters — continued
BEMNAEEBERELSE &

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of properties under
development for sale included:

RO ERERHECERTPYWEZAERELEZIEFE
T

e Assessing the management's process in
estimating the estimated costs to completion
of the properties under development for sale,
on a sample basis, by comparing them to the
development budget, actual development cost
of similar completed properties of the Group
and comparing the adjustments made by the
management in the estimated costs to completion
to current market data;

o WMEALEEENMEFERBIEFLEZERTYE
ZEFTRANREF SHE EEECRIBUYE
CEREH BEREREAETHE LEEEESH
5T ST AR AR B 38 B B2 8 Al T 35 BB MR LL B

e Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of
the properties under development for sale, on a
sample basis, by comparing the NRV to market
prices less estimated costs of selling expenses
achieved in the same project or comparable
properties, based on the current market
development trend, government regulations in
the real estate industry and our knowledge of the
Group’s business; and

e REBEAMMSERBE BHETENIERNLR
AITH BEEEEBO T FEKAERFEEE
FIBE AR YE T ERMGETHER KA E
TTHE MEHERELE 2 ERTYEAIZ R FE
maEEMNt: &

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the assessment
performed by the management of the Group on
the key inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their
impact of the market value and adequacy of
impairment being made.

e Mt ESEEREEMRFIEMABBETHIELN
AR AHEETEXENIZE RMEL 2 REFRD
B o

=
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B %A

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Z%Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁk% i)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B %A

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 June 2018

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

BB R B RS M B R RAEN
BEE—#&
RMEmAEERRER HARMEFAE
BB AR RS TROMERET
AR AR Y ER MBI MM ERER
FEMEE U RIEEROERT RN
e

R EA BN EIRP WA ERLEIR
AR EMBERRNBARRER AME
PSR AT 10 - AR BRE SR & P HEaUE
LEIR BRIDERER T AT ARKEELS
B SRR FE ROIER T IRAERRER
PREPBRXFRENNBEEARRBBES
MARME RIPRETBERET BBEZF
o

BE-BERSGTMT
=]

BE

201846 420H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £2018F3HA31H It F &

Revenue WA 5 3,148,894
Cost of properties sales I E S k- (110,323)
Cost of hotel and B JE KB 5 A B S RS R AN

hotel related operations (617,242)
Direct operating expenses in respect HEREME T HELEMRAX

of leasing of investment properties (118,877)
Gross profit = F 2,302,452
Other income Ha A 100,665
Fair value changes of WEMENREBEZSE

investment properties 2,868,417
Other gains and losses Hqh Uy 25 K 5 18 7 116,193
Selling and marketing expenses HERMBHEREEA (396,988)
Administrative expenses THER (522,944)
Finance costs B ER 8 (632,549)
Share of result of an associate DM —HEE AR ZEE 17 (264)
Share of result of a joint venture SMh—HeErEZER 18 (35)
Profit before taxation B BT E T 9 3,834,947
Taxation charge I8 2 11 (212,909)
Profit for the year FEH A 3,622,038
Profit for the year attributable to: EREE T

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE Z =N 3,371,517

Non-controlling interests JEVE R ER 250,521

3,622,038

Earnings per share FREEA 13

Basic (HK$) HEAEA (BT

4,068,467
(535,970)

(624,602)

(63,490)

2,844,405
133,404

3,228,003
(55,228)
(609,152)
(457,928)
(435,639)

(68)

4,647,797
(956,997)

3,690,800
3,483,150
207,650

3,690,800

0.95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEaRkREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

Profit for the year F & A

Other comprehensive income Htt2mEksE (k)
(expense)

ltems that will not be reclassified BRI 2EHSIEE

subsequently to profit or l0ss: BwmZHA -

Revaluation surplus of prepaid lease & &% & ¥ ¥ 1 FE{f
payments and property, plant HEFRBEBRYE HE Rk
and equipment transferred to RBEMBLR

investment properties
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus ### A% & YENTERS

of prepaid lease payments and HERERYE HER
property, plant and equipment RBEEHBRES ZIEERIE
transferred to investment
properties

Items that may be reclassified HEnptEM 72
subsequently to profit or 0ss: BmIHE -

Exchange differences arising on BMEBIINEBFEELE R EZR:
translation of foreign operations:

— subsidiaries —ME A A
- an associate —— A& QR
Fair value change on hedging REMEH A CEHAHRTHE
instruments in cash flow hedge NABEEE
Fair value change on available-for- At HE®RE ~
sale investments NRBEEZSD
Release of exchange reserve upon A& — M B A 7] & £ B
disposal of a subsidiary PE H & 38
Other comprehensive income FEEMEEREZ (Fx)
(expense) for the year
Total comprehensive income FEZEAKS
for the year
Total comprehensive income ERFE2EmANE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ PN
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3

3,622,038

944,711
4,315

(7,236)

(1,390)

(964)

939,436

4,561,474

4,311,799
249,675

4,561,474

3,690,800

30,500

(3,660)

(263,923)

(237,083)

3,453,717

3,229,422
224,295

3,453,717



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MR &R

At 31 March 2018 7201843 H31H

Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties KEME 14
Property, plant and equipment e TN E 15
Deposits paid for acquisition of B EVE/ERY 1)
investment properties/property, BB S
plant and equipment
Receivables related to a FH—BERER 2 BKIE
development project 14
Prepaid lease payments FENHERE 16
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 26
Interest in an associate R—EBE R 2R 17
Interest in a joint venture R—HEeEbE ER 18
Goodwill EES 19
Other assets Hih&E 20
Pledged bank deposits EEARITIFER 28
Derivative financial instruments MmESRIA 21
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 22
Properties held for sale RIELHEZME 23
Properties under development FEHEZERTME
for sale 24
Prepaid lease payments et E KA 16
Trade and other receivables Z 5 Ik H th & Y K18 25
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 26
Taxation recoverable AR B 18
Deposit in designated bank HEERDEFTHRN
account for development EERITERP ZFERK
properties 27
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 28
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 28
Bank balances and cash RITEBRKIES 28
Assets classified as held for sale DERFIEEEZEE 29
Total current assets BRBEE

49,154,763
3,966,945

76,703

185,328
529,423
262,965
142,416
651,720
56,683
4,092
31,035
16,126

55,078,199

14,995
73,848

3,443,731
17,832
1,551,271
160,109
9,667

10,276
334
475,516
3,374,884

9,132,463
43,172

9,175,635

40,808,858
3,672,631

603,034

167,262
547,255

46,420,410

14,153
184,127

1,719,141
17,832
728,497

43,307

9,182
329

2,822
6,620,318

9,339,708

9,339,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MR R

At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E qth S FE 30 1,931,585 1,221,694
Amounts due to related FEA A A R FIE
companies 31 399,318 465,878
Amounts due to non-controlling ENHEARZ
interests of subsidiaries JEVE IR I AR IR 32 107,600 120,800
Taxation payable FET IR 453,852 478,695
Unsecured notes EEARE
— due within one year — —F A E|H 33 862,989 1,645,919
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due within one year ——F A E|H 34 4,505,683 3,545,334
8,261,027 7,478,320
Liabilities associated with EAOBARKIELEL
assets classified as held for sale BEEMRBcEE 29 86,665 -
Total current liabilities wWREBEE 8,347,692 7,478,320
Net current assets REEEREE 827,943 1,861,388
Total assets less current liabilities 2EER A &G 55,906,142 48,281,798
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Amounts due to related FETRAE A A 5RIA
companies 31 2,304,908 1,622,755
Unsecured notes IR E
- due after one year — —F1& E 5 33 5,913,099 7,122,121
Bank borrowings RITEE
- due after one year ——F 1% 5| Hf 34 12,685,429 9,009,674
Deferred taxation IEEF IR 35 2,244,126 1,911,415
23,147,562 19,565,965
32,758,580 28,715,833
Capital and reserves EARR#HE
Share capital & 7 36 36,775 36,775
Reserves G AR ETEEE 25,500,755
Equity attributable to owners of RNARHA NEIEER
the Company 29,455,373 25,546,530
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 51 3,303,207 3,169,303
32,758,580 28,715,833

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 209 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chi Fai&E & 1§
DIRECTOREZ %

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ [#] (B[R ) B R A &)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRESEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

At 1 April 2017
Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations:

- subsidiaries
- an associate

Fair value change on hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge

Fair value change on available-for-
sale investments

Release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of a subsidiary

R2ITF41E BT 4563208 (138,678

R
BEENER
MELERZR.
~HE27 944,711
-—ER4RA 4315
BEREHRZERTE
DEEEY
AEHEREZ
ISHEEEE)
REE-EHELABRE
EXkA (964)

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

ER2ESKE (RX)
948,062

Depreciation attributable to
revaluation surplus

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaies (nofe 40)

Arising from changes in cash flow
estimates on amounts due to
related companies (note 31)

2017 final dividend paid
2018 interim dividend paid

ERRBEENE

WEHERT EMER
(#rit40)

HEREELRREL
BEREEHEDNEL
(H#31)

BIROTTERSHRE
DR018ERERE

At 31 March 2018

12018%3A318 36775 4563248 809,384

203,620 621,580 20,259,985 25,546,530
o 3371517 3371517

944,711
4,315

(7,236) (7,236)

(544)

(964)

(7,236) 3371517 4,311,799

(42,046) - (42,048)
- (13208  (213,298)
- (I72885)  (172,845)

202,048 (7236) 604,499 23,247,199 29,455,373

3,169,303 28,715,833
250,521 3,622,038

944,711
4,315

(7236)

(846)  (1,30)

(964)

29675 4,561,474

(77658)

- (42,008)
(26,383)  (239,681)
(1,730)  (184,575)

3,303,207 32,758,580
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRESEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

At 1 April 2016

201654718

36,775 4,563,248 125,245 194,997 - - 689,697 17,142,750 22,752,712 2,981,823 25,734,535

Profi or the year FREH _ - - - - - - 3483150 3483150 207,650 3,690,800
Revaluation surplus of prepaid ERARENEHENEE

lease payments and property, FERNE BER

plant and equipment transferred to K EEH RS

investment properties _ _ - 11,585 - - - - 11,585 18,915 30,500
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus ~ ERARENFNENRE

of prepaid lease payments and FERNE BBERSME

property, plant and equipment BRBHELCERRA

transferred to investment properties _ _ _ (1,390) _ _ N _ (1,390) (2,210) (3,660)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BEISHER

translation of foreign operations: MELERZE:

- subsidiaries -HERR _ o (263923) - - - - - (263923) - (263923)
Total comprehensive (expense) FE2ES (A3 hE

income for the year - - (263,923) 10,195 - - - 3483150 3,229,422 224295 3453717
Depreciation attributable to BRERHEENE

revaluation surplus _ _ _ (1572) _ - - 1,840 268 - 268
Avising from changes in cash flow ~ EER-HEEAATEZ RS

estimates on amount due to MEGTERAEL

a related company (note 37) (Hi#31) _ _ _ _ _ - (88117) - (e8117) - (88.117)
2016 final dividend paid BIER2016F RERS _ _ _ _ _ _ S (202266)  (202266)  (24852)  (227.118)
2017 interim dividend paid BIR0ITE R HRS _ _ _ _ _ _ - (165489)  (165.489)  (11983)  (177452)
AL31 March 2017 01737318 W5 4563248 (138678) 203,620 - - G21580 20250985 25546530 3169,303 28,715,833

Note:

deemed capital contributions from owners of the Company.

The other reserves of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling interests; (i) dilution of
interest in a subsidiary from allotment of shares by a subsidiary; and (iii)

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £2018%F3A31H [t F &

Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation B 250 Al g A 3,834,947 4,647,797
Adjustments for: TR
Interest income F B A (57,549) (49,287)
Interest expenses FEMAE 619,495 425,124
Release of prepaid lease R TENHENRIE
payments 17,832 17,629
Depreciation of property, ME - WERBRBEZITE
plant and equipment 187,439 184,035
Share of result of an associate DME—EEE QR EE 264 -
Share of result of a joint venture DME—HEEELECEE 35 68
Gain on disposal of property, HEME HMERREZ
plant and equipment & (6)
Fair value changes of REMEAARBEZES
investment properties (2,868,417) (8,228,003)
Impairment loss on property, VI SRR
plant and equipment BEEE 75,825 -
Reversal of write-downs of BERBELEZ
properties under BRERPYE MR
development for sale (45,722) (132,884)
Unrealised fair value changes TESMIAY
of derivative financial REBRALEBEES
instruments - 8,035
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE 26 255
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHB AR 2 WE (79,061) -
Foreign exchange difference on EXFHH NI QA
intercompany balances pAva-Z- (34,848) 86,982
Operating cash flows before ReteaBEE A2
movements in working capital EERER=E 1,650,266 1,959,745
Increase in inventories FE 2N (842) (408)
Decrease in properties held for sale #F{EHE 2 ME 2R 110,324 535,997
Increase in properties under FEHEZERBMEZIEM
development for sale (1,686,750) (231,438)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 & HMEWFRIEZ
other receivables (3 0) /A (792,062) 93,392
Increase (decrease) in trade and 25 RkEMENKIEZ
other payables 2 O ) 471,367 (31,139)
Changes of derivative PTESMTAZEH
financial instruments (24,735)
Cash (used in) generated from (AR REEECHS
operations (247,697) 2,301,414
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

Income tax paid EREH
- in Hong Kong — 5%
—in Macau —RFM
—in United Kingdom (“UK") — B ([HE])
Net cash (used in) from (BR)REREXK L
operating activities ReIFHE
Investing activities KEED
Acquisition of investment WEREMERERTEY
properties and costs incurred FERESZKA
for investment properties
under development
Placement of short-term bank TG BBIR TR X
deposits
Acquisition of available-for-sale WEAHEERE
investments

WEEYR e kR

Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits paid on acquisition of
investment properties/
property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of additional WEEHB AR 2 BINMER
interests in subsidiaries 40

Advance to a joint venture mM—EEEPESER
Placement of pledged bank FHREERRITER
deposits

Placement of deposit in designated 17 iUt 3 & ¥ % 17 X
bank account for development BERITEPZEX
properties

Withdrawal of short-term
bank deposits

WREEEME MK HER
REFAX N Z2EE

RREUE HIER1T I K

Interest received W ER F) 2
Proceeds from disposal of HE—REWBRRMERIE
a subsidiary 38

HEME MBI RRE
P15 SR

REDEMRITER

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Withdrawal of pledged bank
deposits

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Addition of prepaid lease payments A& BT & 7IAE

HEREMEMEHA

Net cash used in investing activies AR EEE 2 H & F58

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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(37,960)

(3)
(751)

(286,411)

(3,897,799)
(1,511,402)
(267,649)

(255,605)

(72,500)

(52,693)
(8,399)

(532)

(103)

1,038,708
40,793

9,867

(4,976,962)

(299,015)

(601)

2,001,798

(1,447,649)

(2,625)

(303,525)

(582,337)

(18,000)

(7,853)

99
662,385

13,000
(5,720)

(1,605,604)



Financing activities
Bank borrowings raised

Advances from related companies

Repayments of bank borrowings
Redemption of unsecured notes

Repayments to related companies

Interest paid

Dividends paid to owners of the
Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Repayments to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

BMERD

MEEZRITIER
BENE 2 BR

B EE R
ERTHREAF

SASHLE
AARAREAEAINZBE

RESIENGIE SIS F
A2 B S

ERTHERREERER

Issuance of unsecured notes BTEERBRIE
Net cash from financing activities ~ KERMEEH 2RSS FHE

Net (decrease) increase in cash and & MBS EEY 2

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the reporting period

OR4) #E %88
RBERNZRE MRS EFEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxEH o w8
changes

Cash and cash equivalents RI|EBMRZIRE R
at end of the reporting period, ReEEY
representing bank balances and BsR1TE#R KB

cash

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents:

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash included

in a disposal group classified
as held for sale

RehReFEBMERZIIN:

RITHESR LR E

FADBERFELEZ
HEBR 2 |ITHH
kB E
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12,216,329
1,758,872
(7,767,552)

(2,050,000)

(1,019,336)

(707,884)

(386,143)

(38,113)

(13,200)

1,992,973

(3,270,400)

6,620,318

24,992

3,374,910

3,374,884

26

3,374,910

8,914,063
729,863
(7,343,723)

(2,397,252)
(546,826)

(367,755)
(36,815)

(11,200)
4,183,072

3,123,427

3,519,621
3,108,291

(7,594)

6,620,318

6,620,318

6,620,318



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

1.

General

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company's immediate holding company
is Emperor International Group Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”"). The ultimate holding company of the Company is
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”), a limited
liability company incorporated in the BVI which is in turn
held by STC International Limited, being the trustee of The
Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor and
founder of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert
Yeung”). The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 51.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) have applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year — continued

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 44. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 44, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

— continued

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?
As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle'

Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property'’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
— continued

Except for the HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=)

2. Application of New and Revised Hon
Financial Reporting Standards (“HK

Bt 75 S AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

Kon
SS”)g

— continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39
Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised;
and

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the Directors
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application
of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Listed debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
("AFS”) investments carried at fair value as disclosed in
note 26: these are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the listed debt instruments in
the open market, and the contractual terms give rise to
cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, the listed debt instruments will continue
to be subsequently measured at FVTOCI upon the
application of HKFRS 9, and the fair value gains or
losses accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve will continue to be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss when the listed debt instruments are
derecognised; and

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

HRELE(BB)ERA
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued

Impairment:

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 April 2018 would have no significant
change as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and other receivables.
Such further impairment recognised under expected credit
loss model would be adjusted to the opening accumulated
profits as at 1 April 2018.

Hedge accounting:

As the new hedge accounting requirements will align more
closely with the Group's risk management policies, with
generally more qualifying hedging instruments and hedged
items, an assessment of the Group’s current hedging
relationships indicates that they will qualify as continuing
hedging relationships upon application of HKFRS 9.
Accordingly, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the new hedging requirements may not have a material
impact on the Group’'s current hedge designation and
hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
— continued

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as operating/financing cash flows by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
— continued

HKFRS 16 Leases - continued

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$4,554,000 as disclosed
in note 47. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements may meet the definition of a lease. Upon the
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$1,943,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$363,311,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would
be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
AFS investments and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group's and the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate interests. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted, and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3. 3. TESTHEX—Z

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values. The remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’'s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acaquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of
cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal (or any of the
cash-generating unit within group of cash-generating unit in
which the Group monitors goodwill).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate and
a joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
— continued

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the an associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

° its liabilities,
incurred jointly;

including its share of any liabilities
e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

° its expenses,
incurred jointly.

including its share of any expenses

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of
assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains
and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal
group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation including investment
properties under development for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and
measured at fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under development.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or deemed cost
upon transfer from investment properties, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost,
deemed cost or revalued amount of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
assets revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued

Transfer of assets revaluation reserve to accumulated profits
is made in relation to: (i) the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revalued item; and (ii) the excess of the depreciation
based on the revalued amount of the item over depreciation
based on the item’s original cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an income in the period in which they
are generated. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Leasing — continued
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating lease, are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“orepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model and those transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment which is accounted for as
if it was a finance lease after the transfer and included in
property, plant and equipment. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Inventories
Catering goods

Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all anticipated
costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary
course of business are included in current assets and
stated at the lower of cost (or deemed cost for those
transferred from investment properties, see accounting
policy on investment properties) and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of the properties include
land cost, construction cost and other direct development
expenditure. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less all anticipated costs to be incurred in
marketing and selling.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
‘FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: AFS financial assets, derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instruments and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instruments, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, and changes
in foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including receivables related to a
development project, deposit in designated bank account
for development properties, trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of
the loans and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on the receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

In respect of AFS debt instruments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies/non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, unsecured notes and bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries and amounts due to related companies, if the
Group revises its estimates of the timing of repayments,
the carrying amounts are adjusted to reflect the revised
estimated cash flows. The Group recalculates the carrying
amounts by computing the present value of estimated future
cash flows at the balance’s original effective interest rate.
The difference is adjusted as deemed capital contribution
by the non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company in equity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedging relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is included in the other
gains or losses line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of
a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains
and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the hedging reserve are
transferred from the hedging reserve and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or
non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or
loss recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Hedge accounting — continued

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received for
goods and services provided in the normal ordinary course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of developed properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to
purchasers pursuant to the sales agreements. Deposits
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming
operator in Macau under service arrangements for gaming
operations in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine
hall is recognised when the provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation services are rendered and the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according
to the relevant operating performance from the gaming
operator.

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon the
provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interest in an associate and interest in a joint venture,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 Investment Property, such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12
Income Taxes (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how
the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate) and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes other than the costs directly attributable to the
development of the properties, which are capitalised as
part of the cost of qualified assets, are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

— continued

Critical judgment applying accounting policies
— continued

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group'’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties located in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and Macau in the aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$13,338,000,000 as at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$11,551,400,000) are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties located in the PRC
and Macau are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities of
HK$2,078,056,000 (2017: HK$1,748,645,000) on changes in
fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
income tax in the respective jurisdictions, on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use. In respect of investment properties that are located
in Hong Kong and UK with aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$35,816,763,000 (2017: HK$29,257,458,000), the
Directors concluded that these investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in these investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation in investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of the investment properties located in Hong Kong
and UK measuring using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong
and UK, as it is expected that the Group will not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and UK.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$49,154,763,000 at 31
March 2018 (2017: HK$40,808,858,000) are measured at
fair value. The amount was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers using property valuation
techniques which dependent on key inputs and significant
assumptions that involve judgements, including:

e capitalisation rates and comparable market
transactions with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions for completed investment
properties; and

e comparable market rents and transactions, occupancy
rate, discount rate, developer’s profit and cost to be
incurred to complete the development for investment
properties under development.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes
to these assumptions and inputs would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group's investment properties. At the end of each
reporting period, the designated team works closely with
the independent firms of qualified professional property
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that
include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the Directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development for sale

The Group’'s properties under development for sale
are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. In
determining whether write-down should be made to the
Group's properties under development for sale, the Group
takes into consideration the prevailing market environment
and the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of selling expenses), and also
taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion
of the properties under development for sale. Write-down is
made if the estimated market value less estimated cost to
completion of the properties under development for sale is
less than the carrying amounts. If the actual net realisable
value on properties under development for sale is less than
expected as a result of change in market condition and/
or significant variation in the budgeted development cost,
material write-down may result.

The carrying amount of properties under development
for sale as at 31 March 2018 is HK$3,443,731,000 (2017:
HK$1,719,141,000). During the year, a reversal of write-
downs of properties under development for sale amounted
to HK$45,722,000 (2017: HK$132,884,000) is recognised.

Estimates of amounts due to related companies

The Group’s carrying amount of amounts due to related
companies as at 31 March 2018 is HK$2,704,226,000
(2017: HK$1,988,633,000) (see note 31 for details). There
is no fixed repayment terms and it was agreed with the
related companies that the Group will repay the amounts
based on the sufficiency of its operating cash flows. The
carrying amount of the amounts due to related companies
and the deemed contribution by related companies may be
adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash flows when
the Group revises its estimates of the amounts and timing
of repayment to the related companies and consequently,
affect the amounts of imputed interest to be recognised in
profit or loss over the expected life of the amounts due to
related companies.
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Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Estimated provision for impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based
on an assessment of the recoverability of debtors.
Allowances are made on trade receivables whenever there
is any objective evidence that the balances may not be
collectible. In determining whether an allowance for doubtful
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the
aging status and the likelihood of collection. Following
the identification of doubtful debts, the credit team
discusses with the relevant customers and reports on the
recoverability. Specific allowance is only made for trade
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of the debts is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amounts of debtors and doubtful debt expenses in
the periods in which such estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 March
2018 is HK$129,819,000 (2017: HK$160,832,000) (see note
25 for details).

Deferred tax assets

At 31 March 2018, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$72,290,000 (2017: HK$49,267,000) (see note 35
for details) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the Group’'s consolidated statement of
financial position. No deferred tax assets has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$932,655,000 (2017: HK$856,503,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax assets mainly depend on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes
place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #£2018F3A31H [t FE

5. Revenue 5. KA
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: REBZWADHTAT :

Hotel and hotel related operations B & OB JE AR B X
Service income from gaming operations 185 21 2 RIE U A 1,253,317 1,362,044
Hotel room income BIEEEBA 187,826 172,729
Food and beverage sales BHIHE 147,037 151,005
Others H 10,962 9,517
1,599,142 1,695,295
Sales of properties YIEHE 395,180 1,515,745
Rental income from investment properties ¥ & ¥ 3 4 Ut A 1,154,572 857,427
3,148,894 4,068,467
6. Segment Information 6. 7EEHR
The Group's operating and reportable segments are lease REBZEE R EMEB S B AMER
of properties, properties development and hotel and hotel B - WIFERROBE B E R - LAt
related operations for the purpose of resource allocation DELEIRMFHE KR -

and assessment of performance.

The segment information reported externally was analysed HNERER IR 2 D BB R TR B AN SR B B B
on the basis of their products and services supplied by FIRRMt e E@MIRB AN EHTES
the Group's operating divisions which is consistent with BEELREREE RE RSB LT EE
the internal information that is regularly reviewed by the WRERER 2 A ERHEF S LA
Executive Directors, the chief operating decision makers, REEZABEERE Bt BIEECEEN
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of Em kR 2 ZRAEEAREE -

performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise
the Group around differences in products and services.

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ [#] (B[R ) B R A &)
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Segment Information - continued

Principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Lease of — Completed investment properties
properties held for rental purpose
Properties —  Properties development and

development redevelopment for sale purpose

Hotel and — Hotel and hotel related operations
hotel related in Hong Kong and Macau,
operations including operations of mass

market, VIP room and slot
machine operations and
provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation
services for Grand Emperor Hotel
in Macau

The Executive Directors review the hotel and hotel related
operations in Macau along with that in Hong Kong and
hence they are grouped and identified as a single operating
segment — hotel and hotel related operations.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the profit
earned by or loss suffered from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, interest income,
gain on disposal of a subsidiary, finance costs, share of
result of an associate, share of result of a joint venture
and fair value changes in derivative financial instruments.
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

6. Segment Information — continued 6. 7HER—Z
Information regarding the above segments is reported BALMOE2EREmAOT
below:

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B FE2018%F3H31H IF FIZ
Segment revenue and results PEBRARKEE

E-L ON

Segment revenue

~ from external customers - REHIBEF 1,154,572 395,180 1,599,142 3,148,894
Segment results NEEE 3,878,054 275,559 301,577 4,455,190
Interest income FLEUA 57,549
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—AB AR aE 79,061
Corporate expenses, net rEBR-F8 (124,005)
Finance costs NEER (632,549)
Share of result of an associate PME—EBE AT EE (264)
Share of result of a joint venture MME—BAELECEE (35)
Profit before taxation B B A& A 3,834,947
Taxation charge BEXH (212,909)
Profit for the year FEEH 3,622,038
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6. Segment Information — continued 6. THER—Z

For the year ended 31 March 2018 — continued B F2018F3H31H I F/ZE—#
Other information Hip &R

Amounts included in the measure of TENEEER

segment results: FAZRE:
Allowance for doubtful debts RERAE 26
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERERENE

equipment 145,474 151,846
Release of prepaid lease payments FREMEENE 17,832 17,832
Fair value gain on investment properties & E#E N R EEWE 2,868,417 - 2,868,417
Impairment loss on property, MmE WEREHL

plant and equipment REEE 75,825
Reversal of write-downs of BEBELEZERR

properties under development for sale #1352 #UA 45,722
Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but EHRETNTESEFESFEERIL
not included in the measure of segment results (included in Rt AZFHA GIALEER—F5) :

corporate expenses, net):

Depreciation of property, plant and TEEERBEZIYME HRER
equipment, at corporate level RE2TE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

6. Segment Information — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Segment revenue and results

6. THEEN—Z
B E20174F3531H 1FFZF

DTEBRAREE

Segment revenue ELUN

— from external customers - RENDEP 857,427 1,515,745 1,695,295 4,068,467
Segment results EES 3,981,142 928,101 402,030 5,311,273
Interest income FBSWA 49,287
Corporate expenses, net CEER-FH (269,021)
Net loss on fair value changes in EeBMTARAEEL

derivative financial instruments ZHEEFE (8,035)
Finance costs HHRER (435,639)
Share of result of a joint venture ME—EEELEEE (68)
Profit before taxation B B B & A1 4,647,797
Taxation charge HMEZH (956,997)
Profit for the year FERF 3,690,800
Other information Hin g

Amounts included in the measure of
segment results:

Allowance for doubtful debts

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments
Fair value gain on investment properties

Reversal of write-downs of
properties under development for sale

FHEDBRER
SFAZHE:

RERE 255 -
ME BERRBZNE
- 955

RERAEMEENE - -
REMERABERS
BROBFELREZRRET

3,228,003 -

I - 132,884

- 255
148,708 149,663
17,629 17,629
- 3,228,003

- 132,884
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6. Segment Information — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2017 — continued

Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but
not included in the measure of segment results (included in
corporate expenses, net):

6.

DHEER -2

B 220173831 H 1 FEF—#&
TEHRHTRITESENENEEERY
Rt AZFIE GEATCEER—F5) :

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, at corporate level

BB E

CREEREZIME HKER

34,372

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
operating segment is disclosed as they are not regularly
provided to the Executive Directors for review.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Macau and UK.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets, other than receivables related
to a development project, AFS investments, interest in an
associate, interest in a joint venture, pledged bank deposits
and derivative financial instruments by geographical location
of the assets are detailed below:

Hong Kong £
The PRC 3
Macau P
UK HE

3,148,894

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue derived from one customer (2017:
one) contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$1,256,266,000 (2017:
HK$1,365,716,000). The revenue is related to the hotel and
hotel related operations.
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5,600 10,973,380 9,113,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FoF 5 ¥ 3 MY &
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #£2018F3A31H [t FE

7. Other Gains and Losses

Net exchange gain (loss)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(note 38)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (Note b)

Net loss on fair value changes in
derivative financial instruments

Loss arising from misappropriation

Reversal of write-downs of properties
under development for sale (Note a)

OB (Hita)

(/15£38)
(Ktitb)

EHEIRFA

of funds (Note c)

PE 3 Wres (JB51R) FER
HE — R B ARz W

TEeMTARREEZ

Ht =R g8

BOSELECERTMELZ

YR WERRBRERE

MREELEZEE (Kic)

45,722
67,235

132,884
(167,177)

79,061

(75,825)

116,193 (55,228)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors reviewed
the recoverability of the properties under development for sale
with reference to the current market environment and reversed
the previously recognised write-downs of HK$45,722,000 (2017:
HK$132,884,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, impairment indicator of
decline in asset's value due to business being suspended was
noted in a subsidiary which is holding a hotel in Hong Kong.
The Directors conducted an impairment assessment on the hotel
properties, leasehold improvements and other assets by reviewing
their recoverable amounts. An impairment loss of HK$75,825,000 in
respect of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2018 was
recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was aware that an
ex-senior casino cashier of a subsidiary of the Company in Macau
had embezzled some of the chips on hand (“Misappropriation of
Funds”) of the Group. The matter was reported to The Inspectorate
of Macao Judiciary Police and the ex-senior casino cashier was
arrested for criminal investigation. The court judgement was
obtained and the person had pleaded guilty and was sentenced to
imprisonment.

The loss arising from the Misappropriation of Funds amounted to
HK$12,900,000 net of HK$100,000 returned by the ex-senior casino
cashier, which was charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the prior year. Chips on hand under note 25 “Trade and other
receivables” were also adjusted downward by the same amount to
reflect such loss for that year.

£ E (BB ERAT
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8. Finance Costs

Interest on: RSN
—RITEE
— B ERE

— bank borrowings
— unsecured notes
— amounts due to related companies

— amounts due to a shareholder of
an associate

— e R R R RR
— B — M2 QR RRR

e

327,707 235,101
360,067 286,857
46,463 46,424

691

Imputed interest expense on
amounts due to related companies

e FE R

FEBAE R RIRIEZ

734,928

16,811

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of & : RA B EEKAF 2
B & RLFIAE

qualifying assets

611,892

751,739

(132,244) (186,768)

RITE M

Bank charges

619,495
13,054

632,549

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
capitalisation rates ranging from 2.94% to 3.85% (2017:
from 3.00% to 3.33%) per annum.

RAFEZERCEERARTIR — R E
BB ELS WIRENMEF L2 94%%E
3.85 % (20174F : 3.00%%3.33% )5t & °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &
BR i A 2k A

9. Profit Before Taxation 9.

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:

Staff cost, including directors’

B 35 B4 A1 2 4R -

BIXA (BRESEME)

remuneration 693,979 635,476

Retirement benefit schemes contributions iE k& Fl| 5t & 4 % 15,612 14,592
709,591 650,068

Auditor’s remuneration ZERT BN & 8,155 7,834
Allowance for doubtful debts RARB A 26 255
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERRENE

equipment 187,439 184,035
Release of prepaid lease payments fERIENMEERIE 17,832 17,629
Commission expenses in gaming BEEBHERAX

operations (included in selling and (BFtABER

marketing expenses) MiZHEER) 259,943 310,839
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEVMX2EEHERS

rented premises 3,805 8,696
Cost of properties held for sale ERRR/FAXZ

recognised as an expense BELEMEMR 110,323 535,970
Cost of inventories in respect of ERRAERI ZBE R

hotel and hotel related operations B IE AR E T 'R A

recognised as an expense 51,448
and after crediting: EEFTA:
Interest income from a joint venture —EEeEREZMERWA 12,908
Interest income from AFS investments  AIft H &R E 2 7 B A -
Other interest income H A F 2 WA 36,379
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE B REE R

plant and equipment 6

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %}
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10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments

(i) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and CO, are as follows:

2018 20185
Fees e
Other emoluments: Hife:
Salaries and other benefits (ote a) B REMEN (Hita)
Performance related incentive payment X EAE 2 BEZE (##b)
(Note b)
Retirement benefit schemes RNERGEIHRR
contributions
Total emoluments ame
2017 20178
Fees ik
Other emoluments: Hitfe:
Salaries and other benefits (Note a) HEREMEH (Hita)
Performance related incentive payment  SXREAEH 2 BEFE (MFb)
(Note b)
Retirement benefit schemes BIERIFEISRR
contributions
Total emoluments #me
Notes:

(a) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor vehicles,
yacht, club debentures and membership.

(b) The performance related incentive payment is determined with
reference to the operating results taking into account certain
adjustments, individual performance and comparable market
statistics for the year.

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
are also chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by them as chief executives.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as Directors.

10. g; FTEITBRAEZHMERE
B &M
(i) EZERFETHAEMS
RAFE EEFZRFEBTHRAEMNMS

ﬁﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁw

1,410

12,060
14,000
18 518

13,088 27,988

1,410

11,319

11,000

484

CE

(a) HMRBRABEERFEERTE
fE-grEsREsE-

(b) ERBEME EBFBEDZRFEN
ZIEEEREWERFENETHE
BARBR R AL BT 5 BB EE -

wSEAE L S BUR L R AR
ZEBTBAE BEREORE 2
e amREERSETRITRABLRM
RIS PSRN S

AR EFIRATERME EZIERES
SLEIEA R R MK B EH AR AR
52 8RB - LA EPURIEMITE S M8
MIFMTE RN MG E 2IEARERE
EESERHEZ RGO -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mal

FoF 5 ¥ 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’  10. %% : i%ﬁrﬂlkézmﬂﬁﬁﬁ
SFH_ 2

Emoluments — continued

(i)

o=l
Employees’ emoluments (ii) lEEFHEM
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in EAREESERRTFMALTH 3%
the Group, three (2017: three) were Directors whose (20175 :3%) REE KEZMEH
emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments R EX 8T 2% (20174 : 28 ) T =
of the remaining two (2017: two) individuals were as FMA T 2 F RN T
follows:

Salaries and other benefits HehEMETR

Retirement benefit schemes RIKEFFTBIH K
contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEHMNFLATEE

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T £5,000,000/%8 7T
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000  9,500,001% 7T 2 10,000,000% 7T
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,0017% 7t &11,000,000/% 7T

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the five RREFE AEEHEZNTARA
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or EEHMALTEHM EAMAKREH
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of LR IMARE 2 FE S ERKR KB
office for both years. &

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10. EZ - FZTBRAEZHMERE
Emoluments — continued EEHM 4~

(iii) Retirement benefit schemes

/1=

(i) 324K 58 7 5 &

The Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“*ORSO” Scheme) and the mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
and the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the Macau and PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes
contributions were HK$15,612,000 (2017: HK$14,592,000).

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
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%18 8 =9 E AR FURINGT 8l o 45T
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ZRAPTET L R RS FTIE 2 (]
e AR E R B RSB 2R B Al
RHEHED NEBRMNEFARER
W B IR

AEEZRFIRH BB AR ZEER
T Bl A B RPIERT e P B ER AT & 38
ZBERERRAKEFF B 2K E - A
SE/AREB HM 2 X E B DL RZ
FRKEFE B L ABRERER
RHES ANEBEEZFRINENGT
SIRAE B EERNZRETEIZ R
TEHETTHR

RAFE  RIKEFEFEERERE S
15,612,000/% 7T, (20174F : 14,592,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #£2018F3A31H [t FE

11. Taxation Charge 1. BiIELH

Taxation charge comprises: MIE B :

Current tax RNEATR I
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENED 83,197
Macau Complementary Tax (“CT") RIS mAER ([WmEiKl) 50,082
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax BB EPTIS 4,988
The PRC Capital Gains Tax B & ARG 3,004
UK Income Tax REIPTSH 2,104

143,375

Reversal of CT provision in prior years [0l i@ 4 /£ 8 75 75 B 1

(96,178)

714
856

1,570

Underprovision in prior years TEBETR

CT WA

Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMEM
Deferred taxation (note 35) EIERLIE (H13£35)

164,142

212,909

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. Pursuant to the
CT Law, the CT assessment on the estimated assessable
profit in a year of assessment will lapse in five consecutive
years after that year of assessment. At the end of the
reporting period, the Directors reassessed the adequacy
of the CT provision and determined to reverse part of the
Group's relevant CT provision of HK$96,178,000 for the
2012 year of assessment (2017: HK$70,974,000 for the
2011 year of assessment) accordingly.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The PRC Capital Gains Tax is calculated at the rate
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction during the year.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of 20%
of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ [#] (B[R ) B R A &)
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EBMNEBHR D BIREREFE 2 (H5H7E
AR F R TR E16.5%aT & »

BREB IO BIEMEFE 2 A R A
F 2 WA EA2%TE - RIBFFTERE - 3
R EEARBEHERBRR 2 BT
R LA R FERErHEE R TR W -
RBERR ESpmafBE s TRt
EAEL T - WIR LR E B R E oy A&
B 2012F P RS 2 R i B
96,178,0005 7T, (20174F : 2011 R FfE
70,974,000/ 7T ) °

BIEPRCEMEEE ([EMERE])
MO EEBEAEIRIES P EIK B AR
PMEAF & 2K E25% o

WAEE FRERFEHDRIENEE
BB TR K B o

B FER TP BIRRIEERE 2 (3 R
B 2 S P B R 20%3 18 -



11. Taxation Charge — continued M. BlESH -2

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the FNTIA S A AR S B R PTE 2 R
profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or Al A AR AT -

loss as follows:

Profit before taxation B 258 A g A 3,834,947 4,647,797
Tax charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax BEHEBNEH16.5%THEZ

of 16.5% HIA X H 632,766 766,887
Tax effect of share of result of SME—HEBERAREEZ

an associate M e 44 _
Tax effect of share of result of SME—HEELEEEL

a joint venture Biig s 11
Tax effect of income not taxable for BB MEBERRBAZ

tax purpose BT E (532,416) (415,309)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ BRI & AR H 2

for tax purpose mgEE 166,082 423,581
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRI EERNIBEE

not recognised (24,317) (3,041)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KRERMEEEB 2 MEFE 28,793 18,974
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATIRERMEEZRE 2

differences not recognised M 16,116
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B B A 8| A E b 5] /A1 &

operating in other jurisdictions KERERR 22 32,595 221,937
Reversal of CT provision in prior years & [0]i& & /€ 8 7 F B 18 (96,178) (70,974)
PRC Capital Gains Tax paid BN EERFEH 3,004 -
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREILE 1,570 1,435
Others Hi 960 (2,620)
Taxation charge for the year FRMEZ N 212,909 956,997

Emperor International Holdings Limited 3 2 & 8] (BIFR ) B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

12. Dividends 12. R E

FRERIED IR ZBE

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of BEIR2017FE RER B
2017: HK$0.058 per share HI0.058 7T (20174 :
(2017: HK$0.055 per share B2016F 2 REIR B &
in respect of 2016) & 1%0.05577T) 213,298
Interim dividend paid in respect of B2IK2018F R HAfR B, ¢
2018: HK$0.047 per share B IR0.047% 7T (20174 -
(2017: HK$0.045 per share M017TFEZRERER
in respect of 2017) & %0.0457%7T) 172,845
386,143
The final dividend of HK$0.061 per share in respect of BEEEFREHZ2018F3A3BIEFE
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: final dividend = 1%0.0617% 7T (20174 : R EA PR B &M%
of HK$0.058 per share) amounting to approximately 0.058% 7T) 2 RHAMR B+ $£49224,330,000
HK$224,330,000 has been proposed by the Directors and is BT EEFRREREERRRAFAS L
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming HERFIEE -
annual general meeting.
13. Earnings Per Share 13. B REF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RNABEE AEIEEREREF THRIEIA
to the owners of the Company is based on the following TEEE
data:

Earnings ZF

Earnings (profit for the year attributable #tst ESRERNEF] 2 & F)
to owners of the Company) for the (KR AR A

purpose of basic earnings per share FEIEFERF) 3,483,150

Number of shares B3 EE

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ Bt ESREARFKFER 2

shares in issue for the purpose of BT ERINE TS

basic earnings per share <L ssird | 3,677,545,667
Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were F A R {8 4 2 A 7 4 T {m] VB 7 BEE R
no dilutive potential ordinary share for both years. B& - T 2 5 GRS & R o

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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14. Investment Properties

At fair value

At beginning of the year
Exchange realignment
Additions

Disposals

Transfer from investment properties
under development to completed
investment properties

Transfer from investment properties
to investment properties under
development (Note a)

Transfer from completed investment
properties to property, plant and

BOAEE
RE 35,384,858
SNE R 1,153,152
NE 4,352,291
HE -
BRRTRENEERZ

BEMBEENE

1,623,284

BEREMFEERZE

ERAREME

(Hizta) (280,590)
BEEERERENEERS

mE HERRME

14. REYE

5,424,000
189,876
198,151

(1,623,284)

280,590

337,257

4,806,590

equipment (Note b) (note 15) (Hiztb) (Hiit15) (415,982)
Transfer from prepaid lease BEMNHERERDE.
payments and property, plant BERIBERZ
and equipment to completed BERBENE
investment properties (Note c) (Hiztc) -
Increase in fair value, net ARABEEMFE 2,531,160
At end of the year RER 44,348,173
Notes:
(a) During the year ended 31 March 2018, certain completed investment

properties were transferred to investment properties under
development upon commencement of development of the properties
with a view to earn rentals and for capital appreciation at a fair value
of HK$280,590,000 at the date of transfer.

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, certain properties originally

held for rental purpose were classified to property, plant and
equipment upon commencement of owner-occupation at fair value of

HK$415,982,000 (2017: HK$53,800,000) at the date of transfer.

NGRS 27671772 8,831,000 36,502,772
1,343,028 (98,055)  (359,385)  (457,440)
4,550,442 965,930 604593 1570523

= (13,000) - (13,000)
4,440,885  (4,440,885) -

U] (53,800) - (53,800)
= 31,800 - 31,800
VLTS 2,439,306 788677 3,228,003
CCRLINGEN 35384858 5,424,000 40,808,858

o=

(a)

REE2018FE3A31B I FE - ETE %

REEMERMERKERRDERE
ERPREWE YARKDESRER
HRESERE RERAMZALEER

280,590,000/ 7T °

(b)

REE2018FE3A31B L FEE - E T VA

FHERE MG 2 MWERF®R B BRRER
H A 7 B1E415,982,000% 7T (20174
53,800,000 7T ) % /1) 5 - # 38 R

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RER MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

14. REYE 2

14. Investment Properties — continued

Notes: — continued

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group leased out
some of the owned-occupied properties with prepaid lease
payments for rental income. The properties were transferred to
investment properties and measured at fair value at the date of
transfer accordingly. The fair value of the properties at the date of
transfer was HK$31,800,000. The gain on revaluation, amounting to
HK$30,500,000 was credited to the assets revaluation reserve and
non-controlling interests directly.

The carrying amount of investment properties comprises
properties situated in:

Hong Kong BE
The PRC H
Macau B P
UK [

et —4&

(c) REZE2017F3A31BLFE  REH N
BAEEFELASTEEMENESTA
WA -ZEVECEHBEREMELR
EBRAPERIEANEENE - WERSE
B # 2 A Jo {8 8 A31,800,000/8 70 ° &=
B U #530,500,0008 TR HETALESE
ElA-PE et e Fm

REYE 2 REE BB T T8
=

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
PRELIEEN 28,604,575
10,519,700  IEECRIelHElele
EREEEII 2,444,900
3,680,678 562,883
R 40,808,858

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
each of the reporting period and at dates of transfers have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
those dates by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
and Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers not connected with
the Group, in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

For completed investment properties, the valuations have
been arrived at with reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties and rental income
using the applicable market yields for the respective
locations and types of properties.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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14. Investment Properties — continued

For investment properties under development, the
valuations have been arrived at assuming that the
investment properties will be completed in accordance with
the development proposals and the relevant approvals for
the proposals have been obtained. The valuations include
key factors such as the market value of the completed
investment properties, which are estimated with reference
to recent sales evidence of similar properties in the
nearest locality as available in the relevant market with
adjustments made by the valuers to account for differences
in the locations and other factors specific to determine the
potential sales proceeds, and deducting the development
costs and required profit margin from the investment
properties which are derived from the interpretation of
prevailing investor requirements or expectations at the
valuation dates.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in investment
properties under development amounted to HK$56,510,000
(2017: HK$105,521,000).

The unrealised gain on property revaluation included in
profit or loss of current year is HK$2,868,417,000 (2017:
HK$3,228,003,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

14. REME &

RBERTPREVMEMNS HELIBREERE
WERSRIFERFTEERMIEL B3
R EIDERBIE - HEBEREEKK
BYEsmESETEERER YR
HARMABRE 5 AT B & i R AR 2 FIHR
MFRETHR MAEMNEEAEUEER
REMEBRRELFR  UETELH
EZEHIE BN EYE 2 BHEK
ARFrESKZ FEE (I EHFIRER

BREENHERRZ ZKABEHMHER
") -

RAEAFE BRAIBVEVWENERL
A B F 58 556,510,000 7T (20174 :
105,521,000 7T) ©

AARNFEEGIMESEGHZAER
I %5 /&2,868,417,000% 7T (20174 -
3,228,003,000/& 7T) ©

KGR 2 AREER NEZE
RERBRARE 2R AE-

REEFER  BHEE AR HE3R -

FRHERMEEZS  NTREHER
HEREMEZ A BEIAEE 2ER
(LERATERA Z A ERM R B8 AR
B)  UERBA R EEAECBARE L
ABRREEARBEMAEMBAZARE
BFR (BE1E34R) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

Hong Kong

B

Retail shops/complexes 16,883,840 15,723,780  Level 3
TERE/B5 E3
Retail shops/complexes 3,260,300 3,135,500  Level 3
TEHBR/ 5% 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %}

Direct comparison Market unit rate, mainly taking into
method with market account the time, location, frontage and
unit rate as the key size, between the comparables, which
input ranged from HK$6,900 to HK$670,000
(2017: HK$5,800 to HK$730,000) per

square foot

ERUEE UMBEN TRENRS FELHRTLENERZ

BeEET2EAEE BN LB BEARA) ENTET
J79R6,9007 7L £670,0007 7T (20174 :
5,800/ L E730,000% TT)

Direct capitalisation
method with market
unit rent and
capitalisation rate as
the key input

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area
using direct market comparables and
taking into account of time, location,
frontage and size of properties, which
ranged from HK$49 to HK$1,300 (2017:
HK$35 to HK$1,400) per square foot

ERAALE AT5E SRES BETSERTHSNEZAE

fideREAMEES BREDE GRHARNEZHE LE
IEGAHE BEARKN ENTFEFAROET

21,3008 7 (20175 : 358 L2 1,400%
)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the properties, prevailing
market condition, which ranged from
2.4% 10 3.6% (2017: 2.4% 10 3.7%) per
annum

EALE EHAREERSRAZER L
$7RE BADERR ENTEF24%
£3.6% (2017 : 24%F3.7% )

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 £ &= @ (B[R ) AR A )

14. REWE &

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FERATEEMLELARENE
BB ENEC AR BEARE
M RZ e

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value, and vice
versa.

>

ARER
TiRe

DA EEY

‘C\>
ot
=l
N

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

Exfckus ARABEME
RZ A



14. REYE &

14. Investment Properties — continued

Retail/commercial 2,407000 2,323,000 Level 3 Residual method
properties under The key inputs are:
development
BRTTE/HENE £34 REE
LN -G R
(1) Gross development Gross development value on completion The higher the gross
value basis, mainly taking into account the development value, the higher
time, location, design, frontage, layout the fair value, and vice versa.
and size between the comparables
and the properties, which ranged from
HK$44,000 to HK$100,000 (2017:
HK$40,000 to HK$95,000) per square
foot
(1) FEEEE BRENEENFENEE T2EHRT HRAEESR ALEEY
HENERZENER B LE & & RZIMRe
i BEE BREKN ENTETS
44,0007 7T £100,000% T (20175 -
40,0007 7L £95,000% TT)
(2) Developer's profit  Developer's profit at 15% (2017: 12% The higher the developer's
to 15%) taking into account the profit, the lower the fair value,
construction progress of the property and vice versa.
) BREER BEBZEFB15% (20175 1 12%F EREHENES AAAEREM
15%) - 5 REME L TRER 52 e
Offices premises 5,460,690 4,769,690 Level 3 Direct comparison Market unit rate, mainly taking into A significant increase in the
method with market account the time, location, quality, market unit rate used would
unit rate as the key floor level and size, between the result in a significant increase
input comparables, which ranged from in the fair value of the
HK$9,100 to HK$45,900 (2017: investment properties, and
HK$7,600 to HK$37,600) per square foot vice versa.
#RENE £30 EEMEE UTREN TEELES IEEARUMRNENZ  AEATIELELAEANS

BefrAIREARE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &

BEE-ER BERA)ENTS
F71R9,100% 7. 245,900 7t (20174
7,600/% 7L £37,6007% 7T )

SFEENR AR BEARS
mRZTRe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

Industrial premises

IEm%

Residential premises

The PRC
48

Retail shops/complexes

TERR/ A5

1,969,495

2,154,760

114,700

1,807,795

934,810

102,500

Level 3

£38h

Level 3

£30

Level 3

£30

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

EREEE DGENL
BefEATEGARE

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

EREBA DHGEL
BefrAIREARE

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

ERUEE ITHEL
BefrAIREARE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3

14. REWE &

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
floor level and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from
HK$2,100 to HK$9,300 (2017: HK$2,000
to HK$7,900) per square foot

THEMRS TELHRALENERZ
B UEEE BERA) ENTE
FHR2,100% 7T 29,300/ T (20175 :
2,000 L E7 9007 L)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
view, floor level and size, between
the comparables, which ranged
from HK$5,600 to HK$38,000 (2017:
HK$5,200 to HK$26,500) per square foot

TEENRS TELHRALBMERL
BREE EX 28 EERANEN
T8 775,600 L £38,00075 T (2017
5200/ 226,500/ )

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, frontage and
size, between the comparables, which
ranged from HK$2,100 to HK$4,000
(2017: HK$1,700 to HK$3,700) per
square foot

THENES TEERALBNERZ
B g BEERKN ENEETH
IR2,10078 7L 24,000/ 7T (20174 : 1,700
BT ES700A7T)

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FARATSEMEEABENS
SIBRANELAREEAEL
Rz %

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRATSENESARENS
SIFREME AR BEARS
Rz W%

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

PR TIS BE & KIBIE MG
IBRENEZ AR BEABY
M- RZ IR



14. Investment Properties — continued

Retail/commercial
properties under
development

YRTTE/HENF

Retail shops/complexes

TERR/ B

2,119,000 1,758,000 Level3
F3M

1,491,000 848,000 Level 3
ERE

Residual method
The key inputs are:

BEE
IRGAEEA:

14. REYE &

(1) Gross development Gross development value on completion

value

(1) REBEER

(2) Level adjustments

(2 BEREZ

(3) Developer's profit

(3) BEAZEN

Direct capitalisation
method with market
unit rent and
capitalisation rate as
the key input

EREARLE Ui5E
frfi e AR EER
IREAEE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &

basis, mainly taking into account the
time, location, design, frontage, layout
and size between the comparables
and the properties, which ranged
from HK$4,612 to HK$12,076 (2017:
HK$3,964 to HK$10,377) per square foot
RERAENFEREE FEEHRY
HEMERZENERHE L &
i BEE BRENN ENTETAR
46128212076/ 7 (20174 : 3,964
BILE10,3778T)

Level adjustment on individual floor of
the properties ranged from about 55%
t0 95% (2017: 55% to 95%) on specific
levels

NERRIEBZBERE NTHEEEL
4155%%95% (20174 : 55%595% )

Developer's profit at 30% (2017: 30%),
taking into account the construction
progress of the property

BRELEFH30% (20175 :30% ) &5
RIMEZTRER

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area
using direct market comparable and
taking into account of time, location,
frontage and size of properties, which
ranged from HK$65 to HK$77 (2017:
HK$84 to HK$94) per square foot

SRES BENGERTLBNELTE
BEER L RNECERE NEB
ERRAN ENTETHREETETT
BT (20175 4B L EMET)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was 5.25% (2017:
5.5%) per annum

ERfcR S REEREMAZEAL B
EME BATEMRRL £BEF525%
(2017%:55%)

The higher the gross
development value, the higher
the fair value, and vice versa.

HEARELS MAABEY
B RZIR-

The higher the upward level
adjustment, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

BELHELR MAREELS
RZ TR

The higher the developer's
profit, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

ERmaNEs AAABEY
Rz %

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa.

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

EXfekum ARABEME
RZ e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

14. Investment Properties — continued

14. REWE &

Office premises 6,795,000 6,398,000

Macau

-l

Retail shops/complexes 2,775,800 1,061,900

TERR/ A5

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %}

Level 3

£38h

Level 3

ERE

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area
using direct market comparable and
taking into account of time, location,
frontage and size of properties, which
ranged from HK$64 to HK$78 (2017:
HK$55 to HK$68) per square foot

BREL BENHRERIHENELTE
BEER T RDEZER UE B
ERRAN ENTETHR64ETETS
BT (201745 558 L2687 TT)

Direct capitalisation
method with market
unit rent and
capitalisation rate as
input

ERERME UATHE
fif e RER KR
PN 4

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of properties, prevailing market
condition, which was 4.25% (2017:
4.5%) per annum

BRLE EHREERSRAZERL -
E0HE BAMSH £AEF425%
(2017%:4.5%)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, frontage and
size, between the comparables, which
ranged from HK$7,000 to HK$205,000
(2017: HK$6,000 to HK$162,000) per
square foot

EREBA NDHEL THEUES TESHRILENERNZ
RefEhATEHASE BE UE BHERA) ENTET

7R 7,0007% 7T £205,0007 7T (20174 -

6,000/ L £162,000A )

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 £ &= @ (B[R ) AR A )

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value, and vice
versa.

>
=

ot
X
N

AEE Al
ke

[EEY

=

J

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

BAEEER ANABEELE
RZ TR

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

FrRA IS BAH S REE MG
SIBRENEZ AR BEABL
M RZ IR



14. Investment Properties — continued

Retail/commercial
properties under
development

BRTTE/HENE

Residential premises

fE

Sk

- 1343000 Level3
£3h

42,500 40,000 Level 3
ERE

Residual method
The key inputs are:

BEA
IRGAEER:

14. REYE &

(1) Gross development Gross development value on completion

value

(1) FEBEER

(2) Level adjustments

(2 BEREZ

(3) Developer's profit

(3) BEHEN

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

ERUEE ITRENL
BefrAIREARE

basis, mainly taking into account the
time, location, design, frontage, layout
and size between the comparables
and the properties, which ranged from
HK$33,495 to HK$167,476 per square
foot in 2017 (2018: nil)

FEREENMELEE FTLARTL
EMERZENER I BR LB T
BHE BREAN ER2017TENT BT
77R33,495% T E 167,476/ 7T (20184 :
&)

Level adjustment on individual floor of the
properties ranged from about 20% to
35% on specific levels in 2017 (2018: nil)

17FMERPIEEZ EERE N TET
BEZ2H20%235% (2018% &)

Developer's profit at 7.5% in 2017 (2018:
nil), taking into account the construction
progress of the property

0175 REE 25 HAT7.5% (20185 :
8) WARANELIRER

Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
view, floor level and size, between the
comparables, which was HK$7,700
(2017: HK$7,200) per square foot

mHENRE TELGRALENERL
BENEEX 2B BERAN EA
FEHRT, 70057 (20175 17,2008 7T)

The higher the gross
development value, the higher
the fair value, and vice versa.

RELREELS MAABEY
B R2IMAe

The higher the upward level
adjustment, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

EELrI85 UALEESS
RZ IR

The higher the developer's
profit, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

ERmaNEs AALEEY
£ R R

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase
in the fair value of the
investment properties, and
vice versa.

RIS BH S REE MG
SIBREANE L DABEARE
M- RZ IR

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

14. Investment Properties — continued 14. REWE =

UK
%E
Retail shops/complexes/ 3,400,088 562,883 Level 3 Direct capitalisation Monthly rent, based on internal floor area A significant increase in the
offices/residential method with market using direct market comparables and market unit rent used would
premises unit rent and taking into account of time, location, result in a significant increase
capitalisation rate as frontage and size of properties, which in the fair value of the
the key input ranged from HK$28 to HK$472 (2017: investment properties, and
HK$21 to HK$434) per square foot vice versa.
TERR BB/ HAE £38R EREMMUA UTEE BAEE REDZARILENEZ N P)ﬂ%%m%—“ Riika Mﬁ%ﬂuﬁ%
/EENE s REALEER REAE jriﬁﬁ&#%%z&% i E B SIHRENEZ AR BEAES
EL N ¢ HARA) ANFEERRBETZI2 M RZHAe

BT (20175 21 BT EABTT)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the ~ The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value,
nature of properties, prevailing market and vice versa.
condition, which ranged from 2.7% to
3.5% (2017: 3% to 3.2%) per annum

ER(cR SHARBEASMAZERAL W EA(LEBE MALBESE
$7RE BaOnERE ENTEF2I%  R2T%e
3, 5%(2017¢ 3%Z3. 2%)

Retail shops/complexes/ 280,590 - Level 3 Residual method
offices under The key inputs are:
development
$ETERG/ 8 BE:
B5%/HLE IEGARBAR:
(1) Gross development Gross development value on completion The higher the gross
value basis, mainly taking into account the development value, the higher

time, location, design, frontage, layout the fair value, and vice versa.
and size between the comparables and

properties, which ranged from HK$53 to

HK$367 (2017: nil) per square foot

(1) FZeEE RERAENAROEE TEQHRAL  HEEEEHS NAAEEM
{}%%W%%%Wﬁﬁ R BRI
BUE BREAN ENFETLHREE
TEITET (20175 : &)

(2) Developer's profit — Developer’s profit at 9% (2017: nil), taking  The higher the developer's
into account the construction progress of profit, the lower the fair value,

the property and vice versa.

(2 BREBZER BREZENAM% (0175 &) i RZ  ERESNES MAAEEM
MELTIRER [ 2.

(3) Capitalisation rate ~ Capitalisation rate, taking into account the ~ The higher the capitalisation
capitalisation of rental income potential, rate, the lower the fair value
nature of the properties, prevailing and vice versa.

market condition, which ranged from
2.75% to 4% (2017 nil) per annum

(3) BAfE BAf % ﬁéﬁ.ﬁr&@&mﬁéwuﬁm EXcxHdm AR ERBE.
nEIHE BOTMSRL ENTEE R
2.75%%4% (20175 1 &)

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ &£ @ (BIFX) AR A
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &R



14. Investment Properties — continued

Joint operation relating to investment properties
under development in the PRC

Some subsidiaries of the Company, Expert Pearl Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Expert Pearl Group”) entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “JV Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (the “JV Partner”) to jointly develop
investment property under development located in Shanghai
(the “Property”). Expert Pearl Group and the JV Partner
intend to develop the Property into a commercial complex
(the “PRC Project”). Under the JV Agreement, the saleable
floor area would be split between the parties in equal shares
after the completion of the development of the Project.
Pursuant to the terms of the JV Agreement, the PRC Project
is accounted for as a joint operation.

In previous year, the Group filed an appeal against the
JV partner, which was rejected and the JV agreement
shall continue to have effect. For details, please refer to
2011/2012 annual report.

As at 31 March 2018, the major asset in the PRC Project
is the investment properties under development with fair
value of HK$2,119,000,000 (2017: HK$1,758,000,000). The
site preparation work had been completed at the end of
the reporting period, the valuation has been arrived at by
adopting residual approach.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount of HK$185,328,000 (2017:
HK$167,262,000) represents the construction cost incurred
by the Group and receivable from the JV Partner.

14. REME &

EEEP\("? BZRPREMEZEEE
A R) 2 M@ A R Expert Pearl Investment
Limited & E Ff & A 7] (5578 7% [ Expert
Pearl®% @ ] ) #2Shanghai Zhangxi
Investment Development Co., Ltd. ([& %
BHEDIIvEEmE (6 m=E]) A
HEAFRUN LM ERFPIREME
(T#Z%]) ° Expert Pearl £ B 2 & 251+
Bz MEERARMEREXNE ([HEE
Bl) - BIEBEEWHE ST NE KR TK
BB 2 ERBEEROERE S IEEEE
& o RIRS SR REIEA ARA
BEFEG

RIBEFE  AEEHAEHHRE iR
ZEFEEOBAEHEBELEN -6
SHIE B 2R2011/20125F 3 -

M2018F3HA31H A HIEBEHNTE
BERERDPELEME EAAE
& A2,119,000,000/8 7T (20174 :
1,758,000,00058 7T ) ° MR TVEC 1R
SHIRTEN - WERARERETHE.

MR201853A31H » REE D EARESEK
RN EI & SR 2 FIE ££1185,328,000
7B 7T (20174 £ 167,262,00058 7T ) °

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7

/\E
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 4% @x



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

15. W% - BB R RHE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

COST OR DEEMED COST BARRERE
At 1 April 2016 #H201654A18 212,073 2,214,785 422,444 1,095,401 481,287 4,425,990
Exchange realignment HMNEHE (420) - (221) - (341) (982)
Additions NE - - 4,575 312,060 28,784 345,419
Transfer to completed BRZEENRENE

investment properties - (1,146) - - - (1,146)
Transfer from completed BRERABENRENE

investment properties (note 14) (HiE14) - 53,800 - - - 53,800
Disposals HE - - - - (4,909) (4,909)
At 31 March 2017 #201743A318 211,653 2,267,439 426,798 1,407,461 504,821 4,818,172
Exchange realignment SMETHE 693 - 365 - 592 1,650
Additions RE 32,016 - 36,512 140,155 74,703 283,386
Transfer from completed BREAEENRENE

investment properties (note 14) (Hiit14) 415,982 - - - - 415,982
Transfer from hotel properties under BEREENEBREBENE

construction to hotel properties - 1,647,616 - (1,547,616) - -
Transfer to assets classified as BREZHIBARBELEZEE

held for sale (note 29) (H7i229) (57,229) - (58,521) - (7,921) (123,671)
Disposals HE - - - - (16,794) (16,794)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) HE—HBLAR (H:#38) - - - - (16) (16)
At 31 March 2018 H2018F3A31A 603,115 3,815,055 405,154 - 555,385 5,378,709
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERAE
At 1 April 2016 #H201654A18 55,469 333,431 281,443 - 396,902 1,067,245
Exchange realignment HMEFHE (97) - (184) - (248) (529)
Transfer to completed BREZEENRENE

investment properties - (294) - - - (294)
Provided for the year KEEZEE 4,854 55,301 52,986 - 70,894 184,035
Eliminated on disposal HEREE - - - - (4,816) (4,816)
At 31 March 2017 H2017F3A31H 60,226 388,438 334,245 - 462,732 1,245,641
Exchange realignment INERE 489 - 356 - 169 1,014
Provided for the year RERZEB 10,254 93,315 40,928 - 42,942 187,439
Transfer to assets classified as BREDFARELEZEE

held for sale (note 29) (Hit29) (23,603) - (51,542) - (6,565) (81,710)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - - - - (16,442) (16,442)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) HE—BHBAR (#:138) - - - - 3) (3)
Impairment loss recognised (note 7(b)) RZBEEE (Mit7b)) - 73,958 1,661 - 206 75,825
At 31 March 2018 H2018%3A31A 47,366 555,711 325,648 - 483,039 1,411,764
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2018 #2018%F3H31R 555,749 3,259,344 79,506 - 72,346 3,966,945
At 31 March 2017 #201743A31H 151,427 1,879,001 92,553 1,407,461 42,089 3,572,531

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3



15. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued

The above items of property, plant and equipment other
than hotel properties under construction are depreciated on
a straight line basis of the following rates per annum:

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold land and
buildings

Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Hotel properties

Leasehold improvements 10 - 20%

Others 10 - 33"3%

As lease payments for land and buildings elements cannot
be allocated reliably, the entire lease is reclassified as a
finance lease and includes in the carrying amount of the
leasehold land and buildings.

The carrying values of leasehold land and buildings and
hotel properties shown above are situated on land as
follows:

15. Y% HBERRE—~Z

bz e MR IEIRR (FERBEED®
BRI TR T O F R A B RETITE -

MELH N BT A A FHm -+

BF BATRAY 2 84 T K s F 1
(AEEERE)
EEWE AR EAERE A
BAFEAY Z B8 T R fE o
(ABEE RE)
HEWZE  10-20%
K
Ht 10-33"5%

BN L REFE D 2 HEFIREL A 5
ok BEOHEOEH O BLRERSE
TEEREELNMETZREE-

AR £ 3 AR T EE R YR 2 BRE(E
RAIEIT

36,854
447,240
71,655

555,749

2,100,411
1,158,933

658,987
1,220,014

3,259,344 1,879,001

Leasehold land and buildings BAAZHEELHRETF
in Hong Kong

Buildings in PRC hEEF

Buildings in Macau BPIETF

Hotel properties in Hong Kong BEBBIEME

Hotel properties in Macau B PR & ) 5

Hotel property under construction BEAERBEDME

in Hong Kong

1,407,461

During the year, the net interest capitalised in property,
plant and equipment amounted to HK$25,083,000 (2017:
HK$36,142,000).

RAFE Y BERZENE R
R B F 58 A25,083,000 7T (20174 -
36,142,000/ 7T ) °

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (B AR A 7

AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. B HERIE

CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 /818 577,444
Additions NE 5,720
Transfer to completed HEREEEERKREME

investment properties (448)
Release for the year F N (17,629)
At 31 March 2017 201743 H31H 565,087
Release for the year F N (17,832)
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3H31H 547,255

AEEZENEEREAR:

The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:

Leasehold land situated in Macau URRFZEE T i 547,255
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBEMMS 29
Non-current portion EMENE D 529,423
Current portion mEE D 17,832
547,255
17. Interest in an Associate 17 R—BEBEATNER
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group disposed REE2018F3A31 B ILFE - AEBP—
of 50% of the equity interest in T EBHIMEZEREGR QA BENE=FHENSREMERREER
(for identification purpose only, Xinhui Hongsheng Property RE([FresE] ARRHEERECE
Development Company Limited) (“Xinhui Hongsheng”), an BB AR]) 250% A%t - A ES0% AR
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to an TR BANR B EAS0%E L
independent third party. Since the disposal of 50% equity ENR ANEEHEBEFEATE N
interest, Xinhui Hongsheng became a 50% owned associate P 4 2R T o L R I o ST B AR A P
of the Company since the Group has significant influence BRI - IR B SRR R ERS - BH
but neither control nor joint control, Xinhui Hongsheng is D NI €= 9N DR

established in PRC and is engaged in property development
in the PRC. Details of gain on disposal of a subsidiary are
set out in note 38.

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3



17. Interest in an Associate — continued 17 R—REBE N NN ERE 2

Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted R—REEE NG 2 &R EZHRA JELT 75,978
Share of exchange reserve BASIMNE B 4,315
Share of post-acquisition losses LB R IEE (264)
80,029
Amount due from an associate JE UL —FE B & A B 2 IR 62,387
142,416
As at 31 March 2018, the amount due from an associate has M2018F3A31H  FEl— st & AR 2
no fixed terms of repayment and the Group has no intention HWEETEERYR MASEEENRE
to exercise its right to demand repayment of the advance HBASRAR121E B AT TR AR LA B KER %
within the twelve months from the end of the reporting 2R EHtk - ZRIBS BIERE
period. Accordingly, the amount is shown as non-current.
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in ZHE DR AR AT AZ SR AT
those consolidated financial statements. ko
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's AEBBENG 2 MBEERBEEHNT
associate is set out below. The summarised financial Xo TNt BRI Z R BE B E R
information below represents amounts shown in associate’s HRAFEROEE R M BERASIRZ
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. HEEo

Current assets MENVEE 154,873
Non-current assets ERBEE 13
Current liabilities e B E (121,431)
Revenue A -
Loss for the year FEEE (528)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

17. Interest in an Associate — continued 17.

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in an
associate and share of loss recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

R—EBELAINERS —~Z
RERE BT 3RR P R AR — B2 A R
Mess 2 BREE M B R i B R
BEHIRNOT

Net assets of an associate —MBE N2 EEFE 33,455
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREFBR—EBMLE NG EEEREZSY

interest in an associate FriE B o =X 50%

16,728

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition W QA L EBEAEN T E 63,301

Amount due from an associate

JE W — [ B i A m) 2 FRIR

80,029
62,387

142,416

The exchange gain arising from translation of financial
information of an associate of approximately HK$4,315,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve.

18. Interest in a Joint Venture 18.

Interest in a joint venture represents interest in Superb
Land Limited of which the Group holds 40% equity interest.
Superb Land Limited holds 100% interest in Talent Charm
Corporation Limited (“Talent Charm”), being the property
development company of a development project located at
Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill Road West, Hong
Kong.

HZE2018FE3 A3 HILFE @ e — e
BB R P EE A T K U 494,315,000
BTN E M2 NS ER RN R E
ZRite

aR

R—BEELEIERS

R—E& &% 2 #EmER Superb Land
LimitedZ # %5 » 255 B 5 5 HL40%MR # -
Superb Land Limited# B 3% 5 IR A 7]
(T ) 2 100% s « BB SR
naE HEREEMNESSEILER
PP 32 = HhER 55 11985% ©

(254)

Cost of unlisted investments JEEMIRE AR
Share of post-acquisition losses and BMEWERERER
total comprehensive expense > HEMXERE
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —REEEZRE

(254)
651,974

651,720

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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18.

19.

Interest in a Joint Venture — continued

As at 31 March 2018, the amount due from a joint venture
carries interest at 2.2% (2017: 2.2%) per annum. It has no
fixed terms of repayment and the Group has no intention
to exercise its right to demand repayment of the advance
within the twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the amount is shown as non-current.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has given a corporate
guarantee of HK$941,600,000 (2017: HK$941,600,000) to
a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to Talent
Charm, of which HK$584,000,000 (2017: HK$556,000,000)
has been utilised. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
value of the guarantee is not significant.

In the opinion of the Directors, the joint venture is not
material to the Group and no disclosure of financial
information is considered necessary.

Goodwill

COST DN

At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2018

1B R—BEELE R &

MR2018F3A31H Rl —E A & E K
T8 JYRER|R2 2% (20174 : 2.2% )5t 8.
ZHREVEETERR MAEREER
RS BRRAR121E B RTTE AR A Z SK(E
BB At X IBAIABIERE -

R2018F3A31H  AEE M ER
ZHRITHMER—BERITRHOCEER
941,600,0007% 7T (20174 : 941,600,000
77T ) - H A1584,000,0005 7T (20174F -
556,000,000/87C) BB H - EER A 1E
RZANBETEK-

EER R ZRZ2EFHAEEMS LT
EX A RATLERBEMHEER -

19. &

HK$'000
THETT

MN20165FE481H - 2017€E3A31B &
201843H31H

56,683

For the purpose of impairment test, goodwill of
HK$54,743,000 (2017: HK$54,743,000) has been allocated
to hotel and hotel related operation of Emperor E Hotel (a
single cash generating unit “CGU").

R #154,743,0007% 7T (20174F : 54,743,000
BLIZEE EoRERBIREFHEN
BIERBEREES (BE—ReEASEN
[IReEAEREM])  LUEITRENRI -

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5= [ (EI ) AR A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

19. 19. B8 2

20.

Goodwill - continued

During the year, the Group performed an impairment
review for goodwill of Emperor E Hotel's gaming operation
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets for the next five years and after the fifth
year, the projections are extrapolated using a constant
growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%) per annum for subsequent
years. The recoverable amount of the CGU of the gaming
operation is determined from value in use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The
forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 16% (2017:
17%). The discount rate was determined with reference
to weighted average cost of capital of similar companies
in the industry and adjusted for specific risks associated
with Emperor E Hotel’'s gaming operation. The growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average industry growth
forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based
on past practices and the management’'s expectations of
future changes in the market. As the recoverable amount
of the CGU is higher than the carrying amount of the CGU,
the Directors consider no impairment loss is necessary for
either year.

Regarding the remaining goodwill of HK$1,940,000 (2017:
HK$1,940,000), it has been allocated to the CGU for the
lease of properties for the purpose of impairment test, and
no impairment is considered necessary.

Other Assets

Club debentures and membership,
at cost

SREZRERE AR

RAFE  AEERBER S RETEAE R
SRVHEBYER 2 HEETRER
e BEREEU VRN ARAF 2 &
PIETEE MESAF®R  WEBFEEF
$HE IR R3Y (20174 1 3% ) #E 1T 8] -
BEEBZRSEEEM Z AIREISRE T
REREETE - AUAEEREEZE
EHRJ[IEFRZITER ERERTE
WARBZERAZ B G/ - 2788 Tk
16% (20174 : 17% ) 2 PTiBE T LAHTE -
PERTY2RBZERRER R Z iEFH
BARKA 1R 2 IRGEHE 2 1B ¥
TFRRETHEREZSL WMEERRBBER
B FUERTEA - A R B A 2
B IRBEBEENREEBEMISAR
Bz EAMEE -ARBESELBMMN
AR EESNIREEA BN 2 REE
WEERAAFEEAELRERIE-

8 T1,940,0007% 7T (20174 : 1,940,000
BIL) ZEBEME  AETTRENR ZH
BEARNEMEREC IReELEN B
MEREsTE-

0. Hh&EE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHBIT
4,092

The club debentures and membership have indefinite life.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives financial assets under
hedge accounting

TTETRMEE

DU R A 2

1L.ITE€®MIA

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered
into cross currency rate swap contracts as part of the
Group’s treasury operation for the purpose of minimising
the exposure to foreign currency risk and to hedge
economically against the foreign currency unsecured notes.
The terms of these contracts were negotiated to match
with those of the hedged unsecured notes with the same
notional amounts to principal amounts of unsecured notes,
currency and interest rate index. The Directors consider
that the cross currency swap contract are highly effective
hedging instruments and have designated them as cash
flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow
exposure to exchange rate movements. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, fair value gains on hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge of HK$16,126,000 (2017:
nil) have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and reclassified to profit or loss. Net fair value change on
hedging instruments in cash flow hedge of HK$7,236,000
(2017: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2018 have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity. During the year, there is no gain or
loss arising from ineffectiveness on the cash flow hedge.

The notional amount of the outstanding cross currency swap
rate contracts to which the Group was committed as at 31
March 2018 was as follows:

HZE2018FE3A31HIEFE  AEEUR
N EEMRIEHEOIEAREBE SR
— BB LARRAR SINEE B Kz A 48375 b e
HINEE SR IR ZE R o B 4 Z R Th BT
BT IR g 2GR mE e &8
EEEREEASHEERZEEZSE &
MNFRIEH - EERA KX EEHNEE
HAM T ASMET TR WO GHETE
BREEReTNES RS AT A

ZEE e M E R E F | R
SRERK - AZE2018F3A3 A LFEE
BEeRER P28 h T AR BERKZE
16,126,000/8 7T (20174 : ) B N Eth 2
ARZARRLTETHDEZTEFZ -HE
2018F3A3IHILFE - ReREL HF 2
i T B RN B E 2 E)7,236,00078 7T
(20175 - ) ERHt 2 E AR
PHEZAZRE -IAFE  BERRERE
4 A T B AR (TR U ES B 1 o

HZE2018F3A31H  AEERMEH AL
MAENRZNEENERERAN T EES
LER (N

Receive fixed Pay fixed Exchange
Notional Amount Maturity interest rate interest rate rates
EREH E# A WERHWEEFNE IZNHEERNR E=x
Buy US$200,000,000 16/09/2021 4.00% 3.84% US$1:HKS$7.75
& A.200,000,000% 7T 12X 7.758 7T
Buy US$200,000,000 27/03/2022 5.00% 4.88% US$1:HKS$7.75

& A200,000,000% 7T 17T 7.758 7T
FuipTE T ETRA R BEE - LT
TR ER2018FE3A3 BN EA
NABEZRE ZF (GFHERMH43) -

The above derivatives are measured at fair value. The
classification of the measurement of the above derivatives
at 31 March 2018 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy
(see note 43 for details).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

22.

23.

24,

Inventories

Catering goods, at cost

22. 78

Properties Held for Sale

The carrying amounts of properties held for sale comprise
properties situated in:

Hong Kong
The PRC s

23. FIFLEZWE
FHERE 2 MEZ BREEBRBLNA T

TTHIME

183,679
448

184,127

Properties Under Development for Sale

The amounts represent projects developed for sale after
completion in Hong Kong.

Included in the amounts are properties under development
for sale of approximately HK$2,311,762,000 (2017:
HK$750,984,000) which are expected to be recovered after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in properties
under development for sale amounted to HK$50,651,000
(2017: HK$45,105,000).

Joint operation relating to a development project in
Hong Kong

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a subsidiary of
the Company, Wealthy Wide Limited, entered into a joint
operation agreement with Urban Renewal Authority to
jointly develop property under development for sale located
in Hong Kong (the “HK Project”), which was intended to
be developed into a residential property. Pursuant to the
terms of the joint operation agreement, the HK Project was
accounted as the joint operation.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 £ &= @ (B[R ) AR A )
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24. BEHEZBRRDYE

BRSRERBEENRIEHER®ME
R 2IAH e

REFAREZFHELE ZBRRPYRN
2,311,762,0007% JT. (20174F : 750,984,000
AITT) BRI E R ER T @ AK
Y

RAFEE FEHEZERERPYEZERN
(b7 B F 18 A50,651,000% 7T (20174 :
45,105,000 7T,) °

ERRERBEBZEBZEEER

HZE2016F3A31HILFE AR ZHB
NAMEERAREMRERBII VAL
g WHERZRUREBRFEHE 2%
RAwWE ([HFEE])  HBEEAREE
Y - RIBZE S 2GR BBIEE A
RAEGEEK-



25. Trade and Other Receivables

An analysis of trade and other

receivables is as follows: DT
Trade receivables & 5 el 3E
Chips on hand Z£15
Other receivables H {th g U FR 78
Deposits and prepayments e LB RIE

B hEMBEWKELZ

25. B 5 REMEWRIR

129,819 160,832
151,712 121,245
514,476 239,008

755,264 207,412

1,551,271 728,497

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of
allowances) based on either the date of credit granted or
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out
below:

0 — 30 days 0&30H

31 -90 days 31HE90H
91 - 180 days 91H E=180H
Over 180 days 180H M +

RIRERKR - RIEAEEE 5 EKEE (1
BREE) o REEE R B Z A BETE
HZ BREDITINT

107,600
5,371
2,504

14,344

129,819 160,832

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

No credit period was granted to tenants for rental of
premises. Before accepting any new tenant, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential tenant.
No credit period was granted to hotel customers generally
except for those high credit rating customers to whom an
average credit period of 30 days were granted.

For gaming operation, the Group normally allows credit
periods of up to 60 days to its trade customers, except for
certain credit worthy customers with long term relationship
and stable repayment pattern, where the credit periods are
extended to a longer period.

SRS AR R RIEIT LA EHk

AEEYEAEEYEZABARLEE
HY o MENE(IFTAGEA Z BT NEEARA
MABEEARAZEEER AKER
BT ERBEEEPRLEER EEE
REFZEPIRIN MR L2 FHEES
#3308 °

REREEMS AEE—RETEES
EEREE&Z0BZEEH EETAR
RPBARMEEEFEANGEERTR
F REZEEHAELRE —BREKH
fE] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

25. Trade and Other Receivables — continued 2B EFZRHEMEWFRIE—Z

The carrying amount of trade receivables in respect of
hotel and hotel related operations does not have any
debtors which were past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. Included in the trade receivable balances are debtor
balances of HK$16,848,000 (2017: HK$17,804,000) that
would otherwise have been past due or impaired had the
terms not been renegotiated.

Included in the trade receivable balances in respect of
other operations are debtors with carrying amounts of
HK$7,772,000 (2017: HK$9,642,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

Included in other receivables are amounts due from related
companies of HK$42,854,000 (2017: HK$38,304,000).
These related companies are indirectly controlled by AY
Holdings which is held by STC International being the
trustee of the AY Trust (Dr. Albert Yeung is the founder of
the AY Trust and a deemed substantial shareholder of the
Company). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year.

As at 31 March 2018, included in other receivables are
deposits received for sales of the Group’s properties
of HK$145,109,000 (2017: nil) under the custody of the
independent lawyers on behalf of the Group.

As at 31 March 2018, included in deposits and prepayments
are refundable stamp duties in respect of redevelopment
projects of HK$400,542,000 (2017: HK$64,484,000).

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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RIREER  BERBEAEES2ES
JFE U5t 3 T B T M 3P 4 360 HA R A 2 PR LR
o MASBEWEEREBERE -BEFE
AR IE 4 4 B3 4 B W BR 31 45 #216,848,000
75 7T (20174F £ 17,804,000/ 7T ) © i 1~ &
TG ZERES S B ER
ER

Hh ¥z 85 RNAELEHBIERA
{B7,772,0007% 7T (20174F : 9,642,0005% 7T
ZEYERF ENREREBE A%
B Ve B R -

Han R GRIE IR R A E A 2 508
42,854,000/ 7T (20174 : 38,304,000/
TL) o ZEE N R RIS K EFITERME
Bl - 15 A FEPERR R AY Trust (15
BEAAY TrustZ BISZA @ WHAR AR AR
ZEEWRE) 2 XFEASTC Internationalis
B BREGENAEERR RERAENR—F

MIEE -

R2018F3 A31H » H B KIBE B IERLH
EREE 2 Y EUE 2 1% 5 145,109,000/
JC (20174 + &) - HRB UMK ELRSE
ERE -

P2018F3A31H 114 RIEMN RIA B
EERIA R 2 AERIEHITERI400,542,0007%8 7T
(20174F : 64,484,000/ 7T ) °



25. Trade and Other Receivables — continued 2B B REMEWRRE-—Z

Aging of trade receivables in respect of other Ht¥ Kz EZBKRNE (ERHBE
operations which are past due but not impaired R E) 2 R

Overdue for: w0 HA
1 - 30 days 1£230H
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEZEE

At beginning of the year R E 1)

Impairment loss recognised R EEE

Write-off M 88

At end of the year RER

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually REBEREEERSITREZE SEW
impaired trade receivables with aggregate balances of FIH - HAESREEE 11,470,000 7T (2017
HK$11,470,000 (2017: HK$11,470,000), the management £ :11,470,000/8 7T ) B IR [E I T E (&
considered these prolonged outstanding balances from MEFPEEEEDRMR 2 Eth A&
individual customers were in doubt. The Group does not E Rt S AR A
hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality AEEEEERERERKERZEEE
of debtors and considers the debtors that are neither = UREHRFENEBEaHIRE S
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality as FEM AR R R R AW B Z BRI
continuous partial repayments are receivable from these ADARIFEEER-

debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

26. Available-for-Sale Investments

AFS investments comprise debt
instruments:

— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong/
Cayman lIslands with fixed interests
at rates ranging from 4.000% to
6.000% per annum and maturity
dates falling between 1 April 2018
to 31 March 2019

— listed in Singapore with fixed interests
at rates ranging from 5.000% to
5.750% per annum and maturity
dates falling in between 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020

— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with
fixed interests at rates ranging from
4.250% to 8.375% per annum and
maturity dates falling between 1
April 2020 to 31 March 2021

— listed in Hong Kong with fixed interest
at a rate of 5.200% per annum and
maturity date on 10 April 2021

26. I ERE

AR L

— uf&/iﬁrﬁ/ﬁrﬁiﬁi%
EH EEFEMNENT
4.000%%E6.000% & 5| H7 A
N F2018F4 8 1H ZE2019
F3HA31H

160,109 -

—RFTINE T B F AR
N F5.000% £5.750% K |
HANTF2019F4A410 &
202043 A31H

RETIE, BB LT BEF
eSS ‘?4 250%%8.375%
KEH BN F2020%F4 A1

HZE2021%3A31H

Analysed for reporting purposes
as follows:

Non-current portion
Current portion

177,994 -
EAE B BEEFFNEA
200% N B Bi H A20214F
4H1OE| 39,000 -
423,074 -
HEFRENME Z2DMTOT
ERBIL D 262,965 -
mEEL D 160,109 -

423,074 -

The amount is carried at fair value which is the quoted bid
price in active markets at the end of the reporting period.

Included in AFS investments are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the relevant group entities:

ERSBIENBERR 2 A EE (A
EETIZRE) FIRR

AHHERESE T IRAMEE TR
REERAIINERAEZ SR

360,893
62,181
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27.

28.

Deposit in Designated Bank Account for
Development Properties

The amount of HK$10,276,000 (2017: HK$9,182,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,234,000 (2017:
RMB8,152,000)), was deposited to a bank account
designated under It RFAGEFEE RS as deposit for
resettlement for the investment properties in the PRC. Such
bank deposit is restricted for settlement in relation to the
resettlement work and carried interest at 1.0% (2017: 1.0%)
per annum. The deposit is expected to be released within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
classified as current assets.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term Bank
Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposits included (i) deposits of
HK$31,035,000 (2017: HK$30,508,000) pledged to banks
to secure for banking facilities granted to the Group and;
(i) a deposit of HK$334,000 (2017: HK$329,000) pledged
to a bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment
provided by a third party to the Group. The pledged bank
deposit carries interest at fixed interest rate of 1.40% (2017:
1.25%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months but carry interest at fixed
interest rates of which range from 1.20% to 1.55% (2017:
2.80%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 3.30% (2017: 0.01% to 1.28%) per
annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

RMB AR
GBP pigs

27.

28.

BREBERYEFTHREERITE
FPRZER

AEEEMtREBREEEIEBIE
TE IR 17 8R P ¥ A10,276,00078 7T (2017
#:9,182,0008 L) (HHEENRARE
8,234,0007T (20174 : A R #8,152,000
L)) EREMBETRRREMEIE
TR THERERRBIEEEETEE
TEZ #EE RS WIRFFE1.0% (2017
F:1.0%)5HE  BEIZ TR ImEEIR
REFZEARNER L SFERREEE -

BEEBRITEREHRTE
ROBITHEBELEERES
EHERRITERERENDER TIRITUAE
BAEBEERIEITRE 2 17 5£31,035,000
7 7T (20174 : 30,508,000/ 7T ) & M (i)E
R T —ERITMEAREBFER—EE
=R MEE B 2 1738334,0008 7T
(20174F : 329,00078 7T ) ° B3RP ERTTIF 5K
1% [E T A R1.40% (20174 : 1.25% ) 5t
HFS -

720183 A31H  REIEAB A=EA U
I BRIR T AR E E FFEN T1.20%
Z155% (20174 : 2.80% ) st EF &, 0

RITEBARSBEAEEFEZHS
FMREBA A=A T WIZBETH
B FER RN F0.01%%23.30% (20174 :
0.01%%1.28% ) s EF B 2 R1TFEH

EHEIRITER  EHRITFRERITA
#HLE S BE TN IIAEBEEER 26
ERINEEEE SR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
4,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

28. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term 28. CIEMBITHER & JﬁE 77
Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash = R1T ﬁ\*ﬁ?&fﬁﬁ
— continued
Analysed for reporting purposes for pledged bank deposits MEHWE M HEERRITERDT
as:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Non-current portion FEMEE D 30,508
Current portion MBI D 329
30,837
29. Assets (Liabilities Associated with Assets) 2. PEABIEHECEE (HEE
Classified as Held for Sale *EEEZ,JE
On 29 March 2018, Emperor Corporate Management M2018F3H29R - HREMXEERAR
Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the RAI(TER] ARARIzZ2ENBEAR])
“Vendor”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement B Future Blossom Limited ([E75] - —
(the “Disposal Agreement”) with Future Blossom Limited, FMEBAY TrustiliZ2 8% A 2 AR EI
a company indirectly wholly-owned by the AY Trust (the EEma([HEH=RE]) BEHEEARA
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to E i Prestige Gold Investment Limited
acquire the entire issued share capital in Prestige Gold ([Prestige Gold | A RRIZHEEE
Investment Limited (“Prestige Gold"), an indirect wholly- WEAREHBMREEERBE2R LY
owned subsidiary of the Company which holds a property ¥) 22 BTRARMBER BER
located at No. 2 Belleview Drive, Hong Kong, and all Prestige Gold#5/R &5 sk L FTEE 2 EF%
obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred by (THEEE]) 2828000008 T2IZEE
Prestige Gold to the Vendor (the “Disposal”). Deposit of FRRBRFPE-—HEEAREE - B
HK$82,800,000 was settled through the current account with HESBZFBEHNALF B A20184F
a related company. Details of the Disposal are contained in 5H248 Z # kK- HEFIEMN2018F6 512
the Company'’s circular dated 24 May 2018. The Disposal ARBRERERIAS R E - NEE
was approved by the shareholders in a special general EIF5TAE - AR E T B ¥ Prestige Gold
meeting on 12 June 2018. The Group will cease to have HAEESIRE-

control over Prestige Gold upon completion of the Disposal.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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29. Assets (Liabilities Associated with Assets)

30.

2. DERGEHEZEE (HEE
HEzaE) —~&

HEEEEGEE N B ER2018F3H31

AZGEUBARRADRIZFT

Classified as Held for Sale — continued

The assets and liabilities attributable to the Disposal, are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018 as follows:

Property and equipment EYS &S 41,961
Deposits and prepayments e MIERRIE 1,185
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IR 26
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFIENEZBREE 43,172
Deposit received from the Disposal HESHEAMRB 2 ZS (82,800)
Trade and other payables H 5 &k E At fE S 5E (3,650)
Deferred taxation EIEFIB (215)
Total liabilities associated with assets HAYBARBIEHEZEE

classified as held for sale Mz BERE (86,665)
Trade and Other Payables 30. EZ RHMENRE

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out
below:

REIR - AREE 5 RN FRRE R
SRMPEL ZRE DTN -

0 - 90 days 0%£90H 19,408
91 - 180 days 91H =180H 62 236
Over 180 days 180H M E 41 16

Amount due to a shareholder of
an associate (Note)

Construction payables and accruals
Deposits received for sale of properties
Other payables and accruals

Payables for acquisition of AFS
investments

Rental deposits received

A — PR A AR E KR
e
M TI2 0B RSt B
HEMEFRMZ B
H 4t 78 A9 30R R Bt B D
U B B it 85 42 4 A 3R

SEhEERS

36,901

49,222
581,687
463,402
280,321

156,741

363,311 268,660

1,931,585 1,221,694

Note: The amount due to a shareholder of an associate is unsecured,

repayable on demand and carries interest at 4.51% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RER MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

31. Amounts Due to Related Companies 3. BENBEEATRNRE

The amounts are unsecured and carry interest ranging from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.80% to
HIBOR +1.26% per annum (2017: HIBOR + 1.25% to HIBOR
+ 1.54% per annum). The interest payable to the related
companies, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the AY Trust, are
calculated at 1.80% (2017: 1.60%) per annum at the end of
the reporting period.

During the year, further advances from the related
companies amounted to HK$1,758,872,000 (2017:
HK$729,863,000) and the Group partially repaid the
principal of HK$1,019,336,000 (2017: HK$2,397,252,000)
to the related companies. The principal amount outstanding
as at 31 March 2018 was HK$2,750,124,000 (2017:
HK$2,093,388,000). It was agreed with the related
companies that the Group will repay the amount based on
the sufficiency of its operating cash flows determined by
the management of the Group. Therefore, the Group revises
its estimates on the amounts of repayments to the related
companies and adjusts the carrying amount to be stated
under current and non-current liabilities in accordance
with the revised estimated cash flows on regular basis.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group calculates
the estimated future cash flows at effective interest rate
of 2.30% (2017: 3.25%). During the year ended 31 March
2018, these carrying amounts have been adjusted by
HK$42,046,000 (2017: HK$68,117,000) because of change
in cash flow estimates.

In the opinion of the Directors, the carrying amount of the
amounts due to related companies of HK$2,304,908,000
(2017: HK$1,522,755,000) are not expected to be repaid in
the next twelve months based on the estimated repayment
schedule and the related companies agreed not to demand
for any payment of this amounts from the Group within one
year from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, such
amounts are shown as non-current liabilities.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
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EEFBEDLAERE MBFARER
RITRIZERE ([BBRTRAZERS]) M
0.80% 2 B BRI TEIZENFEMM1.26% (2017
F BFEBRTREREIMBREE
BIRTTRIZER B NN1.54% )5t EF| B R
REEAKR  FERREE AR (AY Tustz &4
M AR 2 F B3ZEFF1.80% (20174 :
1.60% )&t& -

RAFE - REBERABIZ2E—F
3% A1,758,872,000# 7T (20174 -
729,863,0008 L) ' AEE B EE
DR 41,019,336,000# 7T (20174 :
2,397,252,0008 L) T EB A A -
MN2018F3A31BE M AEEBZ XS
%8 /2,750,124,000 7T (20174 -
2,093,388,000/8 7T ) © #CEARGE N R E
AEEBRBERASEEREHTE 2 LE
ReREFTIREEEFTE At AEE
TEEIRB IS AR S REE T EEE
BEENFFIAZ Mo E LA
BRI RIERBBE EEEBEATN
I8 2 BREE - RIREEIR - AR EIRERF
%2.30% (20174F : 3.25% ) st H AT R 2K
WEmE - NEZE2018FE3A31B ILFE -
HRBeREMFT 228 ZEFRAED
%42 ,046,0007% 7T (20174F : 68,117,000
BIT) o

BEERAE ENEEARARBZE
M {8 £2,304,908,0005% 7T (20174 :
1,522,755,00078 7T ) * iRIE(HFHEREREIR
T TERART—EAREE BERQ
RIRER RS BRE—FRTEBRAE
& HMERE A - At BRIZIEY A
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32.

33.

Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Interests of
Subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
comprise amounts of HK$107,600,000 (2017: HK$120,800,000)
which are unsecured and interest-free shareholders’ loans due to
non-controlling interests of Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck
United”).

In accordance with the contractual terms of the
shareholders’ agreements, the interest-free amounts due to
non-controlling interests of Luck United are to be repaid at
the discretion of non-controlling interest from surplus fund,
which represents cash available in Luck United, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries, after
payment of all operating expenses and payables including
but not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are
due for repayment together with the accrued interest.

At end of the reporting period, the management of Luck
United determined that Luck United had adequate available
surplus fund for the repayment of all principal amounts
outstanding to its shareholders. Therefore, at 31 March
2018, the Directors consider that the carrying amount of the
amounts due to non-controlling interests of HK$107,600,000
(2017: HK$120,800,000) is repayable at the discretion of
non-controlling interests.

Unsecured Notes

US$110,000,000 unsecured notes
carry fixed coupon rate of
4.8% per annum, payable
semi-annually with maturity in
2018 at its carrying amounts

HK$1,650,000,000 unsecured notes

110,000,000% TR E &
EBA4.8%:T B
BABYEFEMNEL
R2018F EIH 2
ERERBECREE

carry fixed coupon rate of FEBEL5%HE
5% per annum, payable BEY¥EMNEL
semi-annually with maturity in R2017F B 2
2017 at its carrying amounts EEARECRAE

HK$1,000,000,000 unsecured notes
carry fixed coupon rate of
5% per annum, payable
semi-annually with maturity in
2020 at its carrying amounts

HK$300,000,000 unsecured notes
carry fixed coupon rate of
5% per annum, payable
semi-annually with maturity in
2020 at its carrying amounts

FEB5%H B
HAEXFRHEL
R2020F Bl H 2
EERAREZRAE

300,000,000/ TLIZ @& F
FEB5%E B
AEEFMRHEL
R2020F B H 2
ERHRBECREE

1,650,000,000/% JTiZ [E

1,000,000,0007% 7T iZ [&

32. %HW%’AEZ?FEH&E%%’\

ENWEB AR ZIEERERRERES
%6107,600,00078 7T (20174F : 120,800,000
#r)  H A FEfLuck United Holdings
Limited ([Luck United |) FE3ERs#EsS 2 M
BN B RE R -

BB R R 2 A LG B Luck
UnitedIEIZR% A 25 2 2 BB A BB E
THIFHER S TISEE  BHESEM
B IE2 A M B A F)Luck United B2 EL i B A
ARSI ATE &MY R EMIE (B1E
BRRAHREE ZRTERLRE=FE
R GEREFE) )EZAISARE -

AR HAZR - Luck United’® I [ 32 ALuck
UnitedB SR AR 2 BHE & FAIEEE]E
NHEBRREZZBREEASTE - Al =
ERE P2018F3A31H » [ IR #E
%5 X8 BR [ {8107,600,0005% 7T (20174 -
120,800,00078 71 ) 75 A FE I I 25 2 Y
ERTEMEEREE-

EERREE

(a) 862,989 851,906
(b) 1,645,919
() 997,284 995,963
(d) 299,360 299,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #£2018F3A31H [t FE

33. Unsecured Notes — continued 3. EIEHEE 2

US$38,000,000 unsecured notes 38,000,000 T3z & iF

carry fixed coupon rate of EB4.4%5 5
4.4% per annum, payable HEBFFREL
semi-annually with maturity in 2021F 2B 2
2021 at its carrying amounts EEARECRAE (e) 298,235 295,723
HK$800,000,000 unsecured notes  800,000,000/% It 1% [& &
carry fixed coupon rate of FRBAA%TE
4.4% per annum, payable BAE¥FEMEN
semi-annually with maturity in R2021F 2Bl 2
2021 at its carrying amounts BEAREZREE (f) 794,012 792,168
US$200,000,000 unsecured notes 200,000,000 7t 1% & &
carry fixed coupon rate of FEBA%TE
4% per annum, payable BE¥EMNEL
semi-annually with maturity in FR2021F EI 8~
2021 at its carrying amounts EEWRBRCEREEE (9) 1,566,490 1,550,385
US$200,000,000 unsecured notes 200,000,000 JT 3% & &
carry fixed coupon rate of FEBES5%T B
5% per annum, payable HEBFFNEL
semi-annually with maturity in 2022F F B 2
2022 at its carrying amounts BEARE ZREE (h) 1,559,426 1,541,013
HK$400,000,000 (2017: 400,000,000/ 7T (2017
HK$800,000,000) unsecured notes £ : 800,000,000/% 7t )
carry fixed coupon rate of REEFREEL 7% E
4.7% per annum, payable BAB¥FEMEN
semi-annually with maturity in 2022 B B 2
2022 at its carrying amounts EEMERZEEE (i) 398,292 795,909
6,776,088 8,768,040
Less: Amounts due within one R —FNEEIFRIA
year shown under current (MRBBEETIITR)
liabilities (862,989) (1,645,919)
Amounts due after one year shown 7 — 1% 5| #i k18
under non-current liabilities (RIERBAEEETIIR) 5,913,099 7,122,121
The proceeds from the issuance of unsecured notes are BITERERRE 2 TS RIERAEREE
intended to use for general working capital purposes of the ZREEES -
Group.
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33. Unsecured Notes — continued
Notes:

(a)

In December 2013, Big Right Investment Limited (“Big Right”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded public
offering of the unsecured notes of US$110,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$852,665,000). The unsecured notes (Stock Code:
6005) are listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The
unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.85% per annum.
The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2018
and unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

In July 2014, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,650,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate
of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.92% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes was fully repaid in July 2017.

In February 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,000,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate
of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.15% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2020.

In March 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate of
5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 5.12% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2020.

In February 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$38,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon rate of
4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arears. The unsecured
notes carry effective interest rate of 4.4% per annum. The principal
amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in 2021.

In March 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$500,000,000. In May 2016, the Company issued additional
unsecured notes of HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry
fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.6% per
annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is repayable in
2021.

In September 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 4326) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 4% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry
effective interest rate of 4.06% per annum. The principal amount of
the secured notes is repayable in 2021.

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$200,000,000. The unsecured notes (Stock code: 5410) are
listed on the Stock Exchange and carry fixed coupon rate of 5% per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry
effective interest rate of 5.18% per annum. The principal amount of
the secured notes is repayable in 2022.

In March 2017, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$800,000,000. In October 2017, the Company redeemed half
of the unsecured notes of HK$400,000,000. The unsecured notes
(stock code: 5411) are listed on the Stock Exchange and carry
fixed coupon rate of 4.7% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.82%
per annum. The remaining principal amount of the secured notes is
repayable in 2022.

33. BIKIWEE &
Wi -

(@)

M2013F 128 AR a2 EMBE AR LE
ZHREBERAR ([EFEDEFEAMET
110,000,000 7t ( %) %5 72852,665,000/%
T0) B AR R o IR IR (IR AR
6005) B 22 AT LT 12 & F F 2 2.4.8%
B WABEFMNE - EIEHZE 2 BE
FHE H4.85% - EILIF IR 2 A AR
2018F EiZ - W A AN A B E IS4 R A/
FEHYEIR o

20147 A R 7] % 171,650,000,000
BT ERIR S - mIK I R R IRE T TR
B5%st B WAETFFMHE - EIMBEIE
2 BBER K A5.92% o WK AERE K
SEER2017F7ARHEE-

~

201542 A » AR A &) % 171,000,000,000
BT ERIR S mIK R R IRE T TR
B5%at B WAETFFHMHE - EIMBEIE
2 BBERN K A515% o WK EE 2 K
S EBAN2020FEIE -

201543 A » A A 7] % 77300,000,0007%
TEEEEE BRFZERRETFEE
5%:T B WASEFMNBE -EEFZE Y
BFIRE R A5.12% o EIXAZ I 7 KN4
KA 20204F (18 o

R201652 A » &K A 7] % 1738,000,0003
TEEEEE BRFZRRETFEE
4.4%5F B WAGEFN B - BIKBZE
ZEBBREFR B4 4% - BIEHEE 2 AE
AR 2021F (B8 o

201643 A + A A 7] % 77500,000,0007
TR E S - FA20164E5 8 - AN A EIEESN
E%17300,000,000% 7T 3K 1R 2 4% o K18
ERRETFEE84.4%5 8 WRAGEE
B -EIEWEEERFHEAL6% -
EIIREE 2 A BBBER2021F(EE -

#20164F9 A » AR A 7] % 77200,000,0003%
TTERIEER - EEEEE (RGHORMR:
4326) B R AT BT BT F B B4%aT
B WESFFMNE - BIEHEZE 2 ERF
FEB406% - EBEBZHE 2 ASFEAER
2021 (Big -

7201743 A + A& A 7] % 17200,000,000%
TEEFER SEAEE (RORKR:
5410) B Z P £ T - R B E F B B5%
B UWEABIFMNE -BEAEECEREF
FIEB518% - MM HEHR 2 AL FAR
2022F [EiE o

201743 A » A A 7] % 77800,000,0007
TTEM IR E R - A2017F108 - AR FEE
[5] — 400,000,000/ 7T &) 3 1R 2 45 o 4%
IR (PR ASE - 5411) B FT E 7
BETEFEB47%:HE WBEBFFHN
BoMIKMEE BRFHEEL82% - &
WHERE 2 F#h RN BB 2022F (E38 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

34.8R1TRE

34. Bank Borrowings

RITEER

Bank loans

17,191,112 12,555,008

The bank borrowings are repayable
as follows™:

Within one year
Between one to two years —EMFMH
Between two to five years
Over five years

RITEEZERBBAMT

4,458,918
2,422,603
5,635,470
4,627,356

3,486,867
1,636,615
4,776,051
2,597,008

Carrying amounts of bank borrowings  R{T{EE Z BREE
that contain a repayment on demand ( ;
clause shown under current liabilities

12,496,541

17,144,347

46,765 58,467

Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities

12,555,008

17,191,112

UL (3,545,334)

Amounts due after one year shown
under non-current liabilities

12,685,429 9,009,674

* Carrying amounts based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements.

The bank borrowings carry interest ranging from HIBOR +
0.75% to HIBOR + 2.85% per annum (2017: HIBOR + 0.55%
to HIBOR + 2.85% per annum).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$14,591,112,000 (2017:HK$12,455,008,000) are secured
by certain assets of the Group (see note 45(a)).

The effective interest rate of bank borrowings is at 2.22%
(2017: 2.14%) per annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the relevant group entities:

* o EREEENERGEE . EERA
Hy o

ZERTEESTFARBEBRITRER
B IN0.75% 2 & & R 1T R ¥ 47 B 112.85%
(20174 : BE BB IRTTRIZESF B IN0.55%
EEBRITRAEFRENN2.85% ) 5TEFIS

201853 A31H » A& [E 2 14,591,112,000
¥ 7T (20174 : 12,455,008,000/% 7T) 2 $5
TEERAEEZETEEER (A
45(a)) °

IRITEE 2 B FEFH R £2.22% (20174 :
214%) °

RITEEBE TIIABREEER 26
ERSIMNEBEB R

1,788,251
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35. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years.

35. IE R 1H

REERBETERRY T EREHE
(BE)EEREBEHMT -

At 1 April 2016 Ro016%4 1A (186,399) (4191)  (1,002,524) 36,067  (1,157,047)
Exchange realignments SNE B - - 50,112 - 50,112
(Charge) credit to profit or loss CIEDEPN -t

(note 11) (Ba11) (21,715) - (792,573) 13,200 (801,088)
Credit (charge) to equity HFA(E) #R 268 - (3,660) - (3,392)
At 31 March 2017 Ro01743A318 (207,846) (4191)  (1,748,645) 49267  (1911,415)
Exchange realignments SNE A% - - (169,052) - (169,052)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (1B A Ba

(note 11) (Bis#11) (26,806) - (160,359) 23,023 (164,142)
Credit to equity AR 268 - - - 268
Transfer to liabilities associated BRZESEABELEL

with assets classified as held BERBEZBE (M:#29)

for sale (note 29) 215 - - - 215
At 31 March 2018 2018534318 (234,169) (4,91) (2,078,056 72,290  (2,244,126)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had tax losses of
HK$1,371,442,000 (2017: HK$1,160,638,000) available
for offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of HK$438,787,000 (2017:
HK$304,135,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$932,655,000
(2017: HK$856,503,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of the Group
might be carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$83,355,000 (2017: HK$64,814,000) which will expire in
three years from the year of assessment.

At 31 March 2017, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$97,673,000 (2018: nil). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

SERAMBEIRAR 22N E B TEE
MBEELBEDFRE-

MR2018F3A31H AEEZHREE
1B A1,371,442,000/% 7T (20174 -
1,160,638,0007% 7T ) » AJ 4 B2 K 2 i A
K34 © 5% & E5 18 b ££438,787,0007% T
(20174F : 304,135,000 7T ) © MERIRIE TS
TBEEE - AT RETE IR R 2 S5 FIIE 0 -
B 4 B H £42932,655,00078 7T (20174
856,503,000/ 7T ) T sR B RE 7 18 & £ o AN
SEABRATBESEIERBEE.
ME83,355,000/% 7T (20174F : 64,814,00078
T2 AR EER=FREH-

MR201793A31H  ANEE A A R E Rt
7= #97 673,000/ 7T (20184F : 47) o f &
SRR = ERRELERIEE
- R A R R B m S A R0
AR ERER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018%3A31H It F &

35. Deferred Taxation — continued

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$129,292,000
(2017: HK$112,757,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

36. Share Capital

Number of shares

35. IEERLIE — &

BIEFRBECEMERE  HPRNE AT
Fr R I 1 2 R 2 A BB SR TE R -
F A 7N 55 (B B 4 2 ) 788 [ B B = B 2 By
B BB EEA TSR LR
BO AEEWARAIBERB AT ZR
Fhm A 75 2R 2 B Iy 2= $8129,292,0007% T
(20174F : 112,757,00058 7T ) A ér & BT 16 3R
RAVEHEE T BB A

36. [ 4

Share capital

KRG &R [N
HK$'000
FET
THE COMPANY FiN/NE]
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R E{EC.01 B L2 LB
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2016, 201664818
31 March 2017 and 20174 3H31H &
31 March 2018 201843 H31H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREHTE:
At 1 April 2016, R2016F4H18
31 March 2017 and 2017F3H318 &
31 March 2018 201843 H31H 3,677,545,667 36,775
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37. Share Option
Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) on 15
August 2013. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
as follows:

(a) Purpose of Share Option Scheme

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-
time or part time, including Non-executive Director) and
such other eligible participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme. (i) as at 20 June 2018 (i.e. the
date of this Annual Report): 366,677,619 shares. (ii)
Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as at
20 June 2018: 9.97%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Share Option Scheme

(i) Not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company; and

(i) Options granted to substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
0.1% of the Shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

37. B
APl 2 BB ERTE
R2013FE8 A 158 Z B #E =12 ([ BB AL #E
=8I - BT 2 EE ST

(a) BIRETEZEH
REAREEER S| B RAEE S
B ABRSEENFKAER 2K
REE RN IESR

(b) EEKSHE
BERZ2RECEES (BERE2BX
REER BEFITES) KREFHE
e BIRSHE -

(c) BEBERETE TFEITZRHR
o ()R2018F6 201 (BIARF R A
H) :366,677,6190% ° (ii)520184F6 A
20H B 817D 29.97% °

(d) BREFSEETEESEKSHEE
ERER LR
() BRIFERRBRAE  BRIFE
EN2(E A B A NS BB E %
TN 21% : &2

iy REMN—F2zAMEZERRL
BYIRTESKFEESEHLZ
BEARLZERE FBB
DTN Z201% R EEBS
5,000,000 T B AN FIREER AL
o

(e) TTRIERERIBRGZHR

PR EREREEEETSE T
AR B2 TR - MBI
T TNMEBEE L BERE10F -
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37. Share Option — continued

Share option scheme of the Company - continued

(7

(9)

(h)

(0

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

(i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the share on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
Approximately 5 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.

Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel

A share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel (“Emperor E
Hotel Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 15 August
2013. A summary of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option
Scheme is set out as follows:

(a)

Purpose of the Emperor E Hotel Share Option
Scheme

To enable the group of Emperor E Hotel to attract, retain
and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the group of Emperor E
Hotel.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 £ (B BRA
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37. Share Option — continued
Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel - continued

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(")

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive
director) and such other eligible participants.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme.

(i) As at 20 June 2018 (i.e. the date of this annual
report): 129,254,598 shares.

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 20 June 2018: 9.94%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Emperor E Hotel Share Option Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel; and

options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders of Emperor E Hotel.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors of Emperor
E Hotel but in any event not exceeding 10 years from
the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors of Emperor E Hotel.
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37.

38.

Share Option — continued
Share option scheme of Emperor E Hotel — continued

(9) ()

Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of
Emperor E Hotel and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share on the date of grant;
(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Emperor E Hotel Share

Option Scheme

Approximately 5 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of
the Share Option Scheme.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose 50% equity interests in
Xinhui Hongsheng, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company engaged in property development,
to an independent third party for a total consideration
of RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,326,000). The disposal was completed on 18
December 2017 and Xinhui Hongsheng became an
associate of the Company upon the completion of the
disposal.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary was as follows:
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BB Z50%EE K AR ARIEERFEEZE
BEWBAR HEMEMAE - LEZTER
2017F12 A18H R MEFTE BB L E
IR AP Y=Y UNCIA: I /N1

ERLENB AR ZRE MREEEYR
NFRBZ DM :

HK$’000

TET

Cash consideration received EWIR e RE 20,663

Bank balances and cash disposed of FTHERITEB LIRS (10,796)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FRALE—RMWBARI R R

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReEEBMRAFHE 9,867
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38. Disposal of a Subsidiary — continued 3. HE—FBMHWEB AR —#&

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal was MEARNEERBEEFENT
as follows:
HK$’000
TERT
Net assets disposed of: FIEEEESE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Y MBS R (HaE15) 13
Property under development for sale FEHE 2 ERPWE 58,533
Other receivables H th j& WK IE 790
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 10,796
Other payables H{th J& < ;1B (17,780)
Amounts due to the Group JEfT AR BRRIA (20,175)
32,177
Gain on disposal is calculated as follows: HERGETEDT -
Consideration received and receivable B UK R ARE 41,326
Net assets of a subsidiary disposed of Tt E—HMNEBAREEFE (32,177)
Sale of shareholder’s loan HERRE R (7,030)
Fair value of 50% retained interest in an R —ElEE A RRB B50%Em < AR EBE
associate 75,978
78,097
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of 7 & M B A 7)1 B @l fE 3, % #5
the subsidiary 964
Net gain on disposal & SRR 79,061
Consideration received: EHRARE:
Cash received BUIR & 20,663
Consideration receivable W ARE 20,663
Total consideration mR(E 41,326
39. Non-Controlling Interests 39. FERER
Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2018 201853 A31H 2 FE1E R i m B I R AE
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of A FE¥E IR A 2 & FXIE21,903,00078 7T
HK$21,903,000 (2017: HK$21,903,000) on certain interest- (20174 : 21,903,000/ 7T ) * ;2B JhA—
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary EIF A Rl eI m iRt o & T2
which were contributed in accordance with their proportion BERME MEBERDIRFESREL
of shareholdings. BIHE -
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40.

41.

42.

Acquisition of Additional Interests in
Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
acquired additional 26,730,000 shares in Emperor E Hotel,
representing 2.05% equity interests in Emperor E Hotel,
at cash consideration of HK$52,693,000. The difference
of HK$24,965,000 between the consideration paid of
HK$52,693,000 and the decrease in the non-controlling
interests of HK$77,658,000 was recognised directly in other
reserve.

Acquisitions

During the year, the Group had acquired the following
material property interests:

(a) In June 2017, the Group acquired property interests
of Ampersand Building, a composite building
comprising retail spaces, office premises and leasehold
apartments, at Nos. 111-125 Oxford Street, No. 178
Wardour Street and No. 15 Hollen Street, London,
United Kingdom (W1F8ZZ) at a cash consideration
of approximately GBP260,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$2,587,580,000.

In July 2017, the Group also acquired properties
interests of 12 retail spaces located at G/F and LG/F,
Fairview Height, No 1 Seymour Road, Mid-Levels,
Hong Kong at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$515,000,000.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes amounts due to related companies,
amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries,
unsecured notes, bank borrowings in notes 31, 32, 33 and
34 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the debt raising.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 2 2 5 & (B ) AR A &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %k

40.

41.

42.

W BB B B A Bl 2 B AME R

REE2018E3A31H I EE - AREE A
15 £ R (B52,693,0007% 7T U I 25 £ 1R 947
JE 2 BEH1N26,730,000M8 A% 17 - 1 55 2 4R 4%
TBIERSHE 2 2.05% ° B 1K B52,693,00078
TCER FEYE AR AE %55k 1 77,658,00078 T 2 =
%824,965,000/8 705 HiE R E M REE A TE

27
e

W =E
RAFE  REREEYRE TERYRE

R2017F6 A AEEBENUR &K
B #)260,000,0005 & (4 & »
2,587,580,0007% 7T ) U 8 i 74 25 = ffm
42 7(Oxford Street)111-12585 »

SK1E#7(Wardour Street)1785% M & i
f7(Hollen Street)155% < Ampersand X
BEWIFsZZ) RS & T &M A
ERAERNRB LA ERNIEZ ME

== N7
MR o

(a)

R2017E7 A AEE AR REL
515,000,000 8 T EERL A B S 1L P
BEE1SRRIE = 4b T Mo NMEE 212
EEEmE R

B E b T

REEESBHEEN UBRAEERNZE
BERE AL BT B IS B H K B E
BELERRE R ESE S I EAE
o ANEE[F v BRAL S AR B L A RS N o

NEEZEARBEOIEERFHE (BED
BIFAMIFE31 ~ 32 ~ 33N B4FT B 2 B~
HBRRFE BB A R 2 TR RS
FE - EREEECRITEE) R kB
TEEWMFERRARHA AEGEER
(BFEDBITIRANEE) o

SETE RS BEARRE - FRZRT 2 —
Mo EFEREANANZBRER 2
R -REBEES CHEERZZ AKE
BRSBTS B MRS -
FEEERBEANRE-



43. Financial Instruments
(a) Categories of financial instruments

43. €T HE
(a) EWMITEZER

Financial assets TREE
AFS investments A ERE
Listed debt securities B EMEKE 423,074 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITA
- designated as hedging instruments —#E A%+ T A 16,126 -
Loans and receivables T JE U Z0E
Receivables related to a development B —H#EREIER 2
project J& WK I8 185,328 167,262
Deposit in designated bank account B3 E ¥ % T HA
for development properties EERITIRP 2K 10,276 9,182
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e GRIE 796,007 521,085
Pledged bank deposits B MR IT 17 K 31,369 30,837
Short-term bank deposits MHERITER 475,516 2,822
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIE S 3,374,884 6,620,318
4,873,380 7,351,506
Financial liabilities TRAE
At amortised cost RS
Trade and other payables B 5 I H & RIE 1,298,981 786,735
Amounts due to related companies AN R NGBS 2,704,226 1,988,633
Amounts due to non-controlling KB AR Z
interests of subsidiaries FEVE AR 42 22 FIE 107,600 120,800
Unsecured notes ERIRRE 6,776,088 8,768,040
Bank borrowings RITEE 17,191,112 12,555,008
28,078,007 24,219,216
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43. Financial Instruments - continued

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, but the management considers
the amount of foreign currency sales and purchase is
insignificant. The management considers the Group
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk
in relation to transactions denominated in MOP and
USD. Exposures on balances which are denominated in
MOP and USD in group entities with HK$ as functional
currency are not considered significant because MOP
and USD are pegged to HK$.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
in relation to the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items at the end of the reporting
period, which included pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
AFS investments, bank borrowings and unsecured
notes (except for those US$ denominated unsecured
notes hedged economically with the cross currency
swap contract). The sensitivity to foreign currency
risks arising from the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items has been determined
based on the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates of RMB and GBP against the
HK$. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change of 5% for exchange
rate of RMB and GBP against HK$ (2017: 5%), while
all other variables are held constant. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year where
RMB strengthened and GBP weakened against HK$.
Where the RMB weakened and GBP strengthened
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.
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43. Financial Instruments - continued 43. s I E—4#Z

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEAMEERERBEK —#&
policies — continued
Market risk — continued 5 E
Foreign currency risk — continued SN B — 4B
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
RMB against HK$ AR I AT 245
GBP against HK$ EHEHBTT -
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency REERMERRINEEBE2EBE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the ENBECERAERBENEBENE
end of the reporting period are disclosed in respective o R2018F3A31H - AL EE B
notes. As at 31 March 2018, the Group mainly had a EBEEBHREEHIARREETTEE &
cross currency swap contract to reduce its exposure ERER 2 INEIE R E &) 2 R ATE
to potential variability of foreign currency risk arising HZINEIREV BRI - BEIRERFE
from changes in foreign exchange exposure in USD EESHNEE P [ B BN AL E R
denominated unsecured notes. The management SNEERBR (AL E) ©

continuously monitors the foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging other significant foreign
currency risk should the need arises.

Interest rate risk T 7 fz

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk REERE TN EDEIRRITESR
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short- REERRITIF SR T ARITAEBR A AR
term bank deposits, bank deposits included in bank TEZRERAIHEERERETERZEF
balances and AFS investments, and fixed coupon rate EEEAREREHRAABENER
unsecured notes. The Group is also exposed to cash i o NEREE IS Bt AF B F RERTT
flow interest rate risk in relation primarily to its variable- EER - ENEARIFIERRITEE
rate bank balances, amounts due to related companies HERSREFERMR

and bank borrowings.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly rEEzZReERENERR 25
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from FRAEERBBERR 2 BHRKLR
the Group’s advances from related companies and TEEMEL 2 BBRITAZEREK
bank borrowings. &o
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43. & T H &

43. Financial Instruments - continued pe
(b) ¥ BEAREBERERRE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate
risk has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the above mentioned financial assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period and
the reasonably possible change taking place at the
beginning of each year and held constant throughout
the respective year. The management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rate and
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each
year and held constant throughout the respective year.

The Group’s sensitivity to fair value interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rate
for those fixed-rate AFS instruments at the end of the
reporting period. If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2017: nil) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group'’s investments revaluation
reserves would decrease/increase by HK$6,917,000
(2017: nil) as a result of the changes in the fair value of
fixed-rate AFS investments.

Except for bank balances and deposits using 5 basis
points (2017: 5 basis points), if interest rates had been
100 basis points (2017: 100 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, the potential effect
on post-tax profit for the year is as follows:

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit 4 & I %1 18 3 A48 hn (i 4>)

for the year

- Bank balances —RITHEEER
- Amounts due to related companies  — JE{f BiiE A A FE
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE

— Other payables

— H Al e~ FROR

I_ﬁ_%@ﬁ’j*,%

Sh R — AR
REBERSRENEREAR 2 BHRRE -
TIRE bl e MEER B ENREH
R RRER MR EFNERE AR
AR B A NN S FA—BERIFE
T ABEE - ERRERAMNER 2 BIEA
BEEBIEL AL WRRAES F IR
A ARBFARFETE -

RNEBERREHRBIFLSETF)
EraHHERENFERBETHY
DA BEFRERHEEE - #F R
EF T BE1001E 2 (20174 - %)
mATE bl A ZHFTE - AR
EENR B EHRFEES R EE R
HEERENRAEBEESRE LD, 18
h16,917,000/8 7T (20174F : &) ©

W 5R 17 45 85 2 17 51 LASIE EL 2 (2017
FoEER) BEEIN WFE EFH
100fEEZh (20174F : 100fEE2h) KA
EHMESRIFTIAE  AEAFER
g mA 2 BIEFENT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TRET

1,696 2,874
(23,233) (16,605)
(107,064) (78,270)

(1,516) -

(130,117) (92,001)

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant, the
potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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43. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Market risk — continued
Other price risk

For AFS investments, the management monitors market
price exposure and will consider hedging significant
market price exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk on AFS
investments at the end of the reporting period. If
the market bid price on such listed debt securities
had been 5% higher or lower, the potential effect on
investments revaluation reserve would increase or
decrease by HK$21,154,000 (2017: nil) arising from the
AFS investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets (including AFS investments,
derivative financial instruments designated
as hedging instruments, receivable related to
development project, deposits in designated
bank account for development, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances) as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position; and

e the financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 18.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and receivables related to a development
project at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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43. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

188

policies — continued
Credit risk — continued

In addition, the Directors consider there is no
significant credit risk on the other receivables from
the independent lawyers after assessing their financial
background and creditability.

The credit risk on liquid funds, derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instruments and
deposits in designated bank account for development
properties is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The credit risk on AFS investments is limited because
the counterparties are corporates with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50%
(2017: 57%) and 76% (2017: 83%) of the total trade
receivables which was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the hotel and hotel related operations. The
Directors consider that there is no significant credit risk
on the trade receivables from the five largest customers
given their strong financial background and good
creditability. The remaining trade receivables balances
are spread over a number of customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and unsecured
notes as significant source of liquidity. At 31 March
2018, based on the existing levels of bank balances
and the existing banking facilities available, the Group
will be able to meet its future cash flow requirements.
Accordingly, the management considers that the
Group'’s liquidity risk is minimal.
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43. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings, with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is based on interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity table

At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31H
Non-derivative financial FfTESBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables Lo REMERNTIE 1,249,759
Other payables Hth IR
Amounts due to related ERBEARNE
companies 457,632

Amounts due to non-controlling ~ FEfT B A E 2

3. ¢MIAE—#Z
(b) HHEABERRERKE &

mBELmE &
IREGIAKEZITESRBEL
BRI EARH B ZFFB - SR TIRE
AEEAIEAERC ZF RIS/
BEZAMARSREMBRR -LHE
2 IR ERETIERRORITIEE
TIOIA PR REEIEA - T RHRT
EIFBITEEER R AT BE M - ELABIEDT
teRABEzEmBRNREEHTE
ERAHIMETE

AZRBENERAERERE 5 F
KRR AIRMRSBREREY
RZHMEGZH -

VioE/)= =3

1,249,759 1,249,759
51,442 49,222

2,441,199 2,898,831 2,704,226

interests of subsidiaries FHERERTIR 107,600
Variable-rate bank borrowings ~ F B RITEE 4,888,138

BEAZE 1,156,616
HBEER(HZ) 941,600

Unsecured notes
Financial guarantee (Note)

8,852,787
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8,903,616
6,516,387

17,861,202

4,731,342

4,731,342

18,523,096
7,673,003
941,600

31,445,331

107,600
17,191,112
6,776,088

28,078,007



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME
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43. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

43. & T H &

(b) HBERE

BRERBE &

Liquidity risk — continued REE LR
Liquidity table — continued BB & 7% — 5“"
Weighted Less than
average 1 year or 1 year Total Total
effective repayable to Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
WEFE  HEs R
ERME  REXEE 1EZ55F S5EE RERSAE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 31 March 2017 7201753A31R
Non-derivative financial FiTEeRmBE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BoREMERNTIE - 786,735 - - 786,735 786,735
Amount due to a related company FE{f— & Eﬁ@’/}ﬂ?ﬂlﬁ 3.47% 522,743 1,664,018 - 2,186,761 1,988,633
Amounts due to non-controlling WT%
interests of subsidiaries i EE#\ - 120,800 - - 120,800 120,800
Variable-rate bank borrowings ~ ZERTEE 2.14% 3,814,454 6,951,269 2,653,929 13,419,652 12,555,008
Unsecured notes EEARE 498% 2,022,501 8,157,042 - 10,179,543 8,768,040
Financial guarantee (Note) BBER (M) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -
8,208,833 16,772,329 2,653,929 27,635,091 24,219,216

Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee is the
maximum amount the Group could be forced to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that such an amount
will not be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “less than 1 year or repayable on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the aggregate
carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$46,765,000 and HK$58,467,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid within five years (2017:
six years) after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$12,900,000,
HK$36,372,000 and HK$nil (2017: HK$12,796,000,
HK$46,835,000 and HK$1,955,000) under the time
band of “less than 1 year”, “1 year to 5 years” and
‘over 5 years” respectively.
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43. Financial Instruments - continued 43. €T H—Z

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) eMIAZAAREEGE

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured AEEETERAENERERRIZ
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The AABEFE TRERLEESHE
following table gives information about how the fair EZARBEMNEEZER (LA
values of these financial assets are determined (in AT A2 ERREAZE) -
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), ARBRBAABETFEZBARBIEZ
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which ABREE AN BEFEMBEAZA
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 AEESER (B1ER) -

to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

Cross currency rate 16,126 - Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows N/A N/A
swap contract are estimated based on forward currency
classified as exchange rates (from observable yield
derivative financial curves at the end of the reporting period)
instruments in and contracted currency exchange rates,
the consolidated discounted at a rate that reflects the
statement of credit risk of various counterparties.
financial position
PEAGEEHBRRE F2MR FRBLNE: RRRERENREERN TEA TER
ZOTEeRIAZ BEX (RERREAR TEENEHER)
BREXRBEH ROENBEER TRREEHFFEER
B2 HLETURRM Azt
AFS investments 423,074 - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market N/A N/A
HREERE Z11 EEMSEARE TER TER
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 RE E2018F3A31H L FE » F1
during the year ended 31 March 2018. - FoMR AL 7 N FEEE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

44. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

M BRETHEE2EEYHK

TERAFAKERELYELZAEE
B BRERSMFEReEE) MELRSEST
ZREBEMNRERECKARKRERER
RAKEGARERERTHNERRER
BELZRERE -

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

At 1 April 2017 R2017464 /18 12,555,008 8,768,040 1,988,633 120,800 - 23,458,346
Financing net cash flows BEBSRE TR 4,448,777 (2,050,000) 739,536 (183,200) (424,256) 1,992,973
Non-cash transactions FRERS - - (82,800) - - (82,800)
Dividend declared BEERRE - - - - 424,256 424,256
Fair value adjustments AREEAE - - 42,046 - - 42,046
Foreign exchange difference [E & &8} (34,848) - - - - (34,848)
Currency realignments EBRE 222,175 44,593 - - - 266,768
Interest accrued fEstMBRAX - 13,455 16,811 - - 751,739
At 31 March 2018 RW2018F3A31H 17,191,112 6,776,088 2,704,226 107,600 - 26,818,480
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45. Pledge of Assets 45. EEE R

(a) As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, certain (@) F2018%F3H31H K201743H31H
assets of the Group were pledged to banks to secure AEEETEEDERTRITAES
banking facilities granted to the Group. The carrying AEEERRITEEZER -ZEE
value of these assets at the end of the reporting period ERHREIRREBENAT:

were as follows:

Bank deposits |ITFR 31,035 30,508
Investment properties "EYE 42,683,768 36,050,933
Properties under development for sale #H{EH & 2 3R P E 1,183,468 1,025,542

Buildings, including relevant leasehold #F (B EMRBEEH
land in Hong Kong HELH) 70,412 73,258
Hotel properties and hotel property BIEMERERBIEYE
under construction, including (BREABEBHEELM)
relevant leasehold land in Hong Kong 3,259,344 3,286,462
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERIE 547,255 565,087
Others (Note) HAt (#1aE) 88,354 97,828
47,863,636 41,129,618
Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets of Bt HtbiEst AN REE TEMEE (£
the Group including principally property, plant and equipment ZEBEMEING Y E - H2E
(other than hotel properties), inventories, trade and other BEFE -BHREMBEKRK
receivables and bank balances. SRITEESR) 2 TEEEIR
(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$334,000 (b) A% B IR A R 1717 5/334,000% 7T
(2017: HK$329,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the (20174F : 329,000/ 7T ) JHE AR T HRTT
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party MERAEBEA—RE=71RMHE2
to the Group. MEEEH R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

46. Commitments 46. HiE

ERTABERRER S M HRET

Contracted for but not provided in the

consolidated financial statements, BT FIEIREL A
net of deposits paid, in respect of: (HBRERMET2) -
— investment properties —1REME 267,974 3,633,872
— property, plant and equipment —E HBREE 5,123 153,082
— properties under development —BIEHEZERERME
for sale 394,946 289,111
668,043 4,076,065
47. Operating Lease Commitments 47 REHERE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREBA

Minimum lease payments paid and HEMERAFEE N RERNZ
payable under operating leases during &KE£HERERES
the year in respect of rented premises

At end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RWERR AEEREAREBHEEME
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TARGHCEHERER BRI N&ERS
operating leases in respect of rented premises, which fall SRZAE e HHmT

due as follows:

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERF (BREEEMTE)

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 years BBEMELH K ER R E  HER1Z2F T
(2017: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-determined and % (20175 1E2F) MR TITEEETE
fixed. RARBEESRE -
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47.

48.

Operating Lease Commitments — continued
The Group as lessor

At end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants to receive the following future minimum
lease payments in respect of premises in the investment
properties, which fall due as follows:

47.

ReHERE—~Z
AEEERHBA

REREHIR - ANEB R EBEPETA - Al
BEMERBREDR NIz EHE SR
MEHT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within one year —F R 1,207,277 749,281
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEEZRF (BEEEMSF) 2,275,225 894,237
Over five years AFLE 313,482 50,804
3,795,984 1,694,322

Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties
have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging from 1
to 11 years (2017: 1 to 9 years) and the rentals are pre-
determined at fixed amounts except for certain leases
of which contingent rentals are charged based on the
percentage of sales. The contingent rental income
recognised during the year is HK$13,914,000 (2017:
HK$10,162,000). The lease commitments presented above
is based on the existing committed monthly minimum lease
payments.

Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2018, additions of
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of
HK$596,133,000 (2017: HK$17,353,000) and HK$2,698,000
(2017: HK$5,752,000), respectively, were settled by utilising
deposits paid in prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, interest income from
a joint venture of HK$13,169,000 (2017: HK$12,908,000) is
settled through the current account with the joint venture.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, amount of
HK$49,242,000 (2017: nil) was advanced to an associate on
behalf the Group by a shareholder of an associate. Amount
due from an associate was recognised with the concurrent
recognition of amount due to a shareholder of an associate.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, deposit of
HK$82,800,000 (2017: nil) in connection with the Disposal
(note 29) is settled through the current account with a
related company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #£2018F3A31H [t FE

49. BEFRS

49. Related Party Transactions

Other than disclosed in notes 17, 18, 25, 29, 30, 31
and 32, the Group also had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

(a)

Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in
his capacity as a patron of
the Group’s VIP rooms

Financial services expenses to
related companies

Hotel and restaurant income from

related companies ZEERA
Interest income from a joint venture
Interest expenses to related companies

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment and merchandising goods
from related companies

Rental income from related companies

Secretarial fee expenses to a related

company WERSE

Share of administrative expenses by
related companies

(a)

AEEL (AAEEEER
ERzem) X%

DIEECNCIFER A 83

) B 3% 2 B R 2 B JE K

A — A & & b W B
) B8 2 B S SRR

AREARBEDR -
ek EmEMREE

AEEARIWRZEE
) — [ B8 3 2 B S A+

BERRDIEITRAX

BeBff5E17 ~18 ~25 29 30 31 %324
P EEIN ANEE NGRS
TTRIERRS:

1,117

1,623

91 130
13,169 12,908
133,902 145,733
1,767 1,231
222,026 207,041
940 940

94,897 78,616

Note: The above related parties are either controlled by AY Trust or
certain Directors.

The key management personnel of the Company are
Directors. Details of the remunerations are set out in
note 10.

The Group had entered into an accommodation
contract with Dr. Albert Yeung under which the
Group provided Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates
the exclusive right to use and occupy a property
of the Group as rent-free quarter (including related
expenses in relation to the usage of the property)
as his emolument for his services as a consultant of
the Group. The market rental values and the related
expenses of the quarter for the year ended 31 March
2018 was HK$10,883,000 (2017: HK$10,261,000).
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50. Financial Information of the Company

50. X ARz M E H

The financial information of the Company as at 31 March AN RF201853831H K20174E3 A31H
2018 and 31 March 2017 is as follows: ZEERIAT :

1,725,483

13,106,341
449

20

406

13,107,216

Non-current asset JERBEE

Investment in subsidiaries REB AR ZIRE
Current assets mENEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E

Other receivables H {th e Uk 5B

Tax recoverables Al 3R B §1 18

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR AR
Current liabilities mEIBE

Other payables H b &~ 5B

Unsecured notes — due within one year &K IFEE ——F A E|Hf

12,079

12,079

13,095,137

14,820,620

5,913,099

8,907,521

36,775
8,870,746

Net current assets MBEEFTE
Total assets less current liabilities REERTESEE
Non-current liability EmEEE

Unsecured notes — due after one year — EXIHEE — —F 12 7|5
Net assets BEFHE
Capital and reserves BEAR KRB

Share capital A& A

Reserves (Note) M (HaE)
Total equity BB E

8,907,521

1,798,559

15,441,371
469

231

9,693

15,451,764

39,880
1,645,919

1,685,799
13,765,965

15,564,524

6,270,215

9,294,309

36,775
9,257,534

9,294,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBEmRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, £2018F3H31H It F &

50. X ARz M BEER —Z&

50. Financial Information of the Company

- continued
Note:

Wyt

At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A 18 4,563,248 109,474 4,310,366 8,983,088
Profit and total comprehensive & £ s FI| & 2 H 48 W &=

income for the year - - 642,201 642,201
Final dividend paid for 2016 20165 BRI RARRR B - - (202,266) (202,266)
Interim dividend paid for 2017 20174 2R HARL B - - (165,489) (165,489)
At 31 March 2017 201743 A31H 4,563,248 109,474 4,584,812 9,257,534
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEEEBRE2HEAR X

expense for the year - - (645) (645)
Final dividend paid for 2017 2017 F Bk REFRL B - - (213,298) (213,298)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 20184 2 R < F Hi % & - - (172,845) (172,845)

At 31 March 2018

M2018F3A31H

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %}
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries 51. B A B &1

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as B ZEEMBARIFBENAT:
follows:

Directly held

EERE

Emperor Corporate Management ~ BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited

RECFEERBRRA RERAEE 1% REZK

Emperor Hotel Group Limited BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding

REBEEBBERLA RBRLHE 1% REER

Emperor Property Development BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited

REMFERBRAA EBRAES E REZR

Emperor Property Investment BVI US$1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Limited

REMEREBRAA RERAES E REZKR

Indirectly held

BEsSE

Actmore Estate Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
ZEEXERRA e MERE

All Max Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property investment
BRARAE e MELRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B QA B&FE — 2
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as BIBZ T ENBARBN T —&

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERs -2
Asia Palace Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property development
HasFRAA e and investment
NEERERE
Big Right Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Ex 0 REZKR
Billion Ideal Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property development
R YNG! 0 NEER
Champ Billion Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property investment
EBRBERAT B0 NERE
Century Creations Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
AR ER AT B NERE
Emperor (Beijing) Real Estate PRC RMB1,511,380,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
Development Company Limited? & AR #1,511,380,0007T MERE
HE (LR BHERE
AR A2
Emperor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.? PRC RMB1,807,598,058 100.00 100.00  Property development
HE(LB)BRRAP H AR %1,807,598,0587T NERRE
Emperor Ampersand Limited UK GBP100 100.00 - Property investment
Partnership ®E 1008 & EZ e

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as

follows: — continued

51. B A RFEE—42&
(@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
JIHZEEZEMBRARFBUT: —&

Indirectly held - continued
BMEgE £

Emperor (Xiamen) Real Estate
Investments Limited?

2 (EM)HEERE
AR AE?

Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited
REREEEZRERRA

Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Investment Limited?
RERLAEERE
AR AP

Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Management Limited*

RERZEEER
BRAR!

Emperor E Hotel
HEREAE

Emperor Financial Management
Limited
REMKERBRAA

PRC US$5,000,000

i 5,000,000% 75

Hong Kong 100

E

BVI/Macau US$50

EERLES/ 50% T
il

Macau MOP25,000

P 25,0002 1T

Bermuda/ 130,255
Hong Kong

BRE/BH

Hong Kong 100

ﬁ:

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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100.00

100.00

65.36

39.22

65.36

100.00

100.00

100.00

63.31

38.00

63.31

100.00

Property development
and investment

NEERREE

Investment holding

RERER

Investment holding

RAER

Provision of project
financing services

REARBERY

Investment holding

REZK

Provision of treasury
services to group
companies

[P 6% B 1 ) £ £ 31 75 AR 75



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B QA B&FE — 2
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as BIBZ T ENBARBN T —&

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERs -2
Emperor Hotel (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment and
REREERERDA G hotel operations
NERERBELE
Emperor Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000 100.00 100.00  Provision of treasury
HEMERRRA e services to group
companies
BEIEYNGE S E Y
Emperor Investment (Management) Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00  Provision of management
Limited N services
REEERSE
Emperor Project Management Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00  Provision of project
(Hong Kong) Limited e management services
RETREKE (FE)BRAA RH{EREERYB
Emperor Property Agency Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00  Provision of property
HEVMERBEERAA e agency services
REMERERS
Fai lek Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
BRBERAT BF 25,0002F9 7T NERE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B A Bl &1E —2&

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as B EEMBRRGENT: — &

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

BERE -2
Famous Awards Limited BVI/UK US$1 100.00 100.00  Property development
and investment
KBRS/ 1% NEERNIRE
®E

Gold Pleasure Investment Limited  Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment
AEREBRAA £ NERE
Gold Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment
BEREFRAF BE NERE
Golden Pegasus Investment Hong Kong 100,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment

Limited
EREEXARAA B NERE
Grand Emperor Entertainment & ~ Macau MOP500,000 39.22 38.00  Provision of hotel and

Hotel (Macau) Limited® P 500,000/£ M 7T catering services
EEREEE (ORF) RN REBIE RE MRS
Inn Hotel Macau Limited? Macau MOP100,000 65.36 63.31  Provision of hotel and
B BEHEEBR A AP B 100,000279 7 catering services

REVEE RE KRR

Headwise Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment
BHEREBRAF B NERE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B R Bl &FE — 2
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as BIBZ T ENBARBN T —&

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERs -2
Hill Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property development
BEERRA B NEER
Inn Hotel Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00 100.00  Hotel operation
EHRERRAA 0 BERE
| Soi Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
NG BF 25,0002F9 7T NERE
| Veng Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment
fRABRAF il 25,0002F9 7T NERE
Keen Million Limited* BVI/Macau US$1 39.22 38.00  Gaming operation
KBRS/ Y BRESK
R
Luck United* BVI/Macau US$10,000 39.22 38.00  Investment holding
ERELEE/ 10,000% 7T RERR
RP
Mori Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment
B NERE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B A Bl &1E —2&

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as B EEMBRRGENT: — &

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERE -2
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments  Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Operation of serviced
Limited Ee apartments
BERBALRE

Motive Drive Limited Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00  Property development
and investment

B2 RERRA B NEERRRE

National Goal Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment

BRARAAE B NERE

Planwing Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment

BRBBRAF B NERE

Precision Faith Limited?® Macau MOP100,000 65.36 63.31  Gaming operation and

AEFBERAR P 100,0002F9 7T provision of gaming
related marketing and
promotion services

B R RIEHEY A

M5 & R E ERY

Quick Gain Investments Limited®  BVI/Macau US$1 65.36 63.31  Investment holding

EBRAES/ 1% REER
R
Richorse Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property investment

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B QA B&FE — 2
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) ARFIR20186F3H31H K201743A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as BIBZ T ENBARBN T —&

follows: — continued

Indirectly held - continued

MERE -2

Right Achieve Limited* BVI/Macau US$1 39.22 38.00  Investment holding
ERARRR! EBELEHE/ 17T REER

RP
Shineon Investments Limited BVI/UK US$1 100.00 100.00  Property investment

EBRAES/ E NERE

RH
Upton Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Property development
BEBERRA B NEER
Tin Hou Limited® Macau MOP25,000 65.36 63.31  Provision of agency
AEBRAF R 25,0002 1T services for

aming operation

BB LR
AAEE

The Emperor Hotel Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Hotel operation

REURAEERAR £ BEEE

Very Sound Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Property investment

The Unit Serviced Apartments Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00  Operation of serviced

Limited B apartments

BeRBARE

Wider Success Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property investment

BRARAR Bk NERE

Winning Treasure Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00  Property investment

HBEERATE B NERE

Wealthy Gate Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 100.00 - Property investment

MEREBRAA B NERE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, are as
follows: — continued

! All amounts are in Hong Kong dollars except stated otherwise.

2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise. The company’s English name
for identification purpose only.

3 Those companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Emperor E
Hotel's whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

4 These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
Emperor E Hotel and are regarded as non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company because the Group has control
over the financial and operating policies of these companies.

All subsidiaries, except for those companies
incorporated outside Hong Kong, carry on their
businesses in Hong Kong unless stated otherwise.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, none of the
subsidiaries of the Company issued any debt securities
except for Big Right which has issued US$110,000,000
unsecured notes (see note 33 for details).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

51. B QA RIS — &
(@) ANAFEIFR2018F3A31H K%20174F3A

SIHZTEMBARFENT: —4&
L BREBAEEBEEIN FARES ST
BB

2 RIBERF -RFRXAWERS
Al

S BRERARRERLBEEZZEWER
NAE ERRAD PR AP LT o

¢ ZERRNREREEE 2 IR EM
BRARF WHRAREREZFT QA
M R A E BRI - A %
ERRBRERERRZIEEEMBR
ale

BRAETBAINEMAILZ A FISN BT
BEMBRAROERBEERH (RA
AERAERRSL) ©

20183 A31H K201743A31H »
¥ IE 222 2577110,000,0003 T £ K 3
= (FHI5RMEE3R3) I AAFIZ &
MR R BB TR EISE S

REFZER LRIBERIEY
EREEREXEELARFMBER
Al EER R HEMKERR]ZF
BETREBNIK.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MWK

For the year ended 31 March 2018 £ £2018F3A31H - F &

51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 51. B ARFE —#Z&
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) HBEERFERERIFZEMBA
material non-controlling interests GlPA=a
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREFAEE R BRI E L
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- ZIEEEMBRAB ZFFE:

controlling interests:

Emperor E Hotel* Bermuda/Macau 34.64% 36.69% 250,521 207,650 |EIEPIIA 3,169,303
RERZEE BRE/EM

Note:Included in accumulated non-controlling interests, an amount et RERGEHEE R EKE R R IEE
of HK$1,886,836,000 (2017: HK$1,773,236,000) is mainly f% # 25 ~ H & 1,886,836,000/% 7T
contributed from the non-controlling interests of the Emperor E (20174 : 1,773,236,000/8 7T ) &t
Hotel and its subsidiaries. AR IR ER

*  Representing Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries O RREBREDEREAMB A

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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51. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b)
material non-controlling interests — continued

Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries

BlZFHIE—&

51. i B A Bl sE1tE — 42
R E IS Y R A B A

RERBEERENBELQF

Current assets MENEE 4,073,845 4,279,117
Non-current assets FEREBEE 2,795,715 2,548,214
Current liabilities mEEE 881,744 817,602
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 111,012 531,154
Equity attributable to the Company AR AL 2,573,597 2,309,272
Non-controlling interests of HEREREZ
the Emperor E Hotel FIEIE PR 2 1,416,371 1,396,067
Non-controlling interests of BEERLPENB AT 2
the Emperor E Hotel's subsidiaries FEE A A 2 1,886,836 1,773,236
Revenue WA 1,498,351 1,613,180
Costs, expenses, other gains RO B - EAth U A
and losses N8 CELGPANE  (1,184,530)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEAEMEZE (FAX) k&=
income for the year (1,390) 26,840
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 &% F & &2 M W 5 42 58
for the year 506,340 455,490
Profit and total comprehensive FEE R R EE = BEE
income attributable:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZF N 256,665 231,195
Non-controlling interests of BERYTEE 2
the Emperor E Hotel JEVE R = 136,075 131,399
Non-controlling intesets of the BERLEHENBERRZ
Emperor E Hotel's subsidiaries FEFE AR 2 113,600 92,896
506,340 455,490
Net cash inflow from KaxBzHERANFHE
operating activities 507,188 566,117
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BREEHzAE Ond)
investing activities MAFHE (760,672) 705,082
Net cash outflow from BMEES RS MEIFE
financing activities (607,011) (163,440)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORH)RAFRE (860,495) 1,107,759
52. Event After Reporting Period 52. REHREIE

The Disposal of Prestige Gold as disclosed in note 29 4R A B TS SR 2R B 5T 20H 5 #Y H & Prestige
to the consolidated financial statements was completed GoldE R2018FE6 A13A 2k - (B4 A
on 13 June 2018 at a consideration of approximately 825,000,000/ 7T,

HK$825,000,000.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 3 2 & 8] (BIFR ) B R A 7
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBHME

Results ¥E

Revenue WA <l 4,068,467 5,602,894 2,821,473 3,013,897

Profit (loss) before taxation — BRH A& F (EE) <oRlLenbe 4647797 (1,850,633) 1,625,991 2,655,118

Taxation charge BB PAPICIE)  (956,997) (379,082)  (350,298)  (265,688)
Profit (loss) for the year FE&EN (EBE) <Pkl 3,690,800 (2,229,665) 1,275,693 2,389,430
Profit (loss) for the year FE 15 F 5 % Al

attributable to: (B#8):

Owners of the Company ZAN/NSEE DN <eralcird 3,483,150 (2,391,188) 898,129 1,858,140

Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 250,521 207,650 161,523 377,564 531,290

SePPIIERE 3,690,800 (2,229,665) 1,275,693 2,389,430

Assets and Liabilities EEREE

Total assets BERE GAvLRicRIE 55760,118 48,051,959 49,011,232 43,313,955
Total liabilities BERE R EEI ) (27,044,285) (22,317,424) (20,563,434) (15,780,169)

cearersel 28,715,833 25,734,635 28,447,798 27,633,786

Equity attributable to JE15 #E =
Owners of the Company VNEIEZ DN sl el 25,546,580 22,752,712 25,558,851 24,952,580
Non-controlling interests TR ER 3,303,207 3,169,303 2,981,823 2,888,947 2,581,206

cearsel 28,715,833 25,734,635 28,447,798 27,533,786

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y= BE

Particulars of the Group’s major investment properties and ZAREBER2018FIAIB 2 T B EWEKL
properties under development as at 31 March 2018, are as EFMEZFHBOT:
follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE

1. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Commercial 4,660 (Q) - 100 Long
474-476 Lockhart Road, and (S ( ;
Shop G on Ground Floor,
Pun Tak Building,
478-484 Lockhart Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BB E 25 7 B4T4-4T65 0 T
R R T IEAT8- 484K A ERE
T GHRE

2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor of Commercial 6,280 (G) - 100 Long
46 Leighton Road and 3 ( ;
Ground Floor of 44 and 48
Leighton Road, Lai Chi Building,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BREMEBRE BRI D LB
RIBEBAARASFBEREM T

3. Units 1 to 4 on 12th Floor, Offic
Wing Yip Commercial Building, N
65-71 Yen Chow Street,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
JUBE R KIS SR £565-715%
KEWERNEI12E1Z4E

(G) - 100 Medium
BE) i Hf

4. Carpark Nos. 1-11, 20, 23, 23A, Carparks - 16 100 Long
24 and 24A on Ground Floor, B R
Kwong Sang Hong Building,

Blocks C and D, 188 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBALIE108%
BAETRECKDEM T

1-11+20 - 23 - 23A * 24 R 24A%: B fir

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y =BE

5. Unit 601-604, 606, 705, 801, 802, 806, 901,  Office 61,850 (
902, 1001, 1102-1104, 1206, 1207, 1505, /NS §-+
1506, 1605,1607, 1701-1707, 1801-1803,

1807, 1905-1907, 2001-2007, 2101-2102
Emperor Group Centre,

288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BBE 1%%)@.:%2887%

HEEEHR 6012604 606 - 705 801 *
802 806 + 901 + 902 + 1001 ~ 110221104
1206 ~ 1207 ~ 1505 ~ 1506 * 1605 * 1607
1701£1707 ~ 1801£1803 ~ 1807
190521907 ~ 2001£2007 }2
210122102%

G)

) - 100 Medium
B

~

6.  Shops on Basement One and Two, Commercial 130,681 (G) 36 100 Medium
G/F - 1/F, 3/F - 4/F, Some Commercial [GES (B%) ]
Units on 23/F - 29/F, Emperor Group
Centre 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
E/E@%E)ﬁﬁus&—ﬁ
BEENLE-BRE_EiNE-
iﬂzféﬂi B FAE 7 B R 23E 2912
ZETHREN

7. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Commercial 1,850
523 Lockhart Road, [GES (
Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong
Eﬁ&fﬂ%/ X7 iB523% M T R 11E

) - 100 Long

8. Shops 1-3 & 5 on Ground Floor, Shops/Commercial 26,952 (G) - 100 Long
the whole of 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors, LV (%) 54
the External Walls of Ground Floor
to 3rd Floor, the Flat Roof on
5th Floor and Parapet Walls
enclosing the Flat Roof on
5th Floor and Lift No. 1 and No. 5,

8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

E/ﬁﬂ%/ BR8N
WTMEIRRET 118 28K
ERE M TEIEZIME
5T R BESEBTAZER
R REKER

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Shops 1-4 on Lower Ground Floor,
Yee Fung Building,

1A Wong Nai Chung Road,
Happy Valley,

Hong Kong
ERREHERREIFAREXNE
EET1E45% 5

4, 6 and 8 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon

NERD B REREAT, - 65E RO

Units A to H on 17th Floor

and Vehicle Parking Space

No. 7 on Ground Floor,

Hong Kong Industrial Building
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

BB EEIET444-45257
BEIEAEITBAZHE

& LA

Units C, D and G on 18th Floor
Unit H on 1st Floor and

Vehicle Parking Spaces

Nos. 11-12 on Ground Floor,
Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

BB B8 B F444-452%
EBT¥KE18EC DRGE-
TEHE R T11E125RFE

Shops A & B on Ground Floor,
Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

BB B8 i F444-452%,
EBTEKEN TARBRE

Shops
G

Shops
ki

Industrial/
Carparks
I%/%5f

Industrial/
Carparks
I%/%f

Industrial

1%

11,654(S)
(BEH)

6,060(S)
(ER)

- 100
- 100
1 100
2 100
- 100

Emperor International Holdings Limited 5 2 £= [ (B[ ) A IR A 7
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y =BE

14, Shops 7-11 & Entrance on Commercial 21,720 (G) - 100 Long
Ground Floor, the whole of [GES (BEE) =5
1st and 2nd Floor,

Wei Kei Building,

275 Chatham Road North,

Hung Hom

Kowloon
AR RLE L2755

BEgu T7TENRERAD:

1TER2BRE

@

15, The Ulfert Centre (formerly known as Industrial 178,815 (
Golden Castle Industrial Building), I% (s
4 Kin Fat Lane,
Tuen Mun,
New Territories
MREFRE ZARBCRMA D
(B IEXRE)

) - 100 Medium
5

~

16.  Portion B on Ground Floor, Commercial 1,600 (G) - 100 Short
63-69 Avenida do Infante D. Henrique GES (B%) Rt
and Shop C2 on Ground Floor,

5 Rua Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo,
Macau
BEPIRRE T A5 H63-69% B
T RERE T ERM T CORE

17. Shops A, B & E on Ground Floor, Commercial 3,974 (G) - 100 Long
Hung Hei Mansion, B3 ( ;
5-8 Queen Victoria Road,
Central, Hong Kong
EBREESH E‘F #75-85%
BEKXEM A BRE#

18. Shops 1-6 on Ground Floor, Commercial 5,549 (G) - 100 Medium
1st and 2nd Floor, 3 (BE) ]
1st and 2nd Advertising Walls,

525 Shanghai Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon

NEEHE A B 75255
WT1E65E  11B 2288 -
F-REZMEESENE

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Unit C on 6th Floor, CNT Tower,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEREFILERL6ECE

Basement, Ground Floor,

1st to 4th Floor of Block A,

Centro Comercial Hoi Meng,

201-209 Avenida De Almeida Ribeiro,
1-3 Patio Das Esquinas, Macau

BP9 5 #£201-200% K

ABEH1-35%

FEAEE T OAR

HE T R1Z48

Flats A & C on 12th Floor and Flat B
on 17th Floor

Ying Fai Court, 1 Ying Fai Terrace,
Hong Kong
AEEBEINRER2E
ARCERI17EBE

Shops A, D2 & E2 on Ground Floor,
Harilela Mansion,

81 Nathan Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
NERDBEZESH
EMAREMTA D2RE2HE

1563-157 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories
AT B LA FE153-1575;

54-56 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BB WEZERE54-56%;

Ground Floor, 20 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BEMBEREZEH0RNT

Office 940 (G) - 100

/NG (B%)

Commercial 15,788 (G) - 100

[CES (%)

Residential 1,780 (G) - 100

FE (B%)

Shops 3,061 (G) - 100

Bkl (B%)

Commercial/ 6,963 (G) - 100
Residential (B%)

mE/EE

Commercial/ 5,138 (G) - 100
Residential (B%)

mE/EE

Shops 1,125 (G) - 100

[BE] (&%)

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y =BE

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

22-24 Russell Street, Shops
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong L)

BEIMEEREZH20-24%

Fitfort, 560 King's Road, Shops/
North Point, Hong Kong Carparks
BB A% 285605 BB mE /B
Shops C & D on Ground Floor Shops

and Units A and B on 1st Floor, G
Mercantile House, Kowloon

NEBMAEN TCRDYESH

R1EARBE

Ground Floor, 76 Percival Street, Hong Kong  Shops

BRI EETORMLT Gk

Shops A & B on Ground Floor, Shops/
Offices A & B on 1st Floor, Office

Tak Fat Building, HE/ WAE
50 - 52 Russell Street, Hong Kong

BB EH50-525%

BEAEM TARBR S

1ERNEARBE

Shops on Ground Floor, The Java, Shops

98 Java Road, Hong Kong G

BBBEBISE The Javalt THEIH

Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Shops
18 Upper East, B
18-36 Shing On Street,

Hong Kong

BB L 1718-365%

BB eR18H T R1EHH

Shops on Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Shops
The Prince Place, [
396-400 Prince Edward Road West,

Kowloon

JLEE K F B 78396-4005: 1 KT

T R1EEH

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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)

4,435 (
(B

(@)

)

~

11,440

o)

)

353

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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34.  Shops on Ground Floor, Upton, Shops 8,183 (G) - 100 Long
180 Connaught Road West, 4 (BE£) =5
Hong Kong

E/%J_ruﬁ E1805ﬁ%&?§ﬂéﬂﬂ’ﬁ§ﬁ

35.  Ground Floor, 67 Wellington Street, Shops 855 (@) - 100 Long
Hong Kong ki (B%) K5
E%ﬁ*ﬁ@mf%T

36. Flat B on Ground Floor, Shops 800 (G) - 100 Medium
Hon Kwong Mansion, B (B%) ]
25-29 Hankow Road & 4 Ichang Street,

Kowloon
NEEE M 1525-295% ]k
HEMARERKEM TBE

37. Shop C on Ground Floor, Shops 750 (G) - 100 Medium

Daily House, 5k (BE) HE

35, 36 & 37 Haiphong Road, Kowloon
NEEBFE35 - 36 R37HIEFI 1T T CH 48

38.  Shops 30 & 33A on Ground Floor Shops 1,717 (G) - 100 Medium
and Mezz Floor, 48 (24) i Hf
Tsimshatsui Mansion,

83-97 Nathan Road, 36-50 Lock Road,

Kowloop
BETIZUESS-97TH I
443836-50%%

ERAEHT R EE0RI3AK &

39. 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Shops/Office 110,532 (G) 30 100 Long
Hong Kong LV VNS (%) RH
BB EHELITHE605

40.  The Pulse, 28 Beach Road, Commercial/ 167,000 (G) 97 100 Long
Repulse Bay, Hong Kong Shops (B%) =8
BARKIEGHIE285 The Pulse EEYA:L]

41 82 Hung To Road, Kowloon Industrial 89,500 (G) 9 100 Medium
N8B I8 E82%: I% (B%) i

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y =BE

42. Emperor Commercial Centre, Commercial/ 39,400 (G) - 100 Long
(formerly known as Wincome Centre) Office (E%) KH
39-41 Des Voeux Road Central, BE/PBRE

Central, Hong Kong \
ERRRERETAIREEFHEFL

(RTFEKBER L)

43.  45-51 Kwok Shui Road, Industrial 129,147 (G) 13 100 Medium
New Territories T% (B%) 5
R ER R 45-515

44, 181-183 Oxford Street, Commercial/ 12,731 (G) - 100 Freehold
London, UK Office (B£) KA
HEmBFEH181-183% BE/PBAE

45, Emperor Nam Van Centre Commercial 29,590 (G) - 100 Short
71-85 Avenida do Infante D. Henrique, GES (B%) 2 5
514-540 Avenida da Praia Grande, Macau
BPIBREFAFKET1-85%
B2 KB HK514-540%
REMERLD

46.  Emperor Group Centre Commercial/ 1,062,000(G) - 100 Medium
Ding 12 Jianguomen Avenue, Office (B%) A
Chaoyang District, BE/PBRE (incl.
Beijing, The PRC basement)
FELREGE (BHEHE)
EEPIINRE T 125
HEEEFL

47.  Commercial/Car Park Block, Commercial/ 95,913 (G) 979 100 Medium
Multi-storey Car Parks A, B and C, Carparks (B%) )
Open Car Parks and Associated Areas GEYAAN

5-19 and 6-12 Sui Wo Road, Sha Tin
New Territories

HRDHE

fERK5-19%6-1258
HE/EEBKE.

% EEFEEZA BRCE-
BREESREB A
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48, 17-19 Yik Yam Street,
Hong Kong

BB EEHA1T-195

49, Ampersand Building,
178 Wardour Street,
London,

United Kingdom
HERH
REBET85
Ampersand A B

50.  Shops 1-9 and 11 on Ground Floor,
Shops 1 and 2 on Lower Ground Floor,

Fairview Height, 1 Seymour Road,
Hong Kong
ERAEEIRIEREH 1295
RS R TEE1 R

Remarks: (G)

— gross floor area
(S) — saleable area

Shops/Residential
B/ T

Commercial/
Officq/f%esidentjal
HE/BAE/EE

Commercial

BE

Investment Properties Under Development

17,243 (G) - 100
(B%)

90,999 (G) - 100
(B%)

13,173 (G) - 100
(B%)
B (BF) -SEREER

(ER) —-EAE®

BREDPREWE

Freehold
KA

1. 75 - 85 Lockhart Road
Wan Chai [GE
Hong Kong

BB (TR R ET5-85%,

Commercial

Commercial
complex

2. Emperor Star City, a site
located at Yuyuan Jiedao
548 Jiefang 11/1 Qiu Huang
District Shanghai, the PRC
HSHEY
it E FEERR
BB & 85484
NNEZ 8

3. 25-27 Oxford Street,
London, UK Office
REmAE 25275

Note:

6,376

246,173
(incl. basement)

AxEARR (BIERE)

Commercial/ 11,600 (G)
(B%)

BE/ RO

Under the JV Agreement, the Group would provide the Land, the JV
partner would bear the full construction cost and the saleable floor area

96,000 Foundation
in progress

2020 -

WETRINEET

20,000 Demolition work in
progress

1,300,000 Foundation 2021 -
completed
WEIEBEER

2019 -

KEIRNEESR

would be split between the parties in equal shares.

GRS

Note
iz

100

Emperor International Holdings Limited & £ £ & (BIR ) B R A 7
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Medium

Gk

Freehold
XA
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
Y =BE

Property Under Development — For Sale

FEHEZBRRTYE

Note:

Various Lots, DD210,
Sai Kung,

New Territories
MABRELENN
E105 % Hin s

8-10A Mosque Street,
Mid-levels,

Hong Kong
FRFIIEZERE8-10A%

TMTL 436, Kwun Fat Street,
Siu Lam, Tuen Mun,

New Territories

AL NMETES
&P R 4365

TMTL 490, Tai Lam,
Tuen Mun,

New Territories
MATHALE
P 74905

RBL 1198,

Shouson Hill Road West,
Hong Kong
AESRIER
ABRENRE11985

NKIL 6538, Fuk Wing Street,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
NEERKS R

MNEN B 265385

Lots 9-10,

Jin Gu Zhou Economic
Development Zone,
Xinhui District,
Jiangmen,

Guangdong,

The PRC
FEEREIMTNER
SEMEERER
9E10% B

Residential
Tz

Residential
Tz

Residential
fi=a

Residential
Tz

Residential
Tz

Residential/
Commercial

Ex/E%

Residential/
Commercial

frx/E%

99,818

4,028

97,091

22,000

116,896

6,000

405,028

Jointly developed with Urban Renewal Authority

32,000

34,000

39,000

29,000

88,000

54,000

1,659,000

Emperor International Holdings Limited & 2 £ & (B ) AR A 7
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Site
i &

Foundation
in progress

WETRNEET

Superstructure
completed
FEREE K

Superstructure in
progress

LERENEES

Foundation
in progress
WETIRNEES

Superstructure
in progress

LERENEES

Superstructure
in progress

LERENEET

i EmEEZRARER

2022

2019

2018

2019

2019

2018

2019

28

36

1340

40

Note
fsE

50

Medium

H

Long
R

Medium

T

Medium

Gk

Medium

Gk

Medium

Gk

Long
3 1
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